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to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  The District has also covenanted and obligated itself to be bound by the 
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October 1, 2016, and will mature April 1 in the years and amounts as follows: 
 

 Maturity  Interest  CUSIP 
 (April 1) Amount Rate Yield 132375 

 
 2017 $1,565,000 5.00% 0.56% PH 3 
 2018 $1,685,000 5.00% 0.77% PJ 9 
 
 
$3,215,000 General Obligation Alternative Facilities Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C 
 
The Series 2016C Bonds will bear interest on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing 
August 1, 2016, and will mature February 1 in the years and amounts as follows: 
 

 Maturity  Interest  CUSIP 
 (February 1) Amount Rate Yield 132375 

 
 2018 $475,000 5.00% 0.74% PK 6 
 2019 $495,000 5.00% 0.88% PL 4 
 2020 $520,000 5.00% 1.01% PM 2 
 2021 $550,000 5.00% 1.16% PN 0 
 2022 $575,000 5.00% 1.30% PP 5 
 2023 $600,000 5.00% 1.48% PQ 3 
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The Official Statement dated January 27, 2016 is a Final Official Statement within the meaning of Rule 
15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
The District designates the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to which each series of the 
Bonds are awarded as its agent for purposes of distributing copies of the Final Official Statement to each 
participating underwriter.  By delivering an offer with respect to the purchase of the Series 2016A Bonds 
or the Series 2016C Bonds, the senior managing underwriter has agreed that (i) it accepts such 
designation and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all participating underwriters of the 
Bonds for purposes of assuring the receipt by each such participating underwriter of the Final Official 
Statement. 
 
No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the District to give any information or 
to make any representations with respect to the Bonds, other than as contained in the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Final Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District.   
 
Certain information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official Statement may 
have been obtained from sources other than records of the District and, while believed to be reliable, is 
not guaranteed as to completeness or accuracy.  THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF 
OPINION IN THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE FINAL OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE, AND NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THE 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY 
SALE MADE UNDER EITHER SUCH DOCUMENT SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT 
THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER SINCE THE RESPECTIVE 
DATE THEREOF. 
 
References herein to laws, rules, regulations, resolutions, agreements, reports and other documents do not 
purport to be comprehensive or definitive.  All references to such documents are qualified in their entirety 
by reference to the particular document, the full text of which may contain qualifications of and 
exceptions to statements made herein.  Where full texts have not been included as appendices to the 
Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, they will be furnished upon request. 
 
Any CUSIP numbers for the Bonds included in the Final Official Statement are provided for convenience 
of the owners and prospective investors.  The CUSIP numbers for the Bonds are assigned by an 
organization unaffiliated with the District.  The District is not responsible for the selection of the CUSIP 
numbers and makes no representation as to the accuracy thereof as printed on the Bonds or as set forth in 
the Final Official Statement.  No assurance can be given by the District that the CUSIP numbers for the 
Bonds will remain the same after the delivery of the Final Official Statement or the date of issuance and 
delivery of the Bonds. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 
(CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI PUBLIC SCHOOLS), CAMBRIDGE, MINNESOTA 

 
$3,250,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL BUILDING REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016A 
 

$3,215,000 
GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATIVE FACILITIES REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016C 
 

(MINNESOTA SCHOOL DISTRICT CREDIT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM) 
 

(BOOK ENTRY ONLY) 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 
 
 
This Official Statement contains certain information relating to Independent School District No. 911 
(Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools), Cambridge, Minnesota (the “District”) and its issuance of $3,250,000 
General Obligation School Building Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A (the “Series 2016A Bonds”) and 
$3,215,000 General Obligation Alternative Facilities Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C (the “Series 2016C 
Bonds” and, together with the Series 2016A Bonds, the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are general obligations of 
the District for which it pledges its full faith and credit and power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  
The District has also covenanted and obligated itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 126C.55 and to use the provisions of that statute pursuant to which the State of Minnesota will 
appropriate money to the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due if the District is 
unable to make a principal or interest payment. 
 
 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 
 
In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”), pursuant to the 
Award Resolutions and Continuing Disclosure Certificates (the “Certificates”) to be executed on behalf of 
the District on or before closing, the District has and will covenant for the benefit of holders or beneficial 
owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the District to 
certain information repositories annually, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events 
enumerated in the Rule to certain information repositories or the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
and to any state information depository.  The specific nature of the Certificates, as well as the information 
to be contained in the annual report or the notices of material events is set forth in the Certificates in 
substantially the forms attached hereto as Appendix II, subject to such modifications thereof or additions 
thereto as:  (i) consistent with requirements under the Rule, (ii) required by the purchaser of the Bonds 
from the District and (iii) acceptable to the Chair and Clerk of the District. 
 
To the best of its knowledge, the District has complied for the past five years in all material respects in 
accordance with the terms of its previous continuing disclosure undertakings entered into pursuant to the 
Rule.  In the interest of full disclosure, the District notes the following, which is presented irrespective of 
materiality: 
 
 Within the past five years, Moody’s Investors Service has changed the credit ratings of certain 

municipal bond insurance firms, which resulted in the change of the insured ratings of certain debt 
issues of the District.  Material event notices regarding certain insurance rating changes have not been 
filed; however, the information was publicly available through other sources.   
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A failure by the District to comply with the Certificate will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds 
(although holders or other beneficial owners of the Bonds will have the sole remedy of bringing an action 
for specific performance).  Nevertheless, such a failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and 
must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the 
purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect 
the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 
 

 

 
THE BONDS 

 
 
General Description 
 
The Bonds are dated as of the date of delivery, and will mature annually as set forth on the inside front 
cover of this Official Statement.  The Bonds are issued in book entry form.  Interest on the Series 2016A 
Bonds is payable on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing October 1, 2016. Interest on the 
Series 2016C Bonds is payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2016.  
Interest will be payable to the holder (initially Cede & Co.) registered on the books of the Registrar as of 
the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding such interest payment date.  Interest will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  Principal of and interest on the Bonds 
will be paid as described in the section herein entitled “Book Entry System.”  U.S. Bank National 
Association, St. Paul, Minnesota will serve as Registrar for the Bonds, and the District will pay for 
registrar services. 
 
 
Redemption Provisions 
 
Thirty days’ written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered owner(s) of the Bonds.  Failure 
to give such written notice to any registered owner of the Bonds or any defect therein shall not affect the 
validity of any proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds.  All Bonds or portions thereof called for 
redemption will cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, provided funds for their 
redemption are on deposit at the place of payment.  
 
Optional Redemption 
 
The Bonds will not be subject to payment in advance of their respective stated maturity dates. 
 
 
Book Entry System 
 
The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of each series of the Bonds, each in 
the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 
 
DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking 
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve 
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity 
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries)that 
DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities 
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  
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This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both 
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and 
certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing 
Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation all of which are registered clearing agencies.  
DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to 
others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either 
directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at 
www.dtcc.com. 
 
Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will 
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each 
Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as 
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished 
by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except 
in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 
 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in 
the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their 
holdings on behalf of their customers. 
 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 
effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the 
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, 
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of 
the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain 
and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide 
their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 
 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such maturity to be redeemed. 

 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date.  
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

 
Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to 
credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 

http://www.dtcc.com/
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from the District or its agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or the 
District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the District 
or its agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants. 
 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to District or its agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 
depository is not obtained, certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 
 
The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository).  In that event, certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 
 
The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that the District believes to be reliable, but the District takes no responsibility for the accuracy 
thereof. 
 
 
 

THE SERIES 2016A BONDS 
 
 
Authority and Purpose 
 
The Series 2016A Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475.  The 
Series 2016A Bonds have been structured as a current refunding, and are being issued to achieve debt 
service savings.  The proceeds of the Series 2016A Bonds will be used to redeem the April 1, 2017 and 
April 1, 2018 maturities (the “Series 2005C Refunded Maturities”) of the District’s General Obligation 
School Building Refunding Bonds, Series 2005C, dated February 1, 2005.  Specifically, it is anticipated 
that the Series 2005C Refunded Maturities will be called and prepaid at a price of par plus accrued 
interest on April 1, 2016, which is within 90 days of settlement of the Series 2016A Bonds.   
 

 
Sources and Uses of Funds 
 
The composition of the Series 2016A Bonds is as follows: 
 
 Sources of Funds: 
  Principal Amount $3,250,000.00 
  Reoffering Premium      226,947.45 
 
   Total Sources of Funds $3,476,947.45 
 
 Uses of Funds: 
  Deposit for Refunding Purposes $3,435,000.00 
  Costs of Issuance 36,909.95 
  Allowance for Discount Bidding          5,037.50 
   
   Total Uses of Funds $3,476,947.45 
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Security and Financing 
 
The Series 2016A Bonds will be general obligations of the District for which the District will pledge its 
full faith and credit and power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  The District has also covenanted 
and obligated itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and to use the 
provisions of that statute pursuant to which the State of Minnesota will appropriate money to the payment 
of the principal and interest on the Series 2016A Bonds when due if the District is unable to make a 
principal or interest payment.  The District will make its first levy for the Series 2016A Bonds in 2016 for 
collection in 2017.  Taxes previously collected will be used to make the October 1, 2016 interest payment 
due on the Series 2016A Bonds.  Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes, if collected in full, will be 
sufficient to pay 105% of the debt service due on the Series 2016A Bonds in each year. 
 
 
 

THE SERIES 2016C BONDS 
 
 
Authority and Purpose 
 
The Series 2016C Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475 and 
Section 123B.59.  The Series 2016C Bonds have been structured as a crossover refunding, and are being 
issued to achieve debt service savings.  The proceeds of the Series 2016C Bonds will be used to redeem 
the February 1, 2018 through February 1, 2023 maturities (the “Series 2007A Refunded Maturities”) of 
the District’s General Obligation Alternative Facility Bonds, Series 2007A, dated June 15, 2007 (the 
“Series 2007A Bonds”).   
 
Specifically, the proceeds of the Series 2016C Bonds will be placed in an escrow account with U.S. Bank 
National Association in St. Paul, Minnesota (the “Escrow Agent”).  The amounts on deposit with the 
Escrow Agent will be invested in special obligations of the United States Treasury or other obligations of 
the United States or of its agencies, which shall mature in such amounts and at such times as to be 
available to: 
 

 pay the interest on the Series 2016C Bonds to and including February 1, 2017, the anticipated call 
date of the Series 2007A Bonds;  
 

 redeem the Series 2007A Refunded Maturities on the anticipated call date of February 1, 2017 at 
a price of par plus accrued interest. 

 
Verification services necessary to insure the adequacy of the escrow account to provide timely payment 
of the principal and interest for which the escrow account is obligated will be performed by a certified 
public accounting firm. 
 
The Series 2005C Refunded Maturities and the Series 2007A Refunded Maturities are collectively 
referred to as the “Refunded Maturities”.   
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Sources and Uses of Funds 
 
The composition of the Series 2016C Bonds is as follows: 
 
 Sources of Funds: 
  Principal Amount $3,215,000.00 
  Reoffering Premium      540,548.80 
 
   Total Sources of Funds $3,755,548.80 
 
 Uses of Funds: 
  Deposit to Escrow Fund $3,698,880.62 
  Costs of Issuance 45,257.27 
  Allowance for Discount Bidding        11,410.91 
   
   Total Uses of Funds $3,755,548.80 
 
 
Security and Financing 
 
The Series 2016C Bonds will be general obligations of the District for which the District will pledge its 
full faith and credit and power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  The District has also covenanted 
and obligated itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and to use the 
provisions of that statute pursuant to which the State of Minnesota will appropriate money to the payment 
of the principal and interest on the Series 2016C Bonds when due if the District is unable to make a 
principal or interest payment.   
 
The District will make its first levy for the Series 2016C Bonds in 2016 for collection in 2017.  The 
escrow account established with the proceeds of the Series 2016C Bonds will make the interest payments 
due on the Series 2016C Bonds through February 1, 2017.  Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes will 
be sufficient to pay 105% of the debt service due on the Series 2016C Bonds in each year. 
 
 
 

MINNESOTA SCHOOL DISTRICT CREDIT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM 
 
 
The District will participate in the Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program 
(the “Program”) created by Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 (the “Act”).  Under the Act, if the 
District believes it may be unable to make a principal or interest payment on the due date, it must notify 
the Commissioner of Education as soon as possible, but not less than 15 working days prior to the due 
date, which notice is to specify certain information.  After consultation with the District and paying agent, 
and after verification of the accuracy of the information provided, the Commissioner of Education must 
notify the Commissioner of Management and Budget.  The Act provides that “upon receipt of this 
notice...the Commissioner of Management and Budget shall issue a warrant and authorize the 
Commissioner of Education to pay to the paying agent for this debt obligation the specific amount on or 
before the date due.”  The amounts needed for this purpose are annually appropriated to the Department 
of Education from the State General Fund.  Payment by the State will be dependent upon the availability 
of sufficient appropriations for the purpose of the Program.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the 
enforceability of the Act against the State in the absence of available appropriations.  
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FUTURE FINANCING 
 
 
The District anticipates issuing additional general obligation refunding bonds during calendar year 2016. 
 
 

 
LITIGATION 

 
 
The District is not aware of any threatened or pending litigation affecting the validity of the Bonds or the 
District's ability to meet its financial obligations. 
 
 

 
LEGALITY 

 
 
The Bonds are subject to approval as to certain matters by Knutson, Flynn & Deans, Professional 
Association, of Mendota Heights, Minnesota, as Bond Counsel.  Bond Counsel has not participated in the 
preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass upon its accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency.  
Bond Counsel has not examined nor attempted to examine or verify any of the financial or statistical 
statements or data contained in this Official Statement and will express no opinion with respect thereto.  
Legal opinions in substantially the forms set out in Appendix I herein will be delivered at closing. 
 
 
 

TAX EXEMPTION 
 
 
In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and decisions, interest on the 
Bonds is not includable in the “gross income” of the owners thereof for purposes of federal income 
taxation and is not includable in net taxable income of individuals, estates or trusts for purposes of State 
of Minnesota income taxation, but is subject to State of Minnesota franchise taxes measured by income 
that are imposed upon corporations and financial institutions. 
 
Noncompliance following the issuance of the Bonds with certain requirements of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, (the “Code”) and covenants of the bond resolution may result in the inclusion 
of interest on the Bonds in gross income (for federal tax purposes) and net taxable income for State of 
Minnesota tax purposes of the owners thereof.  No provision has been made for redemption of the Bonds, 
or for an increase in the interest rate on the Bonds, in the event that interest on the Bonds becomes subject 
to United States or State of Minnesota income taxation. 
 
The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax with respect to individuals and corporations on alternative 
minimum taxable income.  Interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a preference item in calculating 
alternative minimum taxable income and is not taken into account for purposes of calculating the 
alternative minimum tax that may be imposed with respect to corporations.  Adjusted current earnings 
include income received that is otherwise exempt from taxation such as interest on the Bonds. 
 
The Code provides that in the case of an insurance company subject to the tax imposed by Section 831 of 
the Code, the amount which otherwise would be taken into account as “losses incurred” under 
Section 832(b)(5) shall be reduced by an amount equal to 15% of the interest on the Bonds that is 
received or accrued during the taxable year. 
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Interest on the Bonds may be included in the income of a foreign corporation for purposes of the branch 
profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code.  Under certain circumstances, interest on the Bonds may 
be subject to the tax on “excess net passive income” of Subchapter S corporations imposed by 
Section 1375 of the Code. 
 
The above is not a comprehensive list of all federal tax consequences which may arise from the receipt of 
interest on the Bonds.  The receipt of interest on the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal or State 
income tax liability of the recipient based on the particular taxes to which the recipient is subject and the 
particular tax status of other items or deductions.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such 
consequences.  All prospective purchasers of the Bonds are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to 
the tax consequences of, or tax considerations for, purchasing or holding the Bonds. 
 

 
Original Issue Premium 
 
The Bonds are being issued at a premium to the principal amount payable at maturity.  Except in the case 
of dealers, which are subject to special rules, Bondholders who acquire Bonds at a premium, even Bonds 
that were not initially offered at a premium, must, from time to time, reduce their federal and Minnesota 
tax bases for the Bonds for purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or payment of such Bonds.  
Premium generally is amortized for federal and Minnesota income and franchise tax purposes on the basis 
of a Bondholder's constant yield to maturity or to certain call dates with semiannual compounding.  
Accordingly, Bondholders who acquire Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the 
Bonds, even if such Bonds are sold for an amount equal to or less than their original cost.  Amortized 
premium is not deductible for federal or Minnesota income tax purposes.  Bondholders who acquire 
Bonds at a premium should consult their tax advisors concerning the calculation of bond premium and the 
timing and rate of premium amortization, as well as the state and local tax consequences of owning and 
selling Bonds acquired at a premium. 
 

 

 

NOT QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS 
 
 
The District will not designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for 
federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt 
obligations. 
 

 
RATINGS 

 
 
Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”), 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 23

rd
 Floor, New 

York, New York has assigned to each series of the Bonds (i) an underlying rating of “Aa3”, and (ii) a 
rating of “Aa2” based on the Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program.  The ratings reflect 
only the opinion of Moody’s.  Any explanation of the significance of the ratings may be obtained only 
from Moody’s. 
 
There is no assurance that a rating will continue for any given period of time, or that such rating will not 
be revised, suspended or withdrawn, if, in the judgment of Moody’s, circumstances so warrant.  A 
revision, suspension or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the 
Bonds. 
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MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 
 
 
The District has retained Springsted Incorporated, Public Sector Advisors, of St. Paul, Minnesota 
(“Springsted”), as municipal advisor in connection with certain aspects of the issuance of the Bonds.  In 
preparing this Official Statement, Springsted has relied upon governmental officials, and other sources, 
who have access to relevant data to provide accurate information for this Official Statement, and 
Springsted has not been engaged, nor has it undertaken, to independently verify the accuracy of such 
information.  Springsted is not a public accounting firm and has not been engaged by the District to 
compile, review, examine or audit any information in this Official Statement in accordance with 
accounting standards.  Springsted is an independent advisory firm, registered as a municipal advisor, and 
is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public 
securities. 
 

 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
The District has authorized the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement for use in connection 
with the initial sale of the Bonds and a Final Official Statement following award of the Bonds.  The 
Purchaser will be furnished with a certificate signed by the appropriate officers of the District stating that 
the District examined each document and that, as of the respective date of each and the date of such 
certificate, each document did not and does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary, in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 
 
 
 

UNDERWRITING 
 
 
The Series 2016A Bonds 
 
An underwriting syndicate managed by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, in New York, New York with co-
managers Raymond James & Associates, Inc.; Jefferies & Company, Inc.; FTN Financial Capital 
Markets; and City Securities (collectively, the “Purchaser”) has agreed to purchase the Series 2016A 
Bonds for a purchase price of $3,471,909.95 (representing the principal amount of $3,250,000.00, plus a 
reoffering premium of $226,947.45 and less the underwriter’s compensation of $5,037.50).  The public 
offering prices of all the Series 2016A Bonds may be changed from time to time by the Purchaser. 
 
 
The Series 2016C Bonds 
 
The Purchaser has agreed to purchase the Series 2016C Bonds for a purchase price of $3,744,137.89 
(representing the principal amount of $3,215,000.00, plus a reoffering premium of $540,548.80 and less 
the underwriter’s compensation of $11,410.91).  The public offering prices of all the Series 2016C Bonds 
may be changed from time to time by the Purchaser. 
 
Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC., an underwriter of the Bonds, has 
entered into a retail distribution arrangement with Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC.  As part of the 
distribution arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may distribute municipal securities to retail 
investors through the financial advisor network of Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC.  As part of this 
arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its 
selling efforts with respect to the Bonds. 
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DISTRICT PROPERTY VALUES 
 
 
Trend of Values(a) 
 

Assessment/ Assessor’s   Market Value  Adjusted 

Collection Estimated Sales Economic Homestead Taxable Taxable Net 

Year Market Value Ratio(b) Market Value(c) Exclusion Market Value Tax Capacity 

 
2014/15 $2,061,247,400 93.1%  $2,201,890,094 $177,411,000 $1,826,454,432 $19,286,401 

2013/14 1,954,819,500 93.4  2,085,724,502 181,637,800 1,717,137,300 18,344,601 

2012/13 2,043,225,200 103.8  1,970,484,821 181,558,300 1,677,677,500 18,076,049 

2011/12 2,162,507,200 N/A  N/A 175,827,100 1,881,366,572 19,931,795 

2010/11 2,386,742,800 N/A  N/A N/A 2,242,253,400 23,256,986 
 
(a) For a description of the Minnesota property tax system, see Appendix III. 
 
(b) Sales Ratio Study for the year of assessment as posted by the Minnesota Department of Revenue, 

http://www.revenue.state.mn.us/propertytax/Pages/statistics-imv.aspx.  Prior to 2012/13, a different 
methodology was used to calculate sales ratios and the economic market value cannot be derived. 

 
(c) Economic market values for the year of assessment as posted by the Minnesota Department of Revenue,  

http://www.revenue.state.mn.us/propertytax/Pages/statistics-imv.aspx.   
 
Sources: Chisago County and Isanti County, Minnesota, May 2015, except as otherwise noted. 
 
 
2014/15 Net Tax Capacity: $19,415,703* 
 
 Isanti Chisago 
 County County Total 
 
Real Estate $18,256,227  $628,983  $18,885,210 
Personal Property        520,727        9,766         530,493 
 
Total $18,776,954  $638,749  $19,415,703 
 
* Excludes mobile home valuation of $47,556 for Isanti County. 

 
 
2014/15 Adjusted Taxable Net Tax Capacity: $19,286,401 
 

Real Estate: 
   Residential Homestead $   9,695,637  49.9% 
   Commercial/Industrial, Public Utility, and 
        Railroad 3,863,474  19.9 
   Agricultural 2,772,084  14.3 
   Non-Homestead Residential 2,013,141  10.4 
   Seasonal Recreational 540,874  2.8 
Personal Property        530,493      2.7 
 
2014/15 Net Tax Capacity $19,415,703  100.0% 
Less: Captured Tax Increment Tax Capacity       (129,302)  
 
2014/15 Adjusted Taxable Net Tax Capacity $19,286,401 
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Ten of the Largest Taxpayers in the District 
 
  2014/15 Net 
Taxpayer Type of Property Tax Capacity  
Great River Energy Utility $   208,694 
Wal-Mart Stores Incorporated Retail 204,444 
Mills Properties, Inc. Commercial 156,294 
Centerpoint Energy Utility 148,106 
Menards Incorporated Retail 135,232 
Target Corporation Retail 115,294 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway Railroad 100,551 
East Central Energy Utility 83,896 
Recycling Fulfillment Centers LLC Commercial/Industrial 70,192 
Kohl’s Retail       66,864  
Total  $1,289,567* 
 
* Represents 6.7% of the District's total 2014/15 adjusted taxable net tax capacity. 
 
 
 

DISTRICT INDEBTEDNESS 
 
 
Legal Debt Limit and Debt Margin*  
 

Legal Debt Limit (15% of 2014/15 Economic Market Value) $330,283,514 
Less:  Outstanding Debt Subject to Limit (Including the Bonds 
       and Excluding the Refunded Maturities)     (57,471,487 ) 

 
Legal Debt Margin as of February 18, 2016 $272,812,027 

 
* The legal debt margin is referred to statutorily as the “Net Debt Limit” and may be increased by debt service 

funds and current revenues which are applicable to the payment of debt in the current fiscal year.  
 
NOTES: Certain types of debt are not subject to the legal debt limit.  See Appendix III – Debt Limitations. 
 

Minnesota Statutes limits the “net debt” of a school district to 15% of its actual market value.  Actual market 

value is either the District’s Estimated Market Value or Economic Market Value, whichever is higher. 
 
 
General Obligation Debt Supported Solely by Taxes(a) 
 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 2-18-16  
 2-1-05 $13,435,000  School Building Refunding 4-1-2016  $  1,565,000(b) 
 2-17-05 10,621,487  School Building CABs 2-1-2030  10,621,487 
 6-15-07 7,585,000  Alternative Facility 2-1-2017  515,000(c) 
 10-1-10 665,000  Capital Facilities 2-1-2021  350,000 
 8-1-12 26,000,000  School Building Refunding  2-1-2030  23,795,000 
 12-19-13 2,940,000  Alternative Facilities 2-1-2024  2,425,000 
 3-25-14 9,565,000  School Building 2-1-2034      9,100,000 
 2-18-16 3,250,000  School Building Refunding  
       (the Series 2016A Bonds) 4-1-2018  3,250,000 
 2-18-16 3,215,000  Alternative Facilities Refunding  
       (the Series 2016C Bonds) 2-1-2023      3,215,000  
 Total    $54,836,487 
 

(a) These issues are subject to the legal debt limit.  
(b) Excludes the Series 2005C Refunded Maturities.  
(c) Excludes the Series 2007A Refunded Maturities.  
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Certificates of Participation* 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 2-18-16 
 
 8-7-14 $2,740,000 Taxable Certificates 2-1-2030 $2,635,000 
 
* This issue is subject to the legal debt limit. 

 
 
Estimated Calendar Year Debt Service Payments Including the Bonds  
   and Excluding the Refunded Maturities 
 
  General Obligation Debt    
  Supported Solely by Taxes   Certificates of Participation  
  Principal  Principal 
Year Principal & Interest(a) Principal & Interest 
 
2016 (at 2-18) $  1,565,000 $  2,331,601 (Paid)   $    49,154 
2017 5,070,000 6,403,995 $  155,000 251,990 
2018 5,235,000 6,371,673 155,000 249,084 
2019 3,793,057 5,823,033 160,000 250,415 
2020 3,817,160 5,828,995 165,000 250,984 
2021 3,858,126 5,846,245 165,000 245,993 
2022 3,807,780 5,762,169 175,000 250,334 
2023 3,844,568 5,762,074 180,000 249,030 
2024 3,233,488 5,124,678 185,000 247,184 
2025 2,927,924 4,809,300 195,000 249,674 
2026 2,970,920 4,830,325 205,000 251,369 
2027 3,006,238 4,848,800 210,000 247,288 
2028 3,035,260 4,854,206 215,000 242,564 
2029 3,072,875 4,861,594 230,000 247,103 
2030 3,114,091 4,860,825 240,000 245,820 
2031 590,000 666,650   
2032 610,000 665,650   
2033 635,000 668,863   
2034        650,000         661,375                     
 
Total $54,836,487(b) $80,982,051  $2,635,000(c) $3,527,986 
 
(a) Includes debt service on the Series 2016A Bonds and the Series 2016C Bonds based on the interest rates shown 

on the inside cover of this Official Statement, and excludes the Refunded Maturities. 
 
(b) 67.8% of this debt will be retired within ten years. 
 
(c) 66.0% of this debt will be retired within ten years. 
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Overlapping Debt 
 2014/15  Debt Applicable to 
 Adjusted Taxable Est. G.O. Debt    Tax Capacity of District  
Taxing Unit(a) Net Tax Capacity As of 2-18-16(b) Percent Amount   
 
Isanti County $26,085,541  $  5,300,000  71.5% $   3,789,500 
Chisago County 42,889,591  41,090,000(c) 1.5 616,350 
City of Cambridge 5,532,680  16,880,000(d) 100.0 16,880,000 
City of Isanti 2,618,387  6,325,000  100.0 6,325,000 
Fish Lake Township 1,634,235  80,000  39.1 31,280 
North Branch Township 1,378,325  245,000 32.8          80,360 
 
Total      $27,722,490 
 
(a) Only those units with outstanding general obligation debt are shown here. 
 
(b) Excludes general obligation tax and aid anticipation certificates and revenue-supported debt. 
 
(c) Includes lease revenue bonds issued by the Chisago County Housing and Redevelopment Authority 

(the “HRA”) and paid from lease payments made by the County to the HRA. 
 
(d) Includes lease revenue bonds issued by the Economic Development Authority of the City of Cambridge, 

Minnesota (the “Cambridge EDA”), but payable from lease payments made by the City of Cambridge pursuant 
to a lease agreement between the Cambridge EDA and the City of Cambridge. 

 
 
Debt Ratios* 
 
 G.O. G.O. Direct & 
 Direct Debt Overlapping Debt 
 
To 2014/15 Estimated Market Value ($2,061,247,400) 2.66% 4.01% 
Per Capita - (28,340 - Current District Estimate)  $1,935 $2,913 
 
* Excludes certificates of participation. 
 
 
 

DISTRICT TAX RATES, LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
 
Tax Capacity Rates for a District Resident in the City of Cambridge 
     2014/15  
                                        For    
 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Total Debt Only 
 
Isanti County 48.650% 57.850% 60.807% 67.285% 66.996% 3.725% 
City of Cambridge 72.220 80.690 87.403 92.053 89.819 13.495 
ISD No. 911  
   (Cambridge-Isanti)* 33.770 39.480 39.883 41.765 48.149 32.807 
Green Lake Improvement 
  District   0.610   6.480  -0-     6.283     5.402  -0-  
 
Total 155.250% 184.500% 188.093% 207.386% 210.366% 50.027% 
 
* Independent School District No. 911 (Cambridge-Isanti) has a 2014/15 market value tax rate of 0.14657% 

spread across the market value of property in support of an excess operating levy. 
 
NOTE: Taxes are determined by multiplying the net tax capacity by the tax capacity rate, plus multiplying the 

referendum market value by the market value rate.  This table does not include the market value based 
rates.  See Appendix III.  
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Tax Levies and Collections 
 
     Collected During   Collected and/or Abated 
     Net    Collection Year   As of 5-15-15  
Levy/Collect  Levy* Amount Percent Amount Percent 
 

2014/15 $11,628,850  (Not Yet Available)   
2013/14 9,320,165  $9,116,480  97.8% $9,218,187 98.9% 
2012/13 7,816,066  7,739,868  99.0 7,763,799 99.3 
2011/12 8,205,265  7,963,060  97.0 8,094,920 98.7 
2010/11 7,782,315  7,516,988  96.6 7,692,959 98.9 
 

* The net levy excludes state aid for property tax relief and fiscal disparities, if applicable.  The net levy is the 
basis for computing tax capacity rates. See Appendix III. 

 

 

 
FUNDS ON HAND 

As of November 30, 2015 
 

 
Fund  Cash and Investments 

 
 General  $  8,665,202 
 Food Service  864,363 
 Community Service  445,303 
 Debt Service  6,823,408 
 Internal Service  1,040,371 
 Building Construction          (75,017 ) 
 
 Total  $17,763,630 

 

 

 
INVESTMENTS 

 
 

The District has an adopted investment policy No. 705 that permits the District to invest its funds in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Sections 118A.04 and 118A.05.  The District invests the majority of 
its funds with the Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund (MSDLAF).  As of November 30, 2015, 
the District’s Liquid Class of the MSDLAF portfolio had net assets $11,982,887.   
 
The MSDLAF was established in 1984 under Minnesota laws to permit school districts to pool their 
investment funds to obtain the highest possible yield and maintain the preservation of capital and 
liquidity.  Investments are made in instruments permitted by Minnesota law.  In addition, it is the 
MSDLAF's policy regarding commercial paper to permit investing only in "A1"-"P1" commercial paper, 
although State statutes allow for a lower rating.  The Liquid Class, made up of only permitted 
investments, is 100% liquid at all times and allows for unlimited check writing services. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT 
 
 
The District is located in Isanti and Chisago Counties in Minnesota.  The District administrative offices 
are located in the City of Cambridge, the county seat of Isanti County, which is approximately 45 miles 
north of the Minneapolis/St. Paul metropolitan area.  The District encompasses an area of approximately 
252 square miles (161,280 acres) and includes the cities of Cambridge and Isanti and all or part of 
13 townships.  The District's current population is estimated to be 28,340. 
 
 
School Board and Administration 
 
The District's governing and policy-setting body is the School Board, comprised of seven members, all of 
whom are elected at large to serve overlapping four-year terms of office.  Elections are held every two 
years on the first Tuesday of November of the even numbered year.  The current Board Members are as 
follows: 
 
 Expiration of Term 
 First Monday in January 
 
Timothy Hitchings Chair 2019 
Gary Hawkins Vice Chair 2017 
Lynn Wedlund Clerk 2019 
Heidi Sprandel Treasurer 2017 
Jenni Caulk Member 2019 
Kyle Johnson Member 2019 
Darcy Winsor Member 2017 
 
The administration of policy as set by the Board is under the direction of the Superintendent, 
Dr. Raymond Queener.  Dr. Queener has served as Superintendent for the District since July 2013, having 
previously served as the Assistant Superintendent for Business and Administrative Services for the 
Stillwater Area Public Schools.  Ms. Kris Crocker is the District’s Director of Finance and Operations. 
 
 
Enrollment  
 
Following is the trend of enrollments for the past five years: 
 
 School   Grades  Total 
 Year K-6  7-12 Enrollment 
 
 2015/16 2,575  2,239 4,814   
 2014/15 2,630  2,178 4,808 
 2013/14 2,754  2,285 5,039 
 2012/13 2,724  2,301 5,025 
 2011/12 2,680  2,336 5,016 
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Employment  
 
Following is the District’s employment trend for the past five years: 
 
 School Certified  Uncertified Total 
 Year Employees Employees Employees 
 

2015/16 400 519 919 
2014/15 383 457 840 
2013/14 385 430 815 
2012/13 399 429 828 
2011/12 368 435 803 

 
 
Labor Contracts 
 
Pursuant to State law, all school districts in the State negotiate teacher contracts every two years.  The 
status of labor contracts in the District is as follows: 
 
  Expiration Date 

Bargaining Unit No. of Employees of Current Contract 
 

Teachers 391 June 30, 2015* 
Principals     9 June 30, 2015* 
Secretaries   40 June 30, 2015* 
Instructional Assistants 210 June 30, 2015* 
Custodians   42 June 30, 2015* 
Food Service   46 June 30, 2015* 
 
Subtotal 738 
 
Non-unionized employees 181 
 
Total employees 919 

 

* In negotiations. 

 
 
Physical Plant 
 
The District operates nine educational buildings.  Seven of the facilities are currently owned by the 
District: two primary schools (grades PreK-2), two intermediate schools (grades 3-5), two middle schools 
(grades 6-8) and a senior high school (grades 9-12).   
 
 Original Construction/ Maximum 
Building Additions Capacity 
 
Cambridge Primary (PreK-2) 1960, 1967, 1989, 1994, 2014 930 
Isanti Primary (PreK-2) 1956, 1960, 1966, 1969, 1989, 2014 687 
Cambridge Intermediate (3-5) 1936, 1954, 1957, 1961, 1974, 1976, 1995, 2014 612 
Isanti Intermediate (3-5) 2006 850 
Cambridge Middle (6-8) 2006 875 
Isanti Middle (6-8) 1976, 1994, 2006 887 
Cambridge-Isanti High (9-12) 1967, 1969, 1974,1998 1,500 
Adult Enrichment Center 2012 N/A 
Education Center 1955, 1981   N/A 
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Student Transportation 
 
The District owns and operates its own bus fleet and transports approximately 86% of its students daily. 
 
 
Budget Summary 
 
  2015-16 2015-16  
 June 30, 2015 Projected Projected June 30, 2016 
 Actual Revenues and Expenditures and Projected 
Fund Fund Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Fund Balance 
 
General $10,433,888 $50,137,000 $50,400,000 $10,170,888 
Food Service 787,729 2,284,000 2,354,000 717,729 
Community Service 120,644 1,865,000 1,813,000 172,644 
Building Construction 2,795,018 0 0 2,795,018 
Debt Service 944,037 6,332,000 6,593,000 683,037 
Trust          82,379                   0                   0          82,379 
 
Total All Funds $15,163,695 $60,618,000 $61,160,000 $14,621,695 
 
 
Major General Fund Revenue Sources   
 
 Revenue 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
 
State Sources $34,716,168 $36,402,819 $37,437,186 $39,345,612 $40,858,535 
Property Taxes 2,128,896 1,839,218 1,885,800 1,114,169 3,344,896 
Federal Sources 1,675,616 1,829,865 1,338,690 1,082,421 1,144,477 
Other 1,607,160 1,919,652 1,666,095 1,725,455 2,035,484 
Earnings on Investments 250,000 63,412 23,624 5,888 5,587 
 
Sources:  District’s Annual Financial Statements. 
 
 
Nonpublic and Post-Secondary Education 
 
Post-secondary education is available at the Cambridge Community College Center, a satellite center of 
Anoka-Ramsey Community College, with the main campus located 40 miles south of the City of 
Cambridge.  In addition, St. Cloud State University is located 50 miles west of Cambridge and there are 
many colleges and universities in the Twin Cities metropolitan area located approximately 50-70 miles 
south of the District.  Technical colleges are available in the City of Pine City (30 miles north), the City of 
St. Cloud, and the Minneapolis/St. Paul metropolitan area. 
 
Non-public schools located within the District include:   
 

    2014/15* 
School Location Grades Enrollment 

 
Cavalry Baptist Academy City of Cambridge   K-8      8 
Cambridge Christian 
  School City of Cambridge   K-12  153 
St. Scholastica 
  Parochial School  City of Cambridge   K-12     44 

 
Source: Minnesota Department of Education, www.education.state.mn.us 
  

* 2015/16 enrollment figures are not yet available.  

http://www.education.state.mn.us/
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Employee Pensions 

 
All teachers employed by the District are covered by the Teachers Retirement Association ("TRA").  
TRA members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan.  Coordinated Plan members are 
covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not.  All new members must participate in the 
Coordinated Plan.  The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and 
may be amended by State Statute.   
 
All non-teachers full-time and certain part-time employees of the District are covered by defined benefit 
plans administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association ("PERA").  PERA administers the 
General Employees Retirement Fund (“GERF”), which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement 
plan.  GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan.  Coordinated Plan 
members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not.  All new members must 
participate in the Coordinated Plan.  The District provides the employer’s share of these plans.  The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established by and may be amended by 
State Statute.  The District is current in its contributions to GERF.   
 
The District’s contributions for the past five years are as follows: 
 
 TRA GERF 
 
 2015 $1,849,908 $757,066 
 2014 1,635,146 667,242 
 2013 1,447,761 635,802 
 2012 1,303,338 616,029 
 2011 1,164,042 580,584 
 
Both TRA and PERA are managed by the State of Minnesota; the District, therefore, has no responsibility 
for the administration of either program. 
 
For more information regarding the liability of the District with respect to its employees, please reference 
Note 6, Defined Benefit Pension Plans – State-wide, of the District’s Financial Statements for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015, an excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement.   
 
GASB 68 
 
At June 30, 2015, the District adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68) and related GASB 
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an 
amendment to GASB 68, establishing new accounting and financial reporting requirements for 
governments that provide their employees with pensions.  Under the new standard, cost-sharing 
governments that participate in a multi-employer plan must report a net pension liability, pension 
expense, and pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of resources based on their proportionate 
share of the collective amounts for all the governments in the plan.  Because the District presents 
comparative financial statements, the pronouncements require the restatement of the District’s June 30, 
2014 net position of its governmental activities.  Please reference “Note 1, Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies” of the District’s Annual Financial Statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, 
an excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement. 
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The District’s proportionate shares of the GERF and TRA pension costs as of the measurement date of 
June 30 2014 were 0.1752% and 0.5050%, respectively.  The District’s net pension liability, pension 
expense, and pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of resources for its cost-sharing plans for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 
 GERF TRA Total 
 
Net Pension Liability $(8,230,018 ) $(23,270,036 ) $(31,500,054) 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,731,556  4,452,431  6,183,987  
Deferred Inflows of Resources (2,223,744 ) (7,315,864 ) (9,539,608 ) 
 
For more information regarding GASB 68 with respect to the District, please reference “Note 8, Defined 
Benefit Pension Plans” of the District’s Financial Statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, an 
excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement.   
 
Additional and detailed information about GERF’s net position is available in a separately-issued PERA 
financial report, which may be obtained at www.mnpera.org; by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive 
#200, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103-2088; or by calling 1-800-652-9026.  Additional and detailed 
information about TRA’s net position is available in a separately-issued TRA financial report, which may 
be obtained at www.MinnesotaTRA.org; by writing to TRA at 60 Empire Drive #400, St. Paul, 
Minnesota, 55103-2088; or by calling 1-800-652-9026. 
 
Sources:  District’s Annual Financial Statements. 

 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45), which 
addresses how state and local governments must account for and report their obligations related to post-
employment healthcare and other non-pension benefits (referred to as Other Post Employment Benefits or 
“OPEB”). 
 
The District provides post-employment benefits to eligible employees through the District’s OPEB plan.  
Benefits are based on contractual agreements with employee groups, and eligibility is based on years of 
service and/or minimum age requirements.  As of June 30, 2015, there are 555 active participants and 
53 retired participants.  Required contributions are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, with any additional 
amounts to pre-fund benefits determined annually by the District.   
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and amortize any un-funded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.  Components of the 
District’s annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the District’s 
net OPEB obligation to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

 
Annual required contribution $280,509 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 6,613 
Adjustment to annual required contribution      (9,911) 
   Annual OPEB cost (expense) $277,211 
Contributions made  (295,355) 
   Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation $ (18,144) 
Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year   146,957 

 
Net OPEB obligation – end of year $128,813 

 
  

http://www.mnpera.org/
http://www.minnesotatra.org/
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Funded status of the District’s OPEB as reported in the actuarial reports received to date: 
 
   Unfunded UAAL as 
  Actuarial Actuarial  a percentage 
     Actuarial  Actuarial Value Accrued Accrued  of Annual 
Valuation Date of Assets  Liability Liability (UAAL) Covered Payroll 
 
July 1, 2013 - 0 - $2,360,498 $2,360,498 8.9% 
July 1, 2011 - 0 - 2,592,618 2,592,618 11.3 
July 1, 2009 - 0 - 3,483,526 3,483,526 15.0 
 
Required contributions as reported in the actuarial reports received to date: 
 
     Fiscal OPEB Employer  % of Annual OPEB OPEB 
Year Ended Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation 
 
June 30, 2015 $277,211 $295,355 106.5% $128,813 
June 30, 2014 270,371 302,388 111.8 146,957 
June 30, 2013 272,114 292,297 107.4 178,974 
June 30, 2012 266,657 264,277 99.1 199,157 
June 30, 2011 358,412 440,661 122.9 (30,144) 
 
For more information regarding the District’s OPEB plan, please reference “Note 8, Other Post-
employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan” of the District’s Financial Statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2015, an excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement.   
 
Sources:  District’s Annual Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

AREA ECONOMY 
 
 

Labor Force Data 
 
  Annual Average  November  
 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Labor Force: 
    Chisago County 28,964 28,645 28,599 28,735 28,933 
    Isanti County 20,560 20,400 20,252 20,336 20,378 
    State of Minnesota 2,944,331 2,954,948 2,965,675 2,974,102 3,009,360 
Unemployment Rate: 
    Chisago County 7.6% 6.6% 5.6% 4.6% 3.3% 
    Isanti County 8.3 6.9 6.0 5.0 3.2 
    State of Minnesota 6.5 5.6 4.9 4.1 3.0 
 
Source: Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development, 

    http://www.positivelyminnesota.com.  2015 data are preliminary. 

 

 

  

http://www.positivelyminnesota.com/
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Retail Sales and Effective Buying Income (EBI) 
 
Chisago County 
 
 Data Year/ Total Retail Total Median 
 Report Year Sales ($000) EBI ($000) Household EBI 
 
 2014/15 $604,125 $1,263,788 $56,308 
 2013/14 557,976 1,223,875 55,610 
 2012/13 409,415 983,553 44,954 
 2011/12 447,212 1,132,588 48,936 
 2010/11 447,379 1,032,950 48,927 
 
Isanti County 
 
 Data Year/ Total Retail Total Median 
 Report Year Sales ($000) EBI ($000) Household EBI 
 
 2014/15 $485,842 $838,315 $49,764 
 2013/14 513,447 774,438 46,758 
 2012/13 488,898 737,150 43,580 
 2011/12 543,688 748,393 45,659 
 2010/11 544,004 785,695 45,851 
 
The 2014/15 Median Household EBI for the State of Minnesota was $50,560.  The 2014/15 Median 
Household EBI for the United States was $45,448. 
 
Source: Claritas, Inc. 

 

 
Major Employers 
 
The area’s economy rests on agricultural pursuits, industry and health care and easy access to the 
Minneapolis/St. Paul metropolitan area from State Highway 65.  Some of the larger employers located 
within the District are shown below:  
  Number of    
Employer Product/Service of Employees 
 
Independent School District No. 911 
   (Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools) Education 919 
Cambridge Medical Center Hospital and Medical Clinic 900 
GracePointe Crossing Long-Term Health Care 450 
Walmart  Retail 350 
Isanti County Government 285 
Menards Incorporated Retail 200 
TEAM Industries Custom Machine Shop 200 
Arrow Tank and Engineering Metal Tanks 186 
Minnesota Extended Treatment Options State Hospital 160 
East Central Energy Electric Co-op 158 
Cambridge Metals and Plastics Metal Fabricating 150 
Target Corporation Retail 150 
Anoka Ramsey Community College Community College 116 
Cub Foods Retail Grocer 110 
 
Source: This does not purport to be a comprehensive list and is based on a January 2016 telephone survey of 

individual employers. 
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Financial Institutions* 
 
The following full service banks are located in the District: 

 
 Deposits 
 As of 9-30-15 

 
Peoples Bank of Commerce (Cambridge) $249,104,000 
Community Pride Bank (Isanti) 84,876,000 
Landmark Community Bank, N.A. (Isanti) 71,942,000 
Cambridge State Bank (Cambridge)     57,263,000 
 
Total $463,185,000 

 
In addition, branches of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association; Affinity Plus Credit Union; and Minnco 
Credit Union are located in the City of Cambridge and serve District residents. 
 
* This does not purport to be a comprehensive list. 
 
Source:  Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, http://www2.fdic.gov/idasp/main.asp. 
 
 

Health Care Services 
 
The following is a summary of inpatient health care facilities located within the District: 
 
Facility Location      No. of Beds 
 
Gracepointe Cross Gables West City of Cambridge  108 
Cambridge Medical Center City of Cambridge  101 
Cambridge Medical Center Dellwood City of Cambridge    11 
Gracepointe Cross Gables East City of Cambridge    90 
Living Well Central  City of Cambridge      6  
 
Source: Minnesota Department of Health, http://www.health.state.mn.us/. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

http://www2.fdic.gov/idasp/main.asp
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PROPOSED FORMS OF LEGAL OPINIONS 
 
 

 

 

 

 

KNUTSON, FLYNN & DEANS, P.A.  
1155 Centre Pointe Drive, Suite 10 

Mendota Heights, MN  55120 

651.222.2811   fax  651.225.0600 

www.kfdmn.com   

 
 

$3,250,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL BUILDING REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016A 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

(CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

ISANTI AND CHISAGO COUNTIES, MINNESOTA 

 

 

 We have acted as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance by Independent School District 

No. 911 (Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools), Isanti and Chisago Counties, Minnesota (the "District"), of 

its General Obligation School Building Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A (the "Bonds"), in the aggregate 

principal amount of $3,250,000, bearing a date of original issue of February 18, 2016.  The Bonds are 

fully registered as to principal and interest and are originally issued using a global book-entry system. 

 

 We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency of 

the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds (except to the extent, if any, stated 

in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto (excepting only the matters set forth 

as our opinion in the Official Statement). 

 

 We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we have 

deemed necessary to render this opinion.  As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied 

upon the certified proceedings and other affidavits and certificates of public officials furnished to us 

without undertaking to verify such facts by independent investigation. 

 

 Based upon our examination of these materials, assuming the authenticity of all documents 

submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as 

certified or photostatic copies and the authenticity of the originals of such documents, and based upon 

present Minnesota and federal laws, regulations, rulings and decisions, it is our opinion that: 

 

 (1) The Bonds are in due form and the proceedings show lawful authority for their issuance 

according to their terms under the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota now in force. 

 

 (2) The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the District enforceable in 

accordance with their terms except to the extent to which enforceability thereof may be limited by the 

exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity, by the constitutional 

powers of the United States of America and by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and 

other similar laws affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted.  All of the taxable property in 

the District is subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds, which 

taxes are without limitation as to rate or amount. 
 

http://www.kfdmn.com/
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 (3) Interest on the Bonds is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or 

in taxable net income of individuals, estates or trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes.  Interest on the 

Bonds is includable in taxable income of corporations and financial institutions for purposes of the 

Minnesota franchise tax measured by income.  Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference 

required to be included in the computation of "alternative minimum taxable income" for purposes of the 

federal alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals and other taxpayers under Section 55 of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the "Code") or for purposes of the Minnesota alternative 

minimum tax applicable to individuals, trusts and estates.  Interest on the Bonds is includable in adjusted 

current earnings of corporations in determining alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the 

federal and Minnesota alternative minimum taxes applicable to corporations. 

 

 (4) The opinion set forth in paragraph (3) above is subject to the condition that the District 

comply with all the requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 

Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal and 

state income tax purposes.  The District has covenanted in the resolution authorizing the issuance of the 

Bonds to comply with these continuing requirements.  Noncompliance with these covenants by the 

District following the issuance of the Bonds may result in inclusion of interest on the Bonds in federal 

gross income and Minnesota taxable net income for federal and Minnesota income tax purposes 

retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  Except as stated in this opinion, we express no opinion 

regarding federal, state or other tax consequences caused by the receipt or accrual of interest on or arising 

with respect to ownership of the Bonds. 

 

 (5) The Bonds have not been designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the 

purposes of Section 265 of the Code relating to the deduction of interest expenses allocable to the Bonds 

by financial institutions. 

 

 DATED at Mendota Heights, Minnesota, this 18th day of February, 2016. 

 

 

 KNUTSON, FLYNN & DEANS 
Professional Association 
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KNUTSON, FLYNN & DEANS, P.A.  
1155 Centre Pointe Drive, Suite 10 

Mendota Heights, MN  55120 

651.222.2811   fax  651.225.0600 

www.kfdmn.com   

 

 
$3,215,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATIVE FACILITIES REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016C 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

(CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

ISANTI AND CHISAGO COUNTIES, MINNESOTA 

 

 

We have acted as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance by Independent School District 

No. 911 (Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools), Isanti and Chisago Counties, Minnesota (the "District"), of 

its General Obligation Alternative Facilities Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C (the "Bonds"), in the 

aggregate principal amount of $3,215,000, bearing a date of original issue of February 18, 2016.  The 

Bonds are fully registered as to principal and interest and are originally issued using a global book-entry 

system. 

 

We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency of 

the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds (except to the extent, if any, stated 

in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto (excepting only the matters set forth 

as our opinion in the Official Statement). 

 

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we have 

deemed necessary to render this opinion.  As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied 

upon the certified proceedings and other affidavits and certificates of public officials furnished to us 

without undertaking to verify such facts by independent investigation. 

 

Based upon our examination of these materials, assuming the authenticity of all documents 

submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as 

certified or photostatic copies and the authenticity of the originals of such documents, and based upon 

present Minnesota and federal laws, regulations, rulings and decisions, it is our opinion that: 

 

(1) The Bonds are in due form and the proceedings show lawful authority for their issuance 

according to their terms under the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota now in force. 

 

(2) The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the District enforceable in 

accordance with their terms except to the extent to which enforceability thereof may be limited by the 

exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity, by the constitutional 

powers of the United States of America and by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and 

other similar laws affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted.  All of the taxable property in 

the District is subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds, which 

taxes are without limitation as to rate or amount. 

 

http://www.kfdmn.com/
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(3) Interest on the Bonds is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or 

in taxable net income of individuals, estates or trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes.  Interest on the 

Bonds is includable in taxable income of corporations and financial institutions for purposes of the 

Minnesota franchise tax measured by income.  Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference 

required to be included in the computation of "alternative minimum taxable income" for purposes of the 

federal alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals and other taxpayers under Section 55 of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the "Code") or for purposes of the Minnesota alternative 

minimum tax applicable to individuals, trusts and estates.  Interest on the Bonds is includable in adjusted 

current earnings of corporations in determining alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the 

federal and Minnesota alternative minimum taxes applicable to corporations. 

 

(4) The opinion set forth in paragraph (3) above is subject to the condition that the District 

comply with all the requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 

Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal and 

state income tax purposes.  The District has covenanted in the resolution authorizing the issuance of the 

Bonds to comply with these continuing requirements.  Noncompliance with these covenants by the 

District following the issuance of the Bonds may result in inclusion of interest on the Bonds in federal 

gross income and Minnesota taxable net income for federal and Minnesota income tax purposes 

retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  Except as stated in this opinion, we express no opinion 

regarding federal, state or other tax consequences caused by the receipt or accrual of interest on or arising 

with respect to ownership of the Bonds. 

 

(5) The Bonds have not been designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the 

purposes of Section 265 of the Code relating to the deduction of interest expenses allocable to the Bonds 

by financial institutions. 

 

DATED at Mendota Heights, Minnesota, this 18th day of February, 2016. 

 

 

KNUTSON, FLYNN & DEANS 

Professional Association 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES 
 
 
The Series 2016A Bonds 
 
 
 This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by 
Independent School District No. 911 (Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools), State of Minnesota (the 
"District"), in connection with the issuance of its General Obligation School Building Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2016A (the "Bonds").  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the School 
Board on January 21, 2016 (the "Resolution").  The District has covenanted and obligated itself to be 
bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 (the "State Payment Law" described in 
the Official Statement for the Bonds) which provides for payment by the State of Minnesota in the event 
of a potential default of a District obligation.  The District covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Bondholders or beneficial owners, if different, 
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  This 
Disclosure Certificate constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule. 
 

SECTION 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 

"Audited Financial Statements" shall mean the financial statements of the District audited 
annually by an independent certified public accounting firm and prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles or as otherwise required by Minnesota law for the preceding Fiscal Year, 
including a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 
 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the District, or any successor Dissemination Agent which has 
been designated in writing by the District and which has filed with the District a written acceptance of 
such designation. 
 
 "EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system: www.emma.msrb.org, 
established by the MSRB and which contains a component that includes a continuing disclosure service 
for the receipt and public availability of continuing disclosure documents and related information to be 
submitted by issuers, obligated persons, and their agents pursuant to continuing disclosure undertakings 
entered into consistent with the Rule. 
 

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the fiscal year of the District. 
 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to 
comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds. 
 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and 
including written interpretations thereof by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

  

http://www.emma.msrb.org/
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SECTION 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. 
 

(a)  The District shall provide, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, as soon as 
available, but not later than June 30, 2016, and twelve (12) months after the end of each Fiscal Year 
during which the Bonds are outstanding, to the MSRB, in an electronic format through the use of EMMA, 
an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  
The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Certificate; provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the District may be submitted separately 
from the balance of the Annual Report and shall be submitted if and when available.  If audited financial 
statements are not available by the date specified above, the District shall submit unaudited financial 
statements by that date to the MSRB and will submit the audited financial statements as soon as they are 
available. 
 

(b)  If the District is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in 
subsection (a) above, the District shall send a timely notice to the MSRB. 
 

(c)  The Dissemination Agent shall:   
 

(i)  determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the required method of 
submission to the MSRB and (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the District) 

 
(ii)  file a report with the District certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to 
this Disclosure Certificate and stating the date it was provided. 

 
SECTION 4.  Content of Annual Reports.  The District's Annual Report shall contain or 

incorporate by reference the following: 
 

1.  An annual Audited Financial Statement. 
 

2.  Updates of the operating and financial data included in the Official Statement under 
headings substantially similar to the following or containing financial information directly relating to the 
following: "District Property Values", "District Indebtedness" and "District Tax Rates, Levies and 
Collections." 
 
 All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by identifying information as 
prescribed by the MSRB. 
 

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been 
submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document incorporated by 
reference is a final official statement, it must also be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (MSRB).  The District shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by 
reference. 
 

SECTION 5.  Reporting of Significant Events. 
 

(a)  This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the 
following events, with respect to the Bonds: 
 

1.  Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 

2.  Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 

3.  Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
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4.  Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 

5.  Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
 

6.  Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting 
the tax status of the security; 
 

7.  Modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 
 

8.  Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 

9.  Defeasances; 
 

10.  Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if 
material; 
 

11.  Rating changes; 
 
12.  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person; 
 
13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated 

person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary 
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of 
a definitive agreement relating to any such action, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

 
14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material. 
 

(b)  Whenever a Listed Event occurs, the District shall in a timely manner not in excess 
of ten business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event file a notice of such occurrence with the 
MSRB.  
 

SECTION 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District's obligations under this 
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 
the Bonds. 
 

SECTION 7.  Dissemination Agent.   The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, including 
but not limited to its duties under Sections 3 and 5 hereof, and may discharge any such Agent, with or 
without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. 
 

SECTION 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of counsel expert in 
federal securities laws, to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the 
undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof 
but taking into account any subsequent change in or official interpretation of the Rule. 
 
 If this Disclosure Certificate is amended, the District will disclose such amendment, together with 
a narrative explanation of that amendment, to the MSRB with its annual financial information disclosure. 
 

SECTION 9.  Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth 
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in 
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any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 
Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice 
of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure 
Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such 
information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 
 

SECTION 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of 
this Disclosure Certificate, any Bondholder or beneficial owner may take such actions as may be 
necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the 
District to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Resolution or with respect to the Bonds, 
and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply 
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 
 

SECTION 11.  Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, 
and the District agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its 
officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the 
costs and expenses (including attorney fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding 
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of the 
District under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment 
of the Bonds. 
 

SECTION 12.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders from time to time of the 
Bonds or the beneficial owners, if different, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
 
 SECTION 13.  Reserved Rights.  The District reserves the right to discontinue providing any 
information required under the Rule if a final determination should be made by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the Rule is invalid or otherwise unlawful or to modify the Undertaking under this 
Disclosure Certificate if the District determines that such modification is required by the Rule, or by a 
court of competent jurisdiction 
 
Dated this 18

th
 day of February, 2016  INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

      (CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 
      ISANTI AND CHISAGO COUNTIES 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

By:  ____________________________________ 
Chair 

 
And:  ___________________________________ 

Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 [Signature Page for Continuing Disclosure Certificate]  
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The Series 2016C Bonds 
 
This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by 

Independent School District No. 911 (Cambridge-Isanti Public Schools), State of Minnesota (the 
"District"), in connection with the issuance of its General Obligation Alternative Facilities Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2016C (the "Bonds").  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the 
School Board on January 21, 2016 (the "Resolution").  The District has covenanted and obligated itself to 
be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 (the "State Payment Law" described 
in the Official Statement for the Bonds) which provides for payment by the State of Minnesota in the 
event of a potential default of a District obligation.  The District covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Bondholders or beneficial owners, if different, 
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  This 
Disclosure Certificate constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule. 
 

SECTION 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 

"Audited Financial Statements" shall mean the financial statements of the District audited 
annually by an independent certified public accounting firm and prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles or as otherwise required by Minnesota law for the preceding Fiscal Year, 
including a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 
 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the District, or any successor Dissemination Agent which has 
been designated in writing by the District and which has filed with the District a written acceptance of 
such designation. 
 
 "EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system: www.emma.msrb.org, 
established by the MSRB and which contains a component that includes a continuing disclosure service 
for the receipt and public availability of continuing disclosure documents and related information to be 
submitted by issuers, obligated persons, and their agents pursuant to continuing disclosure undertakings 
entered into consistent with the Rule. 
 

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the fiscal year of the District. 
 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to 
comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds. 
 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and 
including written interpretations thereof by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

SECTION 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. 
 

(a)  The District shall provide, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, as soon as 
available, but not later than June 30, 2016, and twelve (12) months after the end of each Fiscal Year 
during which the Bonds are outstanding, to the MSRB, in an electronic format through the use of EMMA, 

http://www.emma.msrb.org/
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an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  
The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Certificate; provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the District may be submitted separately 
from the balance of the Annual Report and shall be submitted if and when available.  If audited financial 
statements are not available by the date specified above, the District shall submit unaudited financial 
statements by that date to the MSRB and will submit the audited financial statements as soon as they are 
available. 
 

(b)  If the District is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in 
subsection (a) above, the District shall send a timely notice to the MSRB. 
 

(c)  The Dissemination Agent shall:   
 

(i)  determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the required method of 
submission to the MSRB and (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the District) 

 
(ii)  file a report with the District certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to 
this Disclosure Certificate and stating the date it was provided. 

 
SECTION 4.  Content of Annual Reports.  The District's Annual Report shall contain or 

incorporate by reference the following: 
 

1.  An annual Audited Financial Statement. 
 

2.  Updates of the operating and financial data included in the Official Statement under 
headings substantially similar to the following or containing financial information directly relating to the 
following: "District Property Values", "District Indebtedness" and "District Tax Rates, Levies and 
Collections." 
 
 All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by identifying information as 
prescribed by the MSRB. 
 

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been 
submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document incorporated by 
reference is a final official statement, it must also be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (MSRB).  The District shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by 
reference. 
 

SECTION 5.  Reporting of Significant Events. 
 

(a)  This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the 
following events, with respect to the Bonds: 
 

1.  Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 

2.  Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 

3.  Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
 

4.  Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 

5.  Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
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6.  Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting 
the tax status of the security; 
 

7.  Modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 
 

8.  Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 

9.  Defeasances; 
 

10.  Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if 
material; 
 

11.  Rating changes; 
 
12.  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person; 
 
13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated 

person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary 
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of 
a definitive agreement relating to any such action, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

 
14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material. 
 

(b)  Whenever a Listed Event occurs, the District shall in a timely manner not in excess 
of ten business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event file a notice of such occurrence with the 
MSRB.  
 

SECTION 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District's obligations under this 
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 
the Bonds. 
 

SECTION 7.  Dissemination Agent.   The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, including 
but not limited to its duties under Sections 3 and 5 hereof, and may discharge any such Agent, with or 
without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. 
 

SECTION 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of counsel expert in 
federal securities laws, to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the 
undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof 
but taking into account any subsequent change in or official interpretation of the Rule. 
 
 If this Disclosure Certificate is amended, the District will disclose such amendment, together with 
a narrative explanation of that amendment, to the MSRB with its annual financial information disclosure. 
 

SECTION 9.  Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth 
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in 
any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 
Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice 
of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure 
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Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such 
information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 
 

SECTION 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of 
this Disclosure Certificate, any Bondholder or beneficial owner may take such actions as may be 
necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the 
District to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Resolution or with respect to the Bonds, 
and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply 
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 
 

SECTION 11.  Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, 
and the District agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its 
officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the 
costs and expenses (including attorney fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding 
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of the 
District under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment 
of the Bonds. 
 

SECTION 12.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders from time to time of the 
Bonds or the beneficial owners, if different, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
 

SECTION 13.  Reserved Rights.  The District reserves the right to discontinue providing any 
information required under the Rule if a final determination should be made by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the Rule is invalid or otherwise unlawful or to modify the Undertaking under this 
Disclosure Certificate if the District determines that such modification is required by the Rule, or by a 
court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Dated the 18th day of February, 2016. 
 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 
(CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 
ISANTI AND CHISAGO COUNTIES, MINNESOTA 

 
By:  ______________________________________ 

Chair 
 

And:  _____________________________________ 
Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Signature page to Continuing Disclosure Certificate) 
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SUMMARY OF TAX LEVIES, PAYMENT PROVISIONS, AND 
MINNESOTA REAL PROPERTY VALUATION 

 
 
Following is a summary of certain statutory provisions relative to tax levy procedures, tax payment and 
credit procedures, and the mechanics of real property valuation.  The summary does not purport to be 
inclusive of all such provisions or of the specific provisions discussed, and is qualified by reference to the 
complete text of applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the State of Minnesota. 
 
 
Property Valuations (Chapter 273, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Assessor's Estimated Market Value.  Each parcel of real property subject to taxation must, by statute, be 
appraised at least once every five years as of January 2 of the year of appraisal.  With certain exceptions, 
all property is valued at its market value, which is the value the assessor determines to be the price the 
property to be fairly worth, and which is referred to as the “Estimated Market Value.”  The 2013 
Minnesota Legislature established the Estimated Market Value as the value used to calculate a 
municipality’s legal debt limit. 
 
Economic Market Value.  The Economic Market Value is the value of locally assessed real property 
(Assessor’s Estimated Market Value) divided by the sales ratio as provided by the State of Minnesota 
Department of Revenue plus the estimated market value of personal property, utilities, railroad, and 
minerals. 
 
Taxable Market Value.  The Taxable Market Value is the value that Net Tax Capacity is based on, after 
all reductions, limitations, exemptions and deferrals. 
 
Net Tax Capacity.  The Net Tax Capacity is the value upon which net taxes are levied, extended and 
collected.  The Net Tax Capacity is computed by applying the class rate percentages specific to each type 
of property classification against the Taxable Market Value.  Class rate percentages vary depending on 
the type of property as shown on the last page of this Appendix.  The formulas and class rates for 
converting Taxable Market Value to Net Tax Capacity represent a basic element of the State's property 
tax relief system and are subject to annual revisions by the State Legislature.  Property taxes are the sum 
of the amounts determined by (i) multiplying the Net Tax Capacity by the tax capacity rate, and 
(ii) multiplying the referendum market value by the market value rate. 
 
Market Value Homestead Exclusion.  In 2011, the Market Value Homestead Exclusion Program (MVHE) 
was implemented to offset the elimination of the Market Value Homestead Credit Program that provided 
relief to certain homesteads.  The MVHE reduces the taxable market value of a homestead with an 
Assessor’s Estimated Market Value up to $413,800 in an attempt to result in a property tax similar to the 
effective property tax prior to the elimination of the homestead credit.  The MVHE applies to property 
classified as Class 1a or 1b and Class 2a, and causes a decrease in the District’s aggregate Taxable Market 
Value, even if the Assessor’s Estimated Market Value on the same properties did not decline. 
 
 
Property Tax Payments and Delinquencies 
   (Chapters 275, 276, 277, 279-282 and 549, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Ad valorem property taxes levied by local governments in Minnesota are extended and collected by the 
various counties within the State.  Each taxing jurisdiction is required to certify the annual tax levy to the 
county auditor within five (5) working days after December 20 of the year preceding the collection year.  
A listing of property taxes due is prepared by the county auditor and turned over to the county treasurer 
on or before the first business day in March. 
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The county treasurer is responsible for collecting all property taxes within the county.  Real estate and 
personal property tax statements are mailed out by March 31.  One-half (1/2) of the taxes on real property 
is due on or before May 15.  The remainder is due on or before October 15.  Real property taxes not paid 
by their due date are assessed a penalty on homestead property of 2% until May 31 and increased to 4% 
on June 1.  The penalty on nonhomestead property is assessed at a rate of 4% until May 31 and increased 
to 8% on June 1.  Thereafter, an additional 1% penalty shall accrue each month through October 1 of the 
collection year for unpaid real property taxes.  In the case of the second installment of real property taxes 
due October 15, a penalty of 2% on homestead property and 4% on nonhomestead property is assessed.  
The penalty for homestead property increases to 6% on November 1 and again to 8% on December 1.  
The penalty for nonhomestead property increases to 8% on November 1 and again to 12% on 
December 1.  Personal property taxes remaining unpaid on May 16 are deemed to be delinquent and a 
penalty of 8% attaches to the unpaid tax.  However, personal property that is owned by a tax-exempt 
entity, but is treated as taxable by virtue of a lease agreement, is subject to the same delinquent property 
tax penalties as real property.   
 
On the first business day of January of the year following collection all delinquencies are subject to an 
additional 2% penalty, and those delinquencies outstanding as of February 15 are filed for a tax lien 
judgment with the district court.  By March 20 the county auditor files a publication of legal action and a 
mailing of notice of action to delinquent parties.  Those property interests not responding to this notice 
have judgment entered for the amount of the delinquency and associated penalties.  The amount of the 
judgment is subject to a variable interest determined annually by the Department of Revenue, and equal to 
the adjusted prime rate charged by banks but in no event is the rate less than 10% or more than 14%. 
 
Property owners subject to a tax lien judgment generally have three years (3) to redeem the property.  
After expiration of the redemption period, unredeemed properties are declared tax forfeit with title held in 
trust by the State of Minnesota for the respective taxing districts.  The county auditor, or equivalent 
thereof, then sells those properties not claimed for a public purpose at auction.  The net proceeds of the 
sale are first dedicated to the satisfaction of outstanding special assessments on the parcel, with any 
remaining balance in most cases being divided on the following basis:  county - 40%; town or city - 20%; 
and school district - 40%.  
 
 
Property Tax Credits (Chapter 273, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
In addition to adjusting the taxable value for various property types, primary elements of Minnesota's 
property tax relief system are:  property tax levy reduction aids; the homestead credit refund and the 
renter’s property tax refund, which relate property taxes to income and provide relief on a sliding income 
scale; and targeted tax relief, which is aimed primarily at easing the effect of significant tax increases.  
The homestead credit refund, the renter’s property tax refund, and targeted credits are reimbursed to the 
taxpayer upon application by the taxpayer.  Property tax levy reduction aid includes educational aids, 
local governmental aid, equalization aid, county program aid and disparity reduction aid. 
 
 
Debt Limitations 
 
All Minnesota municipalities (counties, cities, towns and school districts) are subject to statutory “net 
debt” limitations under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.53.  Net debt is defined as the 
amount remaining after deducting from gross debt the amount of current revenues that are applicable 
within the current fiscal year to the payment of any debt and the aggregate of the principal of the 
following: 
 

1. Obligations issued for improvements that are payable wholly or partially from the proceeds of 
special assessments levied upon benefited property. 

2. Warrants or orders having no definite or fixed maturity. 

3. Obligations payable wholly from the income from revenue producing conveniences. 
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4. Obligations issued to create or maintain a permanent improvement revolving fund. 

5. Obligations issued for the acquisition and betterment of public waterworks systems, and public 
lighting, heating or power systems, and any combination thereof, or for any other public 
convenience from which revenue is or may be derived. 

6. Certain debt service loans and capital loans made to school districts. 

7. Certain obligations to repay loans. 

8. Obligations specifically excluded under the provisions of law authorizing their issuance. 

9. Certain obligations to pay pension fund liabilities. 

10. Debt service funds for the payment of principal and interest on obligations other than those 
described above. 

11. Obligations issued to pay judgments against the municipality. 
 
 
Levies for General Obligation Debt 
(Sections 475.61 and 475.74, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Any municipality that issues general obligation debt must, at the time of issuance, certify levies to the 
county auditor of the county(ies) within which the municipality is situated.  Such levies shall be in an 
amount that if collected in full will, together with estimates of other revenues pledged for payment of the 
obligations, produce at least five percent in excess of the amount needed to pay principal and interest 
when due.  Notwithstanding any other limitations upon the ability of a taxing unit to levy taxes, its ability 
to levy taxes for a deficiency in prior levies for payment of general obligation indebtedness is without 
limitation as to rate or amount. 
 

  



 

III-4 

STATUTORY FORMULAE:  CONVERSION OF TAXABLE MARKET VALUE (TMV) TO  
NET TAX CAPACITY FOR MAJOR PROPERTY CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
 

 Local Tax 

Payable 

Local Tax 

Payable 

Local Tax 

Payable 
Property Type 2012-2014 2015 2016 

Residential Homestead (1a) 
   

 Up to $500,000  1.00%  1.00%  1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25%  1.25%  1.25% 

Residential Non-homestead 
   

   Single Unit (4bb1)    

 Up to $500,000  1.00%  1.00%  1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25%  1.25%  1.25% 
   1-3 unit and undeveloped land (4b1)  1.25%  1.25%  1.25% 

Market Rate Apartments 
   

  Regular (4a)  1.25%  1.25%  1.25% 

  Low-Income (4d)  0.75%   

 Up to $100,000   0.75%  
 Over $100,000   0.25%  
     
 Up to $106,000    0.75% 
 Over $106,000    0.25% 

Commercial/Industrial/Public Utility (3a) 
   

 Up to $150,000  1.50%(a)  1.50%(a)  1.50%(a) 
 Over $150,000  2.00%(a)  2.00%(a)  2.00%(a) 
 Electric Generation Machinery  2.00%  2.00%  2.00% 

Commercial Seasonal Residential 
   

   Homestead Resorts (1c)    

 Up to $600,000  0.55%  0.50%  0.50% 
 $600,000 - $2,300,000  1.00%  1.00%  1.00% 
 Over $2,300,000  1.25%(a)  1.25%(a)  1.25%(a) 

   Seasonal Resorts (4c)    

 Up to $500,000  1.00%(a)  1.00%(a)  1.00%(a) 
 Over $500,000  1.25%(a)  1.25%(a)  1.25%(a) 

Non-Commercial (4c12) 
   

 Up to $500,000  1.00%(a)(b)  1.00%(a)(b)  1.00%(a)(b) 
 Over $500,000  1.25%(a)(b)  1.25%(a)(b)  1.25%(a)(b) 

Disabled Homestead (1b)    
 Up to $50,000  0.45%  0.45%  0.45% 

Agricultural Land & Buildings 
   

   Homestead (2a)    

 Up to $500,000   1.00%  1.00%  1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25%  1.25%  1.25% 
   Remainder of Farm    
 Up to $2,140,000(c) 0.50%(b) 0.50%(b) 0.50%(b) 
 Over $2,140,000(c)  1.00%(b)  1.00%(b)  1.00%(b) 
   Non-homestead (2b)  1.00%(b)  1.00%(b)  1.00%(b) 

 
(a)

 State tax is applicable to these classifications. 
(b)

 Exempt from referendum market value based taxes.   
(c)

 Legislative increases, payable 2016.  Historical valuations are:  Payable 2015 - $1,900,000; Payable 2014 - $1,500,000; 
Payable 2013 - $1,290,000; and Payable 2012 - $1,210,000. 

 
NOTE: For purposes of the State general property tax only, the net tax capacity of non-commercial class 4c(1) seasonal 

residential recreational property has the following class rate structure:  First $76,000 – 0.40%; $76,000 to $500,000 – 
1.00%; and over $500,000 – 1.25%.  In addition to the State tax base exemptions referenced by property classification, 
airport property exempt from city and school district property taxes under M.S. 473.625 is exempt from the State 
general property tax (MSP International Airport and Holman Field in St. Paul are exempt under this provision). 
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EXCERPT OF 2015 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
Data on the following pages was extracted from the District’s Annual Financial Statements for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015.  The reader should be aware that the complete financial statements may contain 
additional information which may interpret, explain or modify the data presented here. 
 
 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITQR'S REPQRT 

To the School Board and Management of 
Independent School District No. 911 

Cambridie, Minnesota 

REPORT ON THE Fl.NANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of1he governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Independent School District No. 911 (the District) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

MANAGEMENT'S REsPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL SrATEMENTS 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free ftom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eiTOr. 

AVDITOR'S RESPONSIBlLITY 

Our responsibility is to expteSs opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards appticable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stmrdards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finaucial statements are free from material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fiiUillcial statements. The prccedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen~ including the asstaament 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fta.ud oi' error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
cin:umstances, but not for the pUipOSe of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we bave obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

OPINIONS 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on the previous page present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective fmancial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund infonnation of the District as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, wbere applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for 
the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

EMPHASIS OF MATI'ER. 

AB described in Note 1 of the notes to basic financial statements, the District has implemented 
Govotnme~~tal Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Flnonckll 
Reporting for Pensions-an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 27, during the year ended June 30, 2015. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

OTHER MATTERS 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United S1ates of America require that the Manqemcnt's 
Discussion and Analysis and 1he required supplementary infonnation (RSI), as listed in the table of 
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Sucb infonnation, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context We have applied certain limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonnation for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries. the basic financial statements. and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit oftbe basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the infannat:ion because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Otber Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemeats that coUectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The introductmy section, supplemental information, and 
other district information, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for pwposes of additional analysis 
and arc not roquired parts of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule ofExpClldituras of 
Fedeml Awards is presented for purposas of additional analysis as roquired by !be U.S. Office of 
Maaagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
OrgcmU:ations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the District. The 
accompauying Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS) Compliance Table is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Minnesota Department of Education, and is 
also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the District. 

The supplemental information, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awvds, and UFARS Compliant:e 
Table are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such infonnation has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information diiOCtly to !be underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the infonnation is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and other district infonnation sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Pr:lor Year Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the District's 2014 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified audit 
opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities. each major :fund. and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation in our report dated December 16, 2014. In our opinion, the partial 
comparative infonnation presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it bas been derived. 

OTHI!:R REPoRTING REQUIRED BY GoVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 
2015 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. contmcts, grant agreements, and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Minneapolis.. Minnesota 
December 22, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Net Position 
as ofJune 3 0, 201 S 

(With Partial Comparative 1nfonnation as of June 30, 2014) 

Assets 
Cash and temporary investments s 
Receivables 

Current taxes 
Delinquent taxes 
Accounts and interest 
Due from other governmental units 

Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Restricted assets - temporarily restricted 
Cash and investments for debt service 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Not depreciated 
Depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of"resources 
Pension plan deferments- PERA and TRA 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources s 

Liabilities 
Salaries payable s 
Accounts and contracts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to other governmental units 
Unearned revenue 

Long-term liabilities 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total long-term liabilities 

Tota1liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 
Pension plan deferments - PERA and TRA 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for 

Capital asset acquisition 
Debt service 
Food service 
Community service 
Other purposes (state funding restrictions) 

Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Total1iabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position s 

See notes to basic financial statements 

Governmental Activities 
2015 2014 

22,067,164 s 30,831,100 

5,866,950 4,609,961 
258,663 256,607 

18,067 25,165 
5,083,269 4,618,340 

87,717 92,388 
127,769 407,705 

26,304,588 

5,735,924 5,744,405 
73,355,620 65,944,858 
79,091,544 71,689,263 

I 12,601,143 138,835,117 

6,183,987 

118,785,130 $ 138,835,117 

1,849,099 $ 1,697,695 
4,415,581 4,611,655 

723,889 1,117,869 
225,515 1,389,765 
66,315 64,829 

5,489,923 30,436,761 
97,288,487 67,646,878 

102,778,410 98,083,639 

110,058,809 106,965,452 

11,533,833 9,132,237 
9,539,608 

21,073,441 9,132,237 

11,483,202 11,826,141 

1,628,734 2,035,431 
394,419 
771,522 694,049 
121,839 193,877 

2,209,949 3,133,168 
(28,956, 785) 4,854,762 
(12,347,120) 22,737,428 

118,785,130 s 138,835,117 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30,2015 

(With Partial Comparative Infonnation for the Year Ended June 30, 2014) 

2015 
Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 

Program Revenues Net Position 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and Governmental 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities 

Governmental activities 
Administration $ 2,302,173 $ $ 3,121 $ (2,299,052) 
District support services 1,608,709 39,321 (1,569,388) 
Elementary and secondary 
regular instruction 21,069,878 906,470 722,510 (19,440,898) 

Vocational education 
instruction 1,018,878 59,175 (959,703) 

Special education instruction 7,849,899 4,639,492 {3,21 0,407) 
Instructional support services 3,193,916 4,416 {3,189,500) 
Pupil support services 4,411,648 75,379 (4,336,269) 
Sites and buildings 6,983,206 1,676 155,612 {6,825,918) 
Fiscal and other fixed cost 

programs 222,829 (222,829) 
Food service 2,197,231 968,672 1,309,886 81,327 
Community service 1,873,701 1,034,452 360,410 (478,839) 
Unallocated depreciation 1,808,367 (1,808,367) 
Interest and fiscal charges 2,921,842 (2,921,842) 

Total governmental activities $ 57,462,277 $ 2,950,591 $ 7,330,001 (47,181,685) 

General revenues 
Taxes 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 3,355,298 
Property taxes, levied for community service 310,316 
Property taxes, levied for debt service 5,908,056 

General grants and aids 37,205,834 
Other general revenues 743,778 
Investment earnings 55,699 

Total general revenues 47,578,981 

Change in net position 397,296 

Net position - beginning, as previously reported 22,737,428 
Change in accounting principle (35,481,844) 
Net position - beginning, as restated (12,744,416) 

Net position - ending $ (12,347,120) 

See notes to basic financial statements 

2014 
Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 

Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ (2,228,425) 
(875,380) 

(18,434,066) 

(869,400) 
(2,404,350) 
(3,012,967) 
(4,238,590) 
(5,044,952) 

(211,516) 
26,122 

(382,719) 
(1,814,662) 
(3,348,169l 

(42,839,074) 

1,101,775 
166,056 

5,809,264 
35,312,928 

659,752 
124,604 

43,174,379 

335,305 

22,402,123 

22,402,123 

$ 22,737,428 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
as of June 30,2015 

(With Partial Comparative Information as of June 30, 2014) 

Capital 
Projects-
Building Debt 

General Fund Construction Service Fund 

Assets 
Cash and temporary investments $ 12,206,800 $ 4,400,967 $ 4,090,748 
Cash and investments held by trustee 
Receivables 

Current taxes 2,551,945 3,165,426 
Delinquent taxes 72,173 176,255 
Accounts and interest 17,967 
Due from other governmental units 4,994,546 34,040 

Inventory 66,124 
Prepaid items 127,769 

Total assets $ 20,037,324 $ 4,400,967 $ 7,466,469 

Liabilities 
Salaries payable $ 1,795,698 $ $ 
Accounts and contracts payable 2,600,349 1,605,949 
Due to other governmental units 225,515 
Unearned revenue 25,000 

Total liabilities 4,646,562 1,605,949 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Unavailable revenue- delinquent taxes 71,157 174,271 
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 4,885,716 6,348,161 

Total deferred inflows of resources 4,956,873 6,522,432 

Fund balances (deficit) 
Nonspendab1e 193,893 
Restricted 3,810,285 2,795,018 944,037 
Assigned 625,454 
Unassigned 5,804,257 

Total fund balances 10,433,889 2,795,018 944,037 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fund balances $ 20,037,324 $ 4,400,967 $ 7,466,469 

See notes to basic fmancial statements 

Nonmajor Total Governmental Funds 
Funds 2015 2014 

$ 1,264,002 $ 21,962,517 $ 30,773,112 
26,304,588 

149,579 5,866,950 4,609,961 
10,235 258,663 256,607 

100 18,067 25,165 
54,683 5,083,269 4,618,340 
21,593 87,717 92,388 

127,769 407,705 

$ 1,500,192 $ 33,404,952 $ 67,087,866 

$ 53,401 $ 1,849,099 $ 1,697,695 
187,015 4,393,313 4,594,429 

225,515 1,389,765 
41,315 66,315 64,829 

281,731 6,534,242 7,746,718 

10,130 255,558 250,854 
299,956 11,533,833 9,132,237 
310,086 11,789,391 9,383,091 

21,593 215,486 500,093 
1,096,318 8,645,658 44,096,835 

625,454 1,910,194 
(209,536) 5,594,721 3,450,935 
908,375 15,081,319 49,958,057 

$ 1,500,192 $ 33,404,952 $ 67,087,866 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the 
Statement ofNet Position 

Governmental Funds 
as of June 30, 20 15 

(With Partial Comparative Information as of June 30, 2014) 

Total fund balances- governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are 
different because: 

Capital assets are included in net position, but are excluded from fund balances 
because they do not represent financial resources. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities are included in net position, but are excluded from fund 
balances until due and payable. 

General obligation bonds 
Certificates of participation 
(Premium) discount on bonds 
Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability - PERA 
Net pension liability - TRA 
Severance benefits 
Net OPEB obligations 

Accrued interest payable on long-tenn debt is included in net position, but is 
excluded from fund balances until due and payable. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain 
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service 
funds are included in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position. 

The recognition of certain revenues and expenses/expenditures differ between 
the full accrual governmental activities financial statements and the modified 
accrual governmental fund financial statements. 

Deferred outflows - PERA and TRA pension plans 
Deferred inflows- PERA and TRA pension plans 

Deferred inflows - delinquent taxes receivable 

Total net position -governmental activities 

See notes to basic fmancial statements 

2015 

$ 15,081,319 

] 30,4 71,207 
(51,379,663) 

(75,080,000) 
(2,740,000) 
7,445,038 

(319,923) 
(8,230,018) 

(23,270,036) 
(454,658) 
(128,813) 

(723,889} 

82,379 

6,183,987 
{9,539,608) 

255,558 

$ (12,347,120) 

2014 

$ 49,958,057 

119,203,459 
(47,514,196) 

(104,985,000) 

7,888,672 
(23,386) 

(318,375) 

(498,593) 
{146,957) 

(1,117,869) 

40,762 

250,854 

$ 22,737,428 

IV-6



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes inl:'und Balances 
Governmental Funds 

YearEndedJune30,2015 
(With Partial Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2014) 

Capital 
Projects-
Building Debt 

General Fund Constr111.1ion Service Fund 

Revenue 
Local sources 

Property taxes s 3,344,896 $ $ 5,912,563 
Investment earnings 5,587 27,363 22,135 
Olhcr 2,035,484 

State sources 40,858,535 340,124 
F cderal sources 1,144,477 

Total revenue 47,388,979 27,363 6,274,&22 

lixpc:nditures 
Current 

Administration 2,340,-939 
District support services 1,694,804 
Elementary and secondary regular instruction 21,300,823 
Vocarionnl education instn~etion 1,034,272 
Special education instruction 7,996,294 
lnstnJctional support services 3,277,670 
Pupil support services 4,801,515 
Sites and buildings 5,411,264 
Fiscal and other fi~ed cost pro~,>roi!Ils 222,829 
Food service 
Community service 

Capital outlay 10,433,586 
Debt service 

Principal 23,386 4,360,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 84 2,872,104 

Total expenditures 48.103,880 10,433,586 7,232,104 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue 
ov~:r expenditures (714,901) (I 0,406,223) (957,282) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Debt issued 2,740,000 
Premium on debt issued 
Sale of capital assets 810 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ~25,5451000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 810 2,740,000 (25,545,000) 

Kct change in fund balances (714,091) (7,666,223) (26,502,282) 

Fund balances 
Beginning of year 11,147,980 10,461,241 271446,319 

End of year $ 10,433,889 s 2,795,018 $ 944,037 

Sec notes to basic financial statements 

Total Governmental Funds 
Nonmujor Funds 2015 2014 

$ 311,507 $ 9,558,966 $ 7,Jl2,384 
614 55,699 124,604 

2,032,225 4,067,709 4,078,989 
575,731 41,774,390 40,084,110 

1,172,220 2,316,697 2,282,016 
4,092,297 57,783,461 53,682,103 

2,340,939 2,249,549 
1,694,804 941,938 

21,300,!!23 20,088,506 
1,034,272 947,339 
7,996,294 7,101,106 
3,277,670 3,026,039 
4,801,515 4,406,453 
5,411,264 5,040,166 

222,829 211,516 
2,172,249 2,172,249 2,173,028 
1,864,333 1,864,333 1,985,137 

50,169 10,483,755 2,751,459 

4,383,386 3,882,404 
2,872,188 21694,753 

41086,751 69,856,321 57,499.393 

5,545 ( 12,072,860) (3,817 ,290) 

2,740,000 12,505,000 
524,910 

312 1,122 3,022 
(25,545,000) 

312 (22,803,878) 13,032,932 

5,858 (34,876,'138) 9,215,642 

902,517 49,958,057 40,742,415 

s 908,375 s 15,081,319 $ 49,958,057 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Reconciliation of the Statement of 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities 
Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 
(With Partial Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 20 14) 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are recorded as net position and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation expense. However, fund balances are reduced for the full cost of capital outlays at the time of 
purchase. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 

A gain or loss on the disposal of capital assets, including the difference between the carrying value and any 
related sale proceeds, is included in the change in net position. However, only the sale proceeds are 
included in the change in fund balances. 

The amount of debt issued is reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing. Debt obligations 
are not revenues in the Statement of Activities, but rather constitute long-term liabilities. 

Repayment of long-term debt does not affect the change in net position. However, it reduces fund 
balances. 

General obligation bonds 
Capital lease payable 

Interest on long-term debt is included in the change in net position as it accrues, regardless of when 
payment is due. However, it is included in the change in fund balances when due. 

Debt issuance premiums and discounts are included in the change in net position as they are amortized 
over the life of the debt. However, they are included in the change in fund balances upon issuance as other 
financing sources and uses. 

Certain expenses are included in the change in net position, but do not require the use of current funds, 
and are not included in the change in fund balances. 

Compensated absences 
Net pension liability- PERA 
Net pepsion liability- TRA 
Severance benefits 
Other post-employment benefits 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. 
The change in net position of the internal service funds is included in the governmental activities in the 
Statement of Activities. 

The recognition of certain revenues and expenses/expenditures differ between the full accrual 
governmental activities financial statements and the modified accrual governmental fund financial 
statements. 

Deferred outflows- PERA and TRA pension plans 
Deferred inflows- PERA and TRA pension plans 
Deferred inflows - delinquent taxes receivable 

Change in net position - governmental activities 

See notes to basic financial statements 

$ 

$ 

2015 2014 

(34,876, 738) s 9,215,642 

11,453,607 4,501,291 
(4,039,290) (3,714,620) 

(12,036) (15,475) 

(2,740,000) ( 12,505,000) 

29,905,000 3,860,000 
23,386 22,404 

393,980 (62,843) 

(443,634) (1,115,483) 

(1,548) (18,018) 
1,308,000 
4,954,154 

43,935 129,917 
18,144 32,017 

41,617 40,762 

3,903,623 
(9,539,608) 

4,704 (35,2892 

397,296 $ 335,305 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 91 I 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual 

Revenue 
Local sources 

Property taxes $ 3,149,517 $ 3,149,517 $ 3,344,896 
Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 5,587 
Other 1,545,175 1,545,175 2,035,484 

State sources 40,749,826 40,749,826 40,858,535 
Federal sources 1,275,188 1,275,188 1,144,477 

Total revenue 46,739,706 46,739,706 47,388,979 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 2,517,138 2,517,138 2,340,939 
District support services 1,789,319 1,789,319 1,694,804 
Elementary and secondary regular 

instruction 21,716,302 21,716,302 21,300,823 
Vocational education instruction 1,001,190 1,001,190 1,034,272 
Special education instruction 7,580,136 7,580,136 7,996,294 
Instructional support services 3,039,780 3,039,780 3,277,670 
Pupil support services 4,631,197 4,631,197 4,801,515 
Sites and buildings 5,846,248 5,846,248 5,411,264 
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 170,800 170,800 222,829 

Debt service 
Principal 23,386 
Interest and fiscal charges 26,500 26,500 84 

Total expenditures 48,318,610 48,318,610 48,103,880 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue 
over expenditures (1,578,904) (1,578,904) (714,901) 

Other financing sources 
Sale of capital assets 500 500 810 

Net change in fund balances $ {1,578,404) $ (1,578,404) (714,091) 

Fund balances 
Beginning of year 11,147,980 

Endofyear $ 10,433,889 

See notes to basic financial statements 

Over (Under) 
Final Budget 

$ 195,379 
(14,413) 
490,309 
108,709 

(130,711) 
649,273 

(176,199) 
(94,515) 

(415,479) 
33,082 

416,158 
237,890 
170,318 

(434,984) 
52,029 

23,386 
(26.416) 

(214,730) 

864,003 

310 

$ 864,313 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Net Position 
Internal Service Fund 
as of June 30, 2015 

(With Partial Comparative Information as of June 30, 2014) 

2015 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and temporary investments $ 104,647 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Accounts and contracts payable 22,268 

Net position 
Unrestricted $ 82,379 

See notes to basic financial statements 

2014 

$ 57,988 

17,226 

$ 40,762 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Internal Service Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 
(With Partial Comparative Infonnation for the Year Ended June 30, 2014) 

2015 

Operating revenue 
Charges for services 

Contributions from governmental funds $ 381,798 

Operating expenses 
Dental benefit claims 340,181 

Change in net position 41,617 

Net position 
Beginning of year 40,762 

End ofyear $ 82,379 

See notes to basic financial statements 

2014 

$ 291,836 

251,074 

40,762 

$ 40,762 
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 911 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Internal Service Funds 

Year Ended June 30,2015 
(With Partial Comparative Infonnation for the Year Ended June 30, 2014) 

2015 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Contributions from governmental funds $ 381,798 
Payment for dental claims (335,139) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 46,659 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of year 57,988 

End ofyear $ 104,647 

Reconciliation of operating income to net 
cash flows from operating activities 
Operating income $ 41,617 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash flows from operating activities 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts and contracts payable 5,042 

Net cash flows from operating activities $ 46,659 

See notes to basic financial statements 

2014 

$ 291,836 
(233,848} 

57,988 

$ 57,988 

$ 40,762 

17,226 

$ 57,988 
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Agency Funds 

as of June 30, 2015 
(With Partial Comparative lnfonnation as of June 30, 2014) 

2015 

Assets 
Cash and temporary investments (deficit} $ (1,122,005) 
Receivables 

Accounts and interest 309,534 
Due from other governmental units 3,786,374 

Prepaid items 

Total assets $ 2,973,903 

Liabilities 
Salaries payable $ 330,368 
Accounts and contracts payable 942,980 
Due to other governmental units 1,700,555 

Tota1liabilities $ 2,973,903 

See notes to basic financial statements 

2014 

$ (2,421 ,875) 

307,341 
4,734,204 

89,918 

$ 2,709,588 

$ 311,321 
746,193 

1,652,074 

$ 2,709,588 

IV-13



IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 N
O

. 
91

1 

N
ot

es
 to

 B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
5 

N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 

A
. 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

S
ch

oo
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

o.
 

91
1 

(t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t)
 w

as
 f

or
m

ed
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 l

aw
s.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 g
ov

er
ne

d 
by

 a
 s

ev
en

-m
em

be
r 

S
ch

oo
l 

B
oa

rd
 e

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
vo

te
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

se
rv

e 
fo

ur
-y

ea
r 

te
rm

s.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

it
y 

w
it

h 
ac

co
un

ti
ng

 p
ri

nc
ip

le
s 

ge
ne

ra
ll

y 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s 

o
f A

m
er

ic
a,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l u

ni
ts

. 
T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 B

oa
rd

 (
G

A
S

B
) 

is
 t

he
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

st
an

da
rd

 s
et

ti
ng

 b
od

y 
fo

r 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

. 

B
. 

R
ep

or
ti

ng
 E

nt
it

y 

T
he

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l f
un

ds
, d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
, a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 b
oa

rd
s,

 c
om

m
is

si
on

s,
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
s 

th
at

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t, 

al
on

g 
w

it
h 

an
y 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 u

ni
ts

. 

C
om

po
ne

nt
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 l
eg

al
ly

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
en

ti
ti

es
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
(p

ri
m

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t)

 i
s 

fi
na

nc
ia

ll
y 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e,

 o
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ex

cl
us

io
n 

o
f t

he
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

t w
ou

ld
 r

en
de

r 
th

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
m

is
le

ad
in

g.
 T

he
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

us
ed

 t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
if

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
 f

in
an

ci
al

ly
 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

a 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ap

po
in

ts
 t

he
 v

ot
in

g 
m

aj
or

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

t's
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 b
od

y,
 i

s 
ab

le
 t

o 
im

po
se

 i
ts

 w
il

l 
on

 t
he

 p
ot

en
ti

al
 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 u

ni
t, 

is
 i

n 
a 

re
la

ti
on

sh
ip

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 b
en

ef
it

 o
r 

bu
rd

en
 w

it
h 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

t, 
or

 is
 

fi
sc

al
ly

 d
ep

en
de

d 
up

on
 b

y 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

om
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

t. 
B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
es

e 
cr

it
er

ia
, t

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

ts
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t. 

E
xt

ra
cu

rr
ic

ul
ar

 s
tu

de
nt

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

ar
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 p

ri
m

ar
il

y 
by

 s
tu

de
nt

 p
ar

ti
ci

pa
nt

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
f a

n 
ad

ul
t 

an
d 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
ll

y 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

o
f 

sc
ho

ol
 h

ou
rs

. 
In

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s,
 t

he
 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 S

ch
oo

l 
B

oa
rd

 c
an

 e
le

ct
 t

o 
ei

th
er

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
r 

no
t 

co
nt

ro
l 

ex
tr

ac
ur

ri
cu

la
r 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
. 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 

S
ch

oo
l B

oa
rd

 h
as

 e
le

ct
ed

 t
o 

ex
er

ci
se

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
ve

r 
ex

tr
ac

ur
ri

cu
la

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

. 
T

he
re

fo
re

, 
th

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

tr
ac

ur
ri

cu
la

r 
st

ud
en

t a
ct

iv
it

y 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

re
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 

C
. 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t-

W
id

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 (

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

fN
et

 P
os

it
io

n 
an

d 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

ct
iv

it
ie

s)
 d

is
pl

ay
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 r
ep

or
ti

ng
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. T
he

se
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 
o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 t
he

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 f

un
ds

. 
G

en
er

al
ly

, 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f m

at
er

ia
l 

in
te

rf
un

d 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
m

ov
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
de

gr
ee

 t
o 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 d

ir
ec

t 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

f a
 g

iv
en

 f
un

ct
io

n 
or

 
se

gm
en

t i
s 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
pr

og
ra

m
 re

ve
nu

es
. D

ir
ec

t e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
re

 c
le

ar
ly

 id
en

ti
fi

ab
le

 w
it

h 
a 

sp
ec

if
ic

 
fu

nc
ti

on
 o

r 
se

gm
en

t. 
P

ro
gr

am
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
or

 a
pp

li
ca

nt
s 

w
ho

 p
ur

ch
as

e,
 u

se
, 

or
 

di
re

ct
ly

 b
en

ef
it

 fr
om

 g
oo

ds
, s

er
vi

ce
s,

 o
r p

ri
vi

le
ge

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

gi
ve

n 
fu

nc
ti

on
 o

r 
se

gm
en

t a
nd

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
th

at
 a

re
 re

st
ri

ct
ed

 to
 m

ee
ti

ng
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l o
r c

ap
it

al
 re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f a
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r f
un

ct
io

n 
or

 
se

gm
en

t. 
T

ax
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 d
ir

ec
te

d 
re

ve
nu

es
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
st

ea
d 

as
 g

en
er

al
 r

ev
en

ue
s.

 

N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

lF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t f
oc

us
 

an
d 

th
e 

ac
cr

ua
l b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g.
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 w
he

n 
ea

rn
ed

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

he
n 

a 
li

ab
il

it
y 

is
 in

cu
rr

ed
, r

eg
ar

dl
es

s 
o

f t
he

 ti
m

in
g 

o
f r

el
at

ed
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

s.
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xe

s 
ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

ll
y 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 

as
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

in
 t

he
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
le

vi
ed

, 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
ad

va
nc

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h 

a 
st

at
ut

or
y 

"t
ax

 s
hi

ft
" 

de
sc

ri
be

d 
la

te
r 

in
 t

he
se

 n
ot

es
. 

G
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

si
m

il
ar

 i
te

m
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 w

he
n 

al
l 

el
ig

ib
il

it
y 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 i
m

po
se

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

et
. 

F
or

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 i
de

nt
if

ie
d 

w
it

h,
 o

r 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 f

un
ct

io
na

l 
ar

ea
s,

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

e 
is

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
as

 a
 d

ir
ec

t 
ex

pe
ns

e 
in

 t
he

 f
un

ct
io

na
l 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 u

ti
li

ze
 t

he
 r

el
at

ed
 c

ap
it

al
 a

ss
et

s.
 F

or
 

ca
pi

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 t

ha
t 

es
se

nt
ia

ll
y 

se
rv

e 
al

l 
fu

nc
ti

on
al

 a
re

as
, 

de
pr

ec
ia

ti
on

 e
xp

en
se

 i
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
s 

"u
na

ll
oc

at
ed

 
de

pr
ec

ia
ti

on
."

 In
te

re
st

 o
n 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 d

eb
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
n 

in
di

re
ct

 e
xp

en
se

 a
nd

 is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

ct
iv

it
ie

s.
 

D
. 

F
u

n
d

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
fu

nd
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l, 

pr
op

ri
et

ar
y,

 a
nd

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 f

un
ds

. 
M

aj
or

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
ol

um
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

an
d 

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 n

on
m

aj
or

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s 

is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

co
lu

m
n.

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

fo
cu

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

od
if

ie
d 

ac
cr

ua
l b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g.
 U

nd
er

 th
is

 b
as

is
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 re
co

rd
ed

 
in

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
m

an
ne

r:
 

1.
 

R
ev

en
ue

 R
ec

og
ni

ti
on

 -
R

ev
en

ue
 i

s 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 w
he

n 
it

 b
ec

om
es

 m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

"M
ea

su
ra

bl
e"

 m
ea

ns
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
nd

 "
av

ai
la

bl
e"

 m
ea

ns
 

co
ll

ec
ti

bl
e 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

pe
ri

od
 o

r 
so

on
 e

no
ug

h 
th

er
ea

ft
er

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 p
ay

 l
ia

bi
li

ti
es

 o
f t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t p

er
io

d.
 F

or
 th

is
 p

ur
po

se
, t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t g

en
er

al
ly

 c
on

si
de

rs
 re

ve
nu

es
 to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
if

 th
ey

 a
re

 
co

ll
ec

te
d 

w
it

hi
n 

60
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r y
ea

r-
en

d.
 G

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
si

m
il

ar
 it

em
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 w

he
n 

al
l e

li
gi

bi
li

ty
 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 i
m

po
se

d 
by

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
et

. 
S

ta
te

 r
ev

en
ue

 i
s 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 
w

hi
ch

 i
t 

ap
pl

ie
s 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 f
un

di
ng

 f
or

m
ul

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 b

y 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s.
 P

ro
ce

ed
s 

o
f 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 d

eb
t a

nd
 a

cq
ui

si
ti

on
s 

un
de

r 
ca

pi
ta

l l
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
s 

ot
he

r 
fi

na
nc

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s.

 

2.
 

R
ec

or
di

ng
 o

f 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

-
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
ll

y 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

he
n 

a 
li

ab
il

it
y 

is
 i

nc
ur

re
d,

 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

es
t 

on
 l

on
g-

te
rm

 d
eb

t 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 l

ia
bi

li
ti

es
, 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

m
at

ur
ed

. 
C

ap
it

al
 a

ss
et

 a
cq

ui
si

ti
on

s 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 

as
 c

ap
it

al
 o

ut
la

y 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 

in
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s.

 
In

 t
he

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d,
 

ca
pi

ta
l 

ou
tl

ay
 

ex
pe

nd
it

ur
es

 a
re

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 f
un

ct
io

na
l 

ar
ea

s.
 

In
te

rn
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
un

ds
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
fu

nd
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 f
un

d 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
fo

cu
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ac
cr

ua
l 

ba
si

s 
o

f 
ac

co
un

ti
ng

 a
s 

de
sc

ri
be

d 
ea

rl
ie

r 
in

 t
he

se
 n

ot
es

. 
B

ec
au

se
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 u
se

rs
 o

f t
he

 i
nt

er
na

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 t

he
 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
, 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
un

ds
 

ar
e 

co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 c

ol
um

n 
w

he
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. T

he
 c

os
t o

f t
he

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

is
 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
fu

nc
ti

on
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

. 

P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 f
un

ds
 

di
st

in
gu

is
h 

op
er

at
in

g 
re

ve
nu

es
 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
fr

om
 n

on
op

er
at

in
g 

ite
m

s.
 

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ge

ne
ra

ll
y 

re
su

lt
 f

ro
m

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
an

d 
de

li
ve

ri
ng

 g
oo

ds
 i

n 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

 w
it

h 
a 

pr
op

ri
et

ar
y 

fu
nd

's
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 o
ng

oi
ng

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
s.

 A
n 

In
te

rn
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 f

or
 

th
e 

fi
na

nc
in

g 
o

f 
go

od
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

on
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

to
 o

th
er

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 o
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t, 
or

 to
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

, 
on

 a
 c

os
t-

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t 
ba

si
s.

 T
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 o

pe
ra

ti
ng

 r
ev

en
ue

 o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 I

nt
er

na
l 

S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
is

 c
ha

rg
es

 t
o 

ot
he

r 
di

st
ri

ct
 f

un
ds

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 e
xp

en
se

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 A

ll 
re

ve
nu

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s 

no
t 

m
ee

ti
ng

 t
hi

s 
de

fi
ni

ti
on

 a
re

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 n
on

op
er

at
in

g 
re

ve
nu

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s.

 

IV-14



N
O

T
E

 1
 -

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

A
ge

nc
y 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
fi

du
ci

ar
y 

fu
nd

 f
m

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ge
nc

y 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

cu
st

od
ia

l i
n 

na
tu

re
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 n
o 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t f
oc

us
, 

bu
t u

til
iz

e 
th

e 
ac

cr
ua

l b
as

is
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g.

 S
in

ce
, b

y 
de

fi
ni

tio
n,

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 

fu
nd

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 f

or
 t

he
 b

en
ef

it
 o

f a
 th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
an

d 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 o

r 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t, 
th

es
e 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 o
f F

un
ds

 

T
he

 f
un

ds
 u

se
d 

by
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 t

he
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

E
du

ca
tio

n.
 E

ac
h 

fu
nd

 i
s 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
as

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

nt
ity

. 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
s 

o
f t

he
 f

un
ds

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

M
aj

o
r 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
F

un
ds

 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 -
T

he
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

is
 u

se
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r 
al

l 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ex

ce
pt

 th
os

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 

to
 b

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

in
 a

no
th

er
 f

un
d.

 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s-
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
F

u
n

d
-

T
he

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s-

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Fu
nd

 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 ·
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
us

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
ti

on
 o

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

f 
m

aj
or

 c
ap

ita
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

bo
nd

 is
su

e 
or

 c
ap

ita
l 

le
vi

es
. 

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 F

u
n

d
 -

T
he

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 a
cc

um
ul

at
io

n 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 f

or
, 

an
d 

pa
ym

en
t o

f, 
ge

ne
ra

l 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

 d
eb

t p
ri

nc
ip

al
, i

nt
er

es
t, 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

co
st

s.
 

N
on

m
aj

or
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

F
un

ds
 

F
oo

d 
S

er
vi

ce
 S

pe
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

u
n

d
-

T
he

 F
oo

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l R
ev

en
ue

 F
un

d 
is

 p
ri

m
ar

ily
 u

se
d 

to
 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 c
hi

ld
 n

ut
ri

ti
on

 p
ro

gr
am

. 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 S
pe

ci
al

 R
ev

en
ue

 F
u

n
d

-
T

he
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l R
ev

en
ue

 F
un

d 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
o

f r
ec

re
at

io
n,

 c
iv

ic
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, n
on

pu
bl

ic
 p

up
ils

, 
ad

ul
t o

r e
ar

ly
 c

hi
ld

ho
od

 p
ro

gr
am

s,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

si
m

il
ar

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

P
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 F

u
n

d
s 

In
te

rn
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 F
u

n
d

 -
T

he
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Se
rv

ic
e 

F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 o
f 

go
od

s 
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t 
to

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 o

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t, 
or

 to
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

, 
on

 a
 c

os
t-

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t 
ba

si
s.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Se
rv

ic
e 

F
un

d 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 d
en

ta
l 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
be

ne
fi

ts
 o

ff
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t t

o 
its

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

as
 a

 s
el

f-
in

su
re

d 
pl

an
. 

F
id

uc
ia

ry
 F

u
n

d
s 

A
ge

nc
y 

F
un

ds
 -

A
g

en
cy

 fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 

ca
sh

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

ss
et

s 
he

ld
 b

y 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

as
 t

he
 a

ge
nt

 f
or

 o
th

er
s.

 T
he

se
 f

un
ds

 a
re

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

E
as

t 
C

en
tr

al
 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 E

du
ca

ti
on

al
 C

ab
le

 C
oo

pe
ra

ti
ve

, t
he

 R
um

 R
iv

er
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
ak

 
L

an
d 

V
oc

at
io

na
l 

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e.

 

E
. 

B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

T
he

 S
ch

oo
l 

B
oa

rd
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
do

pt
s 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
bu

dg
et

 f
or

 a
ll 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s,

 p
re

pa
re

d 
on

 t
he

 s
am

e 
ba

si
s 

o
f 

ac
co

un
ti

ng
 a

s 
th

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

L
eg

al
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 c
on

tr
ol

 i
s 

at
 t

he
 f

un
d 

le
ve

l. 
B

ud
ge

te
d 

ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
io

ns
 l

ap
se

 a
t 

ye
ar

-e
nd

. 
A

ct
ua

l 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s 
fo

r 
20

15
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

bu
dg

et
 b

y 
$5

5,
93

4 
an

d 
$4

,1
33

,5
86

 
in

 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

an
d 

C
ap

ita
l 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 -
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
F

un
d,

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

N
O

T
E

 1
 -

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

F
. 

C
as

h 
an

d 
T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 

C
as

h 
an

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 i
nc

lu
de

 b
al

an
ce

s 
fr

om
 a

ll 
fu

nd
s 

th
at

 a
re

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
an

d 
in

ve
st

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 v
ar

io
us

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 a

s 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

st
at

e 
la

w
. 

E
ar

ni
ng

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 t
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

fu
nd

s 
on

 t
he

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 c
as

h 
ba

la
nc

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

by
 e

ac
h 

fu
nd

. 
T

he
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ap

ita
l 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 -
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
F

un
d 

ar
e 

no
t 

po
ol

ed
, 

an
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

th
es

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

ll
oc

at
ed

 d
ir

ec
tly

 to
 t

ha
t f

un
d.

 

F
or

 p
ur

po
se

s 
o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f C
as

h 
Fl

ow
s,

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t c
on

si
de

rs
 a

ll 
hi

gh
ly

 li
qu

id
 d

eb
t i

ns
tr

um
en

ts
 w

ith
 

an
 o

ri
gi

na
l m

at
ur

ity
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 ti
m

e 
o

f p
ur

ch
as

e 
by

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t o
f t

hr
ee

 m
on

th
s 

or
 le

ss
 to

 b
e 

ca
sh

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t. 

T
he

 P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 F
un

d'
s 

eq
ui

ty
 in

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
ca

sh
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t p

oo
l i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
to

 b
e 

ca
sh

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t. 

Sh
or

t-
te

rm
, 

hi
gh

ly
 

li
qu

id
 

de
bt

 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
pa

pe
r,

 
ba

nk
er

s'
 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
, 

an
d 

U
.S

. t
re

as
ur

y 
an

d 
ag

en
cy

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

) 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

w
it

h 
a 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
ur

it
y 

o
f 

on
e 

ye
ar

 o
r 

le
ss

, 
an

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 i

n 
2a

7-
li

ke
 e

xt
er

na
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

po
ol

s,
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
t 

am
or

ti
ze

d 
co

st
. 

O
th

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
t 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
is

 a
cc

ru
ed

 a
t t

he
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 d
at

e.
 

G
. 

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 

W
he

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
ut

ili
ze

s 
an

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 f

or
 u

nc
ol

le
ct

ib
le

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
to

 v
al

ue
 i

ts
 r

ec
ei

va
bl

es
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

co
ns

id
er

s 
al

l 
o

f 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 t
o 

be
 c

ol
le

ct
ib

le
. 

T
he

 o
nl

y 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s 
no

t 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 w

it
hi

n 
on

e 
ye

ar
 a

re
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xe

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

. 

H
. 

In
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

In
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 u
si

ng
 t

he
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

m
et

ho
d 

o
f 

ac
co

un
ti

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
 o

f 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

fo
od

, 
su

pp
lie

s,
 a

nd
 s

ur
pl

us
 c

om
m

od
it

ie
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 f

ed
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
P

ur
ch

as
ed

 f
oo

d 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

t 
in

vo
ic

e 
co

st
, 

co
m

pu
te

d 
on

 a
 f

ir
st

-i
n,

 f
ir

st
-o

ut
 m

et
ho

d.
 S

ur
pl

us
 c

om
m

od
iti

es
 a

re
 s

ta
te

d 
at

 
st

an
da

rd
iz

ed
 c

os
ts

, a
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

.S
. 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

. 

I.
 

P
re

pa
id

 I
te

m
s 

C
er

ta
in

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 t

o 
ve

nd
or

s 
re

fl
ec

t 
co

st
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 t

o 
fu

tu
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pe
ri

od
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

pr
ep

ai
d 

ite
m

s.
 P

re
pa

id
 it

em
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
/e

xp
en

se
s 

at
 th

e 
ti

m
e 

o
f c

on
su

m
pt

io
n.

 

J.
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
es

 

T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 r

ev
en

ue
 i

n 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

y 
st

at
ut

or
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
rm

ul
as

. 
T

he
 to

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
 a

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

es
e 

fo
rm

ul
as

 i
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ty
 ta

xe
s 

an
d 

st
at

e 
ai

ds
 b

y 
th

e 
L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
pr

io
ri

tie
s.

 

G
en

er
al

ly
, 

pr
op

er
ty

 t
ax

es
 a

re
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
as

 r
ev

en
ue

 b
y 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
in

 t
he

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 t
ha

t 
be

gi
ns

 m
id

w
ay

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 t
ax

 l
ev

y 
is

 c
ol

le
ct

ib
le

. 
T

o 
he

lp
 b

al
an

ce
 t

he
 s

ta
te

 b
ud

ge
t, 

th
e 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 u

til
iz

es
 a

 to
ol

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s 

th
e 

"t
ax

 s
hi

ft
,"

 w
hi

ch
 p

er
io

di
ca

ll
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 

re
co

gn
it

io
n 

o
f 

pr
op

er
ty

 t
ax

 r
ev

en
ue

. 
T

he
 t

ax
 s

hi
ft

 a
dv

an
ce

 r
ec

og
ni

ze
s 

ca
sh

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
ye

ar
's

 l
ev

y 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r 
re

ve
nu

e,
 a

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

st
at

e 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
ai

d 
pa

id
 t

o 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
, 

th
e 

m
an

da
te

d 
ta

x 
sh

if
t 

re
co

gn
iz

es
 $

26
9,

42
2 

o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 t
ax

 l
ev

y 
co

lle
ct

ib
le

 i
n 

20
15

 a
s 

re
ve

nu
e 

to
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 2

01
4-

-2
01

5.
 T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 p
or

ti
on

 o
f t

he
 t

ax
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ib
le

 i
n 

20
15

 i
s 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

a 
de

fe
rr

ed
 in

fl
ow

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 (
pr

op
er

ty
 t

ax
es

 l
ev

ie
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 y

ea
r)

. 

IV-15



N
O

T
E

 1
 -

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

x 
le

vi
es

 a
re

 c
er

ti
fi

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

ud
it

or
 i

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 

o
f 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
fo

r 
co

ll
ec

ti
on

 f
ro

m
 

ta
xp

ay
er

s 
in

 M
ay

 a
nd

 O
ct

ob
er

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r.

 I
n 

M
in

ne
so

ta
, 

co
un

ti
es

 a
ct

 a
s 

co
ll

ec
ti

on
 

ag
en

ts
 f

or
 a

ll 
pr

op
er

ty
 ta

xe
s.

 T
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

sp
re

ad
s 

al
l 

le
vi

es
 o

ve
r t

ax
ab

le
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

 S
uc

h 
ta

xe
s 

be
co

m
e 

a 
li

en
 

on
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

on
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
I.

 T
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

ge
ne

ra
ll

y 
re

m
it

s 
ta

xe
s 

to
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

at
 p

er
io

di
c 

in
te

rv
al

s 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
co

ll
ec

te
d.

 

T
ax

es
 t

ha
t 

re
m

ai
n 

un
pa

id
 a

re
 c

la
ss

if
ie

d 
as

 d
el

in
qu

en
t 

ta
xe

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

. 
R

ev
en

ue
 f

ro
m

 t
he

se
 d

el
in

qu
en

t 
pr

op
er

ty
 ta

xe
s 

th
at

 is
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 w
it

hi
n 

60
 d

ay
s 

o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

as
 a

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

fl
ow

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 
(u

na
va

il
ab

le
 r

ev
en

ue
) 

in
 th

e 
fu

nd
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 b
ec

au
se

 it
 is

 n
ot

 k
no

w
n 

to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 f

in
an

ce
 t

he
 

op
er

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t i
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r.

 

K
-

C
ap

it
al

 A
ss

et
s 

C
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
li

ze
d 

at
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l 
co

st
, o

r 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 h
is

to
ri

ca
l c

os
t f

or
 a

ss
et

s 
w

he
re

 a
ct

ua
l h

is
to

ri
ca

l 
co

st
 is

 n
ot

 a
va

il
ab

le
. D

on
at

ed
 a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

t t
he

ir
 e

st
im

at
ed

 fa
ir

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 a
t t

he
 d

at
e 

o
f d

on
at

io
n.

 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t d

ef
in

es
 c

ap
it

al
 a

ss
et

s 
as

 t
ho

se
 w

it
h 

an
 i

ni
ti

al
, i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
co

st
 o

f $
1,

00
0 

or
 m

or
e,

 w
hi

ch
 b

en
ef

it
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
. 

T
he

 c
os

t 
o

f n
or

m
al

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 r
ep

ai
rs

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 a
dd

 t
o 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
o

f t
he

 
as

se
t o

r 
m

at
er

ia
ll

y 
ex

te
nd

 a
ss

et
 li

ve
s 

ar
e 

no
t c

ap
it

al
iz

ed
. 

C
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
, 

bu
t 

ar
e 

no
t 

re
po

rt
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

C
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

de
pr

ec
ia

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
st

ra
ig

ht
-l

in
e 

m
et

ho
d 

ov
er

 t
he

ir
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
us

ef
ul

 l
iv

es
. 

S
in

ce
 s

ur
pl

us
 a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
so

ld
 f

or
 a

n 
im

m
at

er
ia

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
r 

sc
ra

pp
ed

 w
he

n 
de

cl
ar

ed
 a

s 
no

 lo
ng

er
 

fi
t 

or
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ch

oo
l 

pu
rp

os
es

 b
y 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t, 
no

 s
al

va
ge

 v
al

ue
 i

s 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
ti

on
 f

or
 

de
pr

ec
ia

ti
on

 p
ur

po
se

s.
 U

se
fu

l 
li

ve
s 

va
ry

 f
ro

m
 2

0 
to

 5
0 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r 
bu

il
di

ng
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 5
 t

o 
20

 y
ea

rs
 f

or
 f

ur
ni

tu
re

, 
eq

ui
pm

en
t,

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 L

an
d 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 i
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
re

 n
ot

 d
ep

re
ci

at
ed

. 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

os
se

ss
 a

ny
 m

at
er

ia
l 

am
ou

nt
s 

o
f 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 c

ap
it

al
 a

ss
et

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

id
ew

al
ks

 o
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

. 
S

uc
h 

it
em

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 c
os

t o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
im

pr
ov

ab
le

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

L
. 

L
on

g-
T

er
m

 O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 

In
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 d
eb

t 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

as
 l

ia
bi

li
ti

es
 i

n 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

. 
B

on
d 

pr
em

iu
m

s 
an

d 
di

sc
ou

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 a
nd

 
am

or
ti

ze
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

li
fe

 o
f t

he
 b

on
ds

 u
si

ng
 t

he
 s

tr
ai

gh
t-

li
ne

 m
et

ho
d.

 

In
 t

he
 f

un
d 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

 t
yp

es
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

 b
on

d 
pr

em
iu

m
s 

an
d 

di
sc

ou
nt

s 
du

ri
ng

 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
pe

ri
od

. 
T

he
 f

ac
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
de

bt
 i

ss
ue

d 
is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 o
th

er
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

. 
P

re
m

iu
m

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

n 
de

bt
 i

ss
ua

nc
es

 a
re

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 o
th

er
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

, 
w

hi
le

 d
is

co
un

ts
 o

n 
de

bt
 i

ss
ua

nc
es

 a
re

 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
ot

he
r 

fi
na

nc
in

g 
us

es
. 

M
. 

C
o

m
p

en
sa

te
d

 A
bs

en
ce

s 

E
li

gi
bl

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

ac
cr

ue
 v

ac
at

io
n 

an
d 

si
ck

 l
ea

ve
 a

t 
va

ry
in

g 
ra

te
s 

as
 s

pe
ci

fi
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

, 
po

rt
io

ns
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ov
er

 to
 f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s.

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

ar
e 

re
im

bu
rs

ed
 f

or
 a

ny
 u

nu
se

d,
 a

cc
ru

ed
 v

ac
at

io
n 

up
on

 t
er

m
in

at
io

n.
 U

nu
se

d 
si

ck
 l

ea
ve

 e
nt

er
s 

in
to

 t
he

 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

 o
f s

ev
er

an
ce

 b
en

ef
it

s 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
up

on
 t

er
m

in
at

io
n.

 C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 a
bs

en
ce

s 
ar

e 
ac

cr
ue

d 
in

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

nl
y 

to
 t

he
 

ex
te

nt
 t

he
y 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
us

ed
 o

r 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

m
at

ur
ed

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
ye

ar
-e

nd
. 

U
nu

se
d 

va
ca

ti
on

 i
s 

ac
cr

ue
d 

as
 i

t 
is

 
ea

rn
ed

 in
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

N
. 

S
ta

te
-W

id
e 

P
en

si
on

 P
la

ns
 

F
or

 p
ur

po
se

s 
o

f 
m

ea
su

ri
ng

 t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
li

ty
, 

de
fe

rr
ed

 o
ut

fl
ow

s/
in

fl
ow

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
, 

an
d 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e,

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

fi
du

ci
ar

y 
ne

t 
po

si
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
P

ub
li

c 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 

(P
E

R
A

) 
an

d 
T

ea
ch

er
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 (

T
R

A
) 

an
d 

ad
di

ti
on

s 
to

/d
ed

uc
ti

on
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

P
E

R
A

's
 a

nd
 th

e 
T

R
A

's
 f

id
uc

ia
ry

 n
et

 p
os

it
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ba

si
s 

as
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

P
E

R
A

 
an

d 
th

e 
T

R
A

. 
F

or
 t

hi
s 

pu
rp

os
e,

 p
la

n 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
o

f 
em

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
ro

ll
 p

ai
d 

da
te

s 
an

d 
be

ne
fi

t p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ef
un

ds
 a

re
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
w

he
n 

du
e 

an
d 

pa
ya

bl
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

be
ne

fi
t 

te
rm

s.
 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 r
ep

or
te

d 
at

 f
ai

r 
va

lu
e.

 

T
he

 T
R

A
 h

as
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 f
un

di
ng

 s
it

ua
ti

on
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
di

re
ct

 a
id

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
st

at
e 

o
f M

in
ne

so
ta

, 
C

it
y 

o
f 

M
in

ne
ap

ol
is

, 
an

d 
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
o.

 I
, 

M
in

ne
ap

ol
is

 P
ub

li
c 

S
ch

oo
ls

. 
T

he
 d

ir
ec

t 
ai

d 
is

 a
 

re
su

lt
 o

f t
he

 m
er

ge
r 

o
f t

he
 M

in
ne

ap
ol

is
 T

ea
ch

er
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

F
un

d 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 in

to
 t

he
 T

R
A

in
 2

00
6.

 

0
. 

S
ev

er
an

ce
 B

en
ef

it
s 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t p
ro

vi
de

s 
lu

m
p 

su
m

 s
ev

er
an

ce
 b

en
ef

it
s 

to
 e

li
gi

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 i
n 

ce
rt

ai
n 

co
ll

ec
ti

ve
ly

 b
ar

ga
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

. 
E

li
gi

bi
li

ty
 f

or
 t

he
se

 b
en

ef
it

s 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ye

ar
s 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d/

or
 

m
in

im
um

 a
ge

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. 

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 s

ev
er

an
ce

 b
en

ef
it

 i
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
co

nv
er

ti
ng

 a
 p

or
ti

on
 o

f 
un

us
ed

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 c

er
ta

in
 li

m
it

at
io

ns
. 

N
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

an
 r

ec
ei

ve
 s

ev
er

an
ce

 b
en

ef
it

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

o
f o

ne
 y

ea
r'

s 
sa

la
ry

. 
S

ev
er

an
ce

 b
en

ef
it

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 o
ut

 w
it

hi
n 

30
 d

ay
s 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

da
te

 o
f 

re
ti

re
m

en
t. 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

be
ne

fi
ts

 f
or

 e
li

gi
bl

e 
te

ac
he

rs
 a

re
 p

ai
d 

in
to

 a
 p

os
t-

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

he
al

th
ca

re
 s

av
in

gs
 p

la
n,

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 th
e 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
te

 R
et

ir
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
. 

F
or

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
se

ve
ra

nc
e 

be
ne

fi
ts

 a
re

 p
ai

d 
ou

t d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
. 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f 

ce
rt

ai
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 g
ro

up
s 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
el

ec
t t

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
di

st
ri

ct
 m

at
ch

in
g 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
pa

id
 in

to
 a

 
ta

x-
de

fe
rr

ed
 m

at
ch

in
g 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

 p
la

n.
 T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
an

y 
se

ve
ra

nc
e 

be
ne

fi
t 

du
e 

an
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
w

il
l 

be
 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 m
at

ch
in

g 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
to

 s
uc

h 
a 

pl
an

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f 

th
at

 
in

di
vi

du
al

's
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

S
ev

er
an

ce
 p

ay
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
nv

er
ti

bl
e 

si
ck

 le
av

e 
is

 a
cc

ru
ed

 in
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
s 

it
 

is
 e

ar
ne

d 
an

d 
it

 b
ec

om
es

 p
ro

ba
bl

e 
th

at
 i

t 
w

il
l 

ve
st

 a
t 

so
m

e 
po

in
t 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
S

ev
er

an
ce

 p
ay

 is
 a

cc
ru

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

s 
th

e 
li

ab
il

it
y 

m
at

ur
es

 d
ue

 t
o 

em
pl

oy
ee

 r
et

ir
em

en
t. 

P
. 

D
ef

er
re

d
 O

ut
fl

ow
s/

In
fl

ow
s 

o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 

In
 a

dd
it

io
n 

to
 a

ss
et

s,
 t

he
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
os

it
io

n 
w

il
l 

so
m

et
im

es
 r

ep
or

t 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 s
ec

ti
on

 f
or

 
de

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
fl

ow
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
T

hi
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t e
le

m
en

t 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

o
f n

et
 

po
si

ti
on

 t
ha

t 
ap

pl
ie

s 
to

 
a 

fu
tu

re
 

pe
ri

od
s 

an
d 

so
 w

il
l 

no
t 

be
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
as

 
an

 
ou

tf
lo

w
 o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

(e
xp

en
se

/e
xp

en
di

tu
re

) 
un

ti
l t

he
n.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 o
ne

 it
em

 th
at

 q
ua

li
fi

es
 f

or
 r

ep
or

ti
ng

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y.

 I
t i

s 
th

e 
de

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
fl

ow
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

pe
ns

io
ns

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
N

et
 

P
os

it
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

de
fe

rr
ed

 o
ut

fl
ow

 r
es

ul
ts

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
, 

ch
an

ge
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, 
th

e 
di

ff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

an
d 

ac
tu

al
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

on
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, 
an

d 
fr

om
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

to
 t

he
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

da
te

 a
nd

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

en
d 

o
f 

th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

ri
od

. 
T

he
se

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
ar

e 
de

fe
rr

ed
 a

nd
 a

m
or

ti
ze

d 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
un

de
r 

pe
ns

io
n 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 

In
 a

dd
it

io
n 

to
 l

ia
bi

li
ti

es
, 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 p

os
it

io
n 

or
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

s 
w

il
l 

so
m

et
im

es
 r

ep
or

t 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 
se

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
de

fe
rr

ed
 

in
fl

ow
s 

o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

T
hi

s 
se

pa
ra

te
 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
t 

el
em

en
t 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 

an
 

ac
qu

is
it

io
n 

o
f 

ne
t 

po
si

ti
on

 t
ha

t 
ap

pl
ie

s 
to

 f
ut

ur
e 

pe
ri

od
s 

an
d 

so
 w

il
l 

no
t 

be
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
as

 a
n 

in
fl

ow
 o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

(r
ev

en
ue

) 
un

ti
l t

ha
t t

im
e.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 th
re

e 
it

em
s 

w
hi

ch
 q

ua
li

fy
 fo

r 
re

po
rt

in
g 

in
 t

hi
s 

ca
te

go
ry

. 

IV-16



N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
he

 f
ir

st
 i

te
m

, u
na

va
il

ab
le

 re
ve

nu
e 

fr
om

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s,

 a
ri

se
s 

un
de

r a
 m

od
if

ie
d 

ac
cr

ua
l b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
on

ly
 i

n 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s 
B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

. 
D

el
in

qu
en

t 
pr

op
er

ty
 t

ax
es

 n
ot

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 

w
it

hi
n 

60
 d

ay
s 

o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

ar
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 a
nd

 r
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

as
 a

n 
in

fl
ow

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 in
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l f

un
ds

 
in

 th
e 

pe
ri

od
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
be

co
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

it
em

 i
s 

pr
op

er
ty

 ta
xe

s 
le

vi
ed

 f
or

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

ye
ar

s,
 w

hi
ch

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xe

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

r 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
pe

ri
od

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ta

xe
s 

ar
e 

le
vi

ed
, a

nd
 is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

in
fl

ow
 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 i
n 

bo
th

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f N

et
 P

os
it

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s 

B
al

an
ce

 
Sh

ee
t. 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s 

le
vi

ed
 f

or
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t y
ea

rs
 a

re
 d

ef
er

re
d 

an
d 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
an

 i
nf

lo
w

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 i
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
le

vi
ed

 a
nd

 i
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

le
vi

ed
, 

if
 av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

T
he

 t
hi

rd
 i

te
m

, 
de

fe
rr

ed
 i

nf
lo

w
s 

o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 p
en

si
on

s,
 i

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t-
w

id
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

de
fe

rr
ed

 i
nf

lo
w

 r
es

ul
ts

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
, 

ch
an

ge
s 

o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
, 

an
d 

th
e 

di
ff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
on

 p
en

si
on

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

T
he

se
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 a
nd

 a
m

or
ti

ze
d 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

un
de

r 
pe

ns
io

n 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 

Q
. 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 S

el
f-

In
su

ra
nc

e 

1.
 

G
en

er
al

 I
n

su
ra

n
ce

 -
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 e

xp
os

ed
 t

o 
va

ri
ou

s 
ri

sk
s 

o
f 

lo
ss

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

to
rt

s:
 t

he
ft

 o
f, 

da
m

ag
e 

to
, 

an
d 

de
st

ru
ct

io
n 

o
f 

as
se

ts
; 

er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 o

m
is

si
on

s;
 n

at
ur

al
 d

is
as

te
rs

. 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

ca
rr

ie
s 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 f

or
 w

or
ke

rs
' 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
co

ve
ra

ge
. 

S
et

tl
ed

 c
la

im
s 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
th

is
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
in

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 p

as
t 

th
re

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

rs
. 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

no
 s

ig
ni

fi
ca

nt
 r

ed
uc

ti
on

s 
in

 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 in

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 2
01

5.
 

2.
 

S
el

f-
In

su
ra

n
ce

-
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t h

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 a

n 
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 f

or
 a

nd
 f

in
an

ce
 

its
 s

el
f-

in
su

re
d 

ri
sk

 o
f 

lo
ss

 f
or

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 d
en

ta
l 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
pl

an
. 

U
nd

er
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

, 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r d
ep

en
de

nt
s 

fo
r 

va
ri

ou
s 

de
nt

al
 

co
st

s 
as

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
m

ak
es

 p
re

m
iu

m
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 th
at

 i
nc

lu
de

 b
ot

h 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f p

ro
gr

am
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

nt
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 r
at

es
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 e
st

im
at

es
 o

f 
m

on
th

ly
 c

la
im

s 
pa

id
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

co
ve

ra
ge

 c
la

ss
, 

pl
us

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
ar

ge
s.

 

D
is

tr
ic

t c
la

im
 li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 w

he
n 

it 
is

 p
ro

ba
bl

e 
th

at
 a

 lo
ss

 h
as

 o
cc

ur
re

d 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
at

 l
os

s 
ca

n 
be

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

es
ti

m
at

ed
. 

L
ia

bi
li

ti
es

 i
nc

lu
de

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 f

or
 c

la
im

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
in

cu
rr

ed
, 

bu
t 

no
t 

re
po

rt
ed

. 
B

ec
au

se
 a

ct
ua

l 
cl

ai
m

 l
ia

bi
li

ti
es

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 c

om
pl

ex
 f

ac
to

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 

in
fl

at
io

n,
 c

ha
ng

es
 i

n 
le

ga
l 

do
ct

ri
ne

s,
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

e 
aw

ar
ds

, 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
us

ed
 i

n 
co

m
pu

ti
ng

 a
 c

la
im

 
li

ab
il

it
y 

do
es

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ri
ly

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 a

n 
ex

ac
t a

m
ou

nt
. 

C
la

im
 li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
ar

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

pe
ri

od
ic

al
ly

 
to

 t
ak

e 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

 r
ec

en
tl

y 
se

tt
le

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 t

he
 f

re
qu

en
cy

 o
f c

la
im

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 

so
ci

al
 f

ac
to

rs
. 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 I

, 2
01

5,
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t w

il
l 

be
 s

el
f-

in
su

re
d 

fo
r 

he
al

th
 b

en
ef

it
s.

 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

he
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f d
en

ta
l 

cl
ai

m
 l

ia
bi

li
ti

es
 f

or
 t

he
 l

as
t t

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
w

er
e 

as
 f

ol
lo

w
s:

 

B
al

an
ce

 
C

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 

C
ha

ng
es

 
C

la
im

 
B

al
an

ce
 

of
 Y

ea
r 

in
 E

st
im

at
es

 
Pa

ym
en

ts
 

E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r 

20
14

 
$ 

$ 
25

1,
07

4 
$ 

23
3,

84
8 

$ 
17

,2
26

 
20

15
 

$ 
17

,2
26

 
$ 

34
0,

18
1 

$ 
33

5,
13

9 
$ 

22
,2

68
 

N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

R
. 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n 

In
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

an
d 

pr
op

ri
et

ar
y 

fu
nd

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

ne
t 

po
si

ti
on

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

di
ff

er
en

ce
 

be
tw

ee
n 

as
se

ts
, d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tf

lo
w

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
, l

ia
bi

li
ti

es
, a

nd
 d

ef
er

re
d 

in
fl

ow
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. N
et

 p
os

it
io

n 
is

 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

in
 th

re
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s:

 

N
et

 I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

in
 C

ap
it

al
 A

ss
et

s 
-

C
on

si
st

s 
o

f 
ca

pi
ta

l 
as

se
ts

, 
ne

t 
o

f 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n,

 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 a
ny

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 d
eb

t 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 a
cq

ui
re

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s.

 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n 
-

C
on

si
st

s 
o

f 
ne

t 
po

si
ti

on
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

 i
m

po
se

d 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 c
re

di
to

rs
, 

gr
an

to
rs

, 
or

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
or

s;
 

or
 c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 i

m
po

se
d 

by
 

st
at

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
. 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
N

et
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
-

A
ll 

ot
he

r n
et

 p
os

it
io

n 
th

at
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t t

he
 d

ef
in

it
io

n 
of

"r
es

tr
ic

te
d"

 
or

 "
ne

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
ca

pi
ta

l a
ss

et
s.

" 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
ap

pl
ie

s 
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 f

ir
st

 w
he

n 
an

 e
xp

en
se

 i
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 b

ot
h 

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 a

nd
 

un
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 

S.
 

F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

 C
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 

In
 t

he
 f

un
d 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s 
re

po
rt

 f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 t
ha

t 
di

sc
lo

se
 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

in
 t

ho
se

 f
un

ds
 c

an
 b

e 
sp

en
t. 

T
he

se
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

• 
N

on
sp

en
da

bl
e 

-
C

on
si

st
s 

o
f 

am
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 i
n 

sp
en

da
bl

e 
fo

rm
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

pr
ep

ai
d 

ite
m

s,
 

in
ve

nt
or

y,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 a

ss
et

s.
 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

-
C

on
si

st
s 

o
f 

am
ou

nt
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

ex
te

rn
al

ly
 

im
po

se
d 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 

cr
ed

it
or

s,
 g

ra
nt

or
s,

 o
r 

co
nt

ri
bu

to
rs

; 
or

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 im
po

se
d 

by
 s

ta
te

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s.
 

• 
C

om
m

it
te

d 
-

C
on

si
st

s 
o

f i
nt

er
na

ll
y 

im
po

se
d 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 b
y 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
o

f t
he

 
Sc

ho
ol

 B
oa

rd
. 

T
ho

se
 c

om
m

it
te

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
 u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
B

oa
rd

 r
em

ov
es

 o
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d 
us

e 
by

 t
ak

in
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ty

pe
 o

f 
ac

tio
n 

it 
em

pl
oy

ed
 t

o 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 c
om

m
it

 th
os

e 
am

ou
nt

s.
 

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
-

C
on

si
st

s 
o

f 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 i
m

po
se

d 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 T

he
se

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 c
on

si
st

 o
f 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t f

or
 s

pe
ci

fi
c 

pu
rp

os
es

 b
ut

 d
o 

no
t m

ee
t t

he
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

to
 b

e 
cl

as
si

fi
ed

 
as

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

or
 c

om
m

it
te

d.
 I

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s,
 

as
si

gn
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
re

pr
es

en
t 

in
te

nd
ed

 u
se

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

dy
 it

se
lf

 o
r b

y 
an

 o
ff

ic
ia

l t
o 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

bo
dy

 d
el

eg
at

es
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
. 

W
it

hi
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 p
ol

ic
y 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ch

oo
l B

oa
rd

, t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

is
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
to

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 a

ss
ig

nm
en

ts
 o

f f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e.
 

• 
U

n
as

si
g

n
ed

-T
he

 re
si

du
al

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
w

hi
ch

 a
ls

o 
re

fl
ec

ts
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

re
si

du
al

 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 o
th

er
 f

un
ds

. 

W
he

n 
bo

th
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
an

d 
un

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 a
va

il
ab

le
 f

or
 u

se
, 

it 
is

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 f
ir

st
 u

se
 

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
an

d 
th

en
 u

se
 u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

. 

W
he

n 
co

m
m

it
te

d,
 a

ss
ig

ne
d,

 o
r 

un
as

si
gn

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 a
va

il
ab

le
 f

or
 u

se
, 

it
 is

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 u
se

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
or

de
r:

 I
) 

co
m

m
it

te
d,

 2
) 

as
si

gn
ed

, 
an

d 
3)

 u
na

ss
ig

ne
d.

 

IV-17



N
O

T
E

 1
-

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
. 

U
se

 o
f E

st
im

at
es

 

T
he

 p
re

pa
ra

ti
on

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, i
n 

co
nf

or
m

it
y 

w
it

h 
ac

co
un

ti
ng

 p
ri

nc
ip

le
s 

ge
ne

ra
ll

y 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 in

 t
he

 
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
o

f A
m

er
ic

a,
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
m

ak
e 

es
ti

m
at

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 th

at
 a

ff
ec

t t
he

 r
ep

or
te

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
o

f a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

li
ab

il
it

ie
s 

an
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 o

f c
on

ti
ng

en
t a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
at

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
, 

an
d 

th
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
o

f 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
/e

xp
en

se
s 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 r

ep
or

ti
ng

 p
er

io
d.

 
A

ct
ua

l r
es

ul
ts

 c
ou

ld
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

om
 th

os
e 

es
ti

m
at

es
. 

U
. 

P
ri

o
r 

P
er

io
d 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

iv
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n/

R
ec

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 

T
he

 b
as

ic
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 i
nc

lu
de

 c
er

ta
in

 p
ri

or
 y

ea
r 

pa
rt

ia
l c

om
pa

ra
ti

ve
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 to
ta

l b
ut

 n
ot

 a
t 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f d

et
ai

l r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r a
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

in
 c

on
fo

rm
it

y 
w

it
h 

ac
co

un
ti

ng
 p

ri
nc

ip
le

s 
ge

ne
ra

ll
y 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s 

o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, 

su
ch

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
ad

 i
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
it

h 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
4,

 f
ro

m
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 s
um

m
ar

iz
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 d
er

iv
ed

. 
A

ls
o,

 c
er

ta
in

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 t

he
 p

ri
or

 y
ea

r 
da

ta
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ec

la
ss

if
ie

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r'

s 
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
. 

V
. 

C
h

an
g

e 
in

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

P
ri

nc
ip

le
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
5,

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t i
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
G

A
S

B
 S

ta
te

m
en

t N
o.

 6
8,

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

ti
ng

 fo
r 

P
en

si
o

n
s-

a
n

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

o
fG

A
S

B
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
N

o.
 2

7.
 G

A
S

B
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
N

o.
 6

8 
in

cl
ud

ed
 m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

ho
w

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 p

en
si

on
 b

en
ef

it
 e

xp
en

se
s 

an
d 

li
ab

il
it

ie
s.

 I
n 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
us

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

fo
cu

s 
an

d 
ac

cr
ua

l 
ba

si
s 

o
f 

ac
co

un
ti

ng
 

(g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
an

d 
pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
fu

nd
s)

, a
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 re

co
gn

iz
e 

a 
lia

bi
lit

Y
 f

or
 it

s 
sh

ar
e 

o
f t

he
 

ne
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

li
ab

il
it

y 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n.

 A
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 i
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tf
lo

w
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

fl
ow

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 it

s 
sh

ar
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

pe
ns

io
ns

. 
T

hi
s 

st
an

da
rd

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
re

tr
oa

ct
iv

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

, 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 t
he

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
ne

t 
po

si
ti

on
 a

s 
o

f J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

4.
 T

he
 n

et
 p

os
it

io
n 

o
f g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
o

f 
Ju

ne
 

30
, 

20
14

 w
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 b

y 
$3

5,
48

1,
84

4.
 

T
hi

s 
ch

an
ge

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 
pr

op
or

ti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

il
it

ie
s 

($
37

,7
62

,2
08

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 n
et

 p
os

it
io

n)
 a

nd
 re

la
te

d 
de

fe
rr

ed
 

ou
tf

lo
w

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 (

$2
,2

80
,3

64
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 n
et

 p
os

it
io

n)
 fo

r t
he

 P
E

R
A

 a
nd

 T
R

A
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

no
w

 r
ep

or
te

d 
by

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

un
de

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

C
er

ta
in

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 f

ul
ly

 r
es

ta
te

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 
20

14
 f

in
an

ci
al

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ar

e 
no

t 
de

te
rm

in
ab

le
; 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 p

ri
or

 y
ea

r 
co

m
pa

ra
ti

ve
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
re

st
at

ed
. 

N
O

T
E

 2
-

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 

A
. 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

o
f C

as
h

 a
n

d
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 

C
as

h 
an

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

t y
ea

r-
en

d 
co

ns
is

t o
f t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g:
 

D
ep

os
it

s 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
ot

al
 

C
as

h 
an

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 th
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

fN
et

 P
os

it
io

n 

C
as

h 
an

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

-
ag

en
cy

 f
un

ds
 

T
ot

al
 

B
. 

D
ep

os
it

s 

$ $ $ $ 

1,
81

6,
36

3 
19

,1
28

,7
96

 

20
,9

45
,1

59
 

22
,0

67
,1

64
 

(I
' 1

22
,0

05
) 

20
,9

45
,1

59
 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s,
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 d

ep
os

it
s 

at
 d

ep
os

it
or

y 
ba

nk
s 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ch
oo

l 
B

oa
rd

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

s,
 s

av
in

gs
 a

cc
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 n
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
es

 o
f d

ep
os

it.
 T

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
e 

m
os

t 
si

gu
if

ic
an

t r
is

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
it

h 
de

po
si

ts
: 

C
us

to
di

al
 C

re
d

it
 R

is
k 

-
In

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f d

ep
os

it
s,

 t
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 r
is

k 
th

at
 i

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t o

f a
 b

an
k 

fa
ilu

re
, 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 d

ep
os

it
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

lo
st

. 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s 

re
qu

ir
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

de
po

si
ts

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
by

 fe
de

ra
l 

de
po

si
t i

ns
ur

an
ce

, c
or

po
ra

te
 s

ur
et

y 
bo

nd
, 

or
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l. 
T

he
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f c
ol

la
te

ra
l 

pl
ed

ge
d 

m
us

t 
eq

ua
l 

11
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
he

 d
ep

os
it

s 
no

t 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 fe
de

ra
l 

de
po

si
t i

ns
ur

an
ce

 o
r c

or
po

ra
te

 s
ur

et
y 

bo
nd

s.
 A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
co

ll
at

er
al

 in
cl

ud
es

 tr
ea

su
ry

 
bi

ll
s,

 n
ot

es
, 

an
d 

bo
nd

s;
 i

ss
ue

s 
o

f 
U

.S
. 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ag
en

ci
es

; 
ge

ne
ra

l 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
ra

te
d 

"A
" 

or
 b

et
te

r;
 

re
ve

nu
e 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s 

ra
te

d 
"A

A
'' 

or
 b

et
te

r;
 i

rr
ev

oc
ab

le
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

le
tt

er
s 

o
f 

cr
ed

it
 i

ss
ue

d 
by

 t
he

 F
ed

er
al

 
H

om
e 

L
oa

n 
B

an
k;

 a
nd

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
de

po
si

t. 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s 
re

qu
ir

e 
th

at
 s

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
pl

ed
ge

d 
as

 
co

ll
at

er
al

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 s

af
ek

ee
pi

ng
 in

 a
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
ac

co
un

t a
t t

he
 F

ed
er

al
 R

es
er

ve
 B

an
k 

or
 in

 a
n 

ac
co

un
t a

t 
a 

tr
us

t d
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 b

an
k 

or
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

st
it

ut
io

n 
th

at
 is

 n
ot

 o
w

ne
d 

or
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
by

 
th

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

in
st

it
ut

io
n 

fu
rn

is
hi

ng
 t

he
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l. 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
do

 n
ot

 f
ur

th
er

 l
im

it
 d

ep
os

it
or

y 
ch

oi
ce

s.
 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 d

ep
os

it
s 

w
er

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
at

 $
1,

81
6,

36
3 

at
 y

ea
r-

en
d.

 T
he

 b
an

k 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

$2
,1

41
,9

93
 w

as
 f

ul
ly

 
in

su
re

d 
or

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

co
ll

at
er

al
 h

el
d 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 a
ge

nt
 in

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

am
e.

 

C
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

t y
ea

r-
en

d:
 

C
re

di
t R

is
k 

In
te

re
st

 R
is

k 
-

In
ve

st
m

en
t T

yp
e 

~
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

M
at

ur
it

y 
D

ur
at

io
n 

T
ot

al
 

U
.S

. 
ag

en
cy

 s
ec

ur
it

ie
s 

A
A

 
S

&
P

 
L

es
s 

th
an

 I
 y

ea
r 

$ 
1,

00
1,

21
8 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ch
oo

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t L

iq
ui

d 
A

ss
et

 F
un

d 
A

A
A

 
S&

P 
N

ot
 A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
18

,1
27

,5
78

 

T
ot

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

$ 
19

,1
28

,7
96

 

IV-18



N
O

T
E

 2
-

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

T
he

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ch
oo

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

L
iq

ui
d 

A
ss

et
 F

un
d 

is
 a

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
oo

l 
re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
S

ta
tu

te
s 

no
t r

eg
is

te
re

d 
w

it
h 

th
e 

S
ec

ur
it

ie
s 

E
xc

ha
ng

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

S
E

C
) 

th
at

 f
ol

lo
w

s 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

ru
le

s 
o

f t
he

 S
E

C
 u

nd
er

 ru
le

 2
a7

. 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

is
 f

un
d 

is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 th

e 
ne

t p
os

it
io

n 
va

lu
e 

pe
r 

sh
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y
 th

e 
po

ol
, w

hi
ch

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
 a

m
or

ti
ze

d 
co

st
 m

et
ho

d 
th

at
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
es

 f
ai

r 
va

lu
e.

 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 v

ar
io

us
 r

is
ks

, t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

o
f w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
e 

m
os

t 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t:
 

C
u

st
o

d
ia

l 
C

re
d

it
 R

is
k

 -
T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 r

is
k 

th
at

 i
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
o

f 
a 

fa
il

ur
e 

o
f 

th
e 

co
un

te
rp

ar
ty

 t
o 

an
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
ti

on
 (

ty
pi

ca
ll

y 
a 

br
ok

er
-d

ea
le

r)
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 r

ec
ov

er
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

it
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 o
r 

co
ll

at
er

al
 s

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
th

e 
po

ss
es

si
on

 o
f 

an
 o

ut
si

de
 p

ar
ty

. 
A

lt
ho

ug
h 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
do

 n
ot

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
ad

dr
es

s 
cu

st
od

ia
l c

re
di

t r
is

k,
 it

 ty
pi

ca
ll

y 
li

m
it

s 
it

s 
ex

po
su

re
 

b
y

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

in
su

re
d 

o
r 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, o

r 
by

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l 

o
f w

ho
 h

ol
ds

 t
he

 s
ec

ur
it

ie
s.

 

C
re

d
it

 R
is

k
 -

T
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 r
is

k 
th

at
 a

n 
is

su
er

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

un
te

rp
ar

ty
 t

o 
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

w
il

l 
no

t 
fu

lf
ill

 i
ts

 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s.
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s 
li

m
it

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 t

o 
di

re
ct

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 o
r 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 b

y
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
or

 it
s 

ag
en

ci
es

; 
sh

ar
es

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

F
ed

er
al

 I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

om
pa

ny
 A

ct
 o

f 
19

40
 th

at
 r

ec
ei

ve
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t c
re

di
t r

at
in

g,
 a

re
 r

at
ed

 i
n 

on
e 

o
f t

he
 

tw
o 

hi
gh

es
t 

ra
ti

ng
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
by

 a
 s

ta
ti

st
ic

al
 r

at
in

g 
ag

en
cy

, 
an

d 
al

l 
o

f 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

a 
fi

na
l 

m
at

ur
it

y 
o

f 
13

 m
on

th
s 

o
r 

le
ss

; 
ge

ne
ra

l 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
ra

te
d 

"A
" 

o
r 

be
tt

er
; 

re
ve

nu
e 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s 

ra
te

d 
"A

A
" 

o
r 

be
tt

er
; 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s 

o
f t

he
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 F
in

an
ce

 A
ge

nc
y 

ra
te

d 
"A

" 
o

r 
be

tt
er

; 
ba

nk
er

s'
 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
s 

o
f U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
ba

nk
s 

el
ig

ib
le

 f
or

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
by

 th
e 

F
ed

er
al

 R
es

er
ve

 S
ys

te
m

; 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

pa
pe

r 
is

su
ed

 b
y

 U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s 

co
rp

or
at

io
ns

 o
r 

th
ei

r 
C

an
ad

ia
n 

su
bs

id
ia

ri
es

, r
at

ed
 o

f t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 q
ua

li
ty

 
ca

te
go

ry
 b

y 
at

 l
ea

st
 t

w
o 

na
ti

on
al

ly
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
ra

ti
ng

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

nd
 m

at
ur

in
g 

in
 2

70
 d

ay
s 

o
r 

le
ss

; 
G

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

t C
on

tr
ac

ts
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
by

 a
 U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 b

an
k,

 d
om

es
ti

c 
br

an
ch

 o
f 

a 
fo

re
ig

n 
ba

nk
, 

or
 a

 U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pa

ny
, 

an
d 

w
it

h 
a 

cr
ed

it
 q

ua
li

ty
 i

n 
on

e 
o

f t
he

 to
p 

tw
o 

hi
gh

es
t 

ca
te

go
ri

es
; 

re
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

r 
re

ve
rs

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
le

nd
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 w
it

h 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

in
st

it
ut

io
ns

 q
ua

li
fi

ed
 a

s 
a 

"d
ep

os
it

or
y"

 b
y 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t e

nt
it

y,
 w

it
h 

ba
nk

s 
th

at
 a

re
 m

em
be

rs
 

o
f t

he
 F

ed
er

al
 R

es
er

ve
 S

ys
te

m
 w

it
h 

ca
pi

ta
li

za
ti

on
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 $
10

,0
00

,0
00

; 
th

at
 a

re
 a

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
re

po
rt

in
g 

de
al

er
 i

n 
U

.S
. 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
 to

 t
he

 F
ed

er
al

 R
es

er
ve

 B
an

k 
o

f N
ew

 Y
or

k;
 o

r 
ce

rt
ai

n 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 b
ro

ke
r-

de
al

er
s.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
do

 a
dd

re
ss

 c
re

di
t r

is
k.

 

In
te

re
st

 R
at

e 
R

is
k

 -
T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 r

is
k 

o
f p

ot
en

ti
al

 v
ar

ia
bi

li
ty

 i
n 

th
e 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
 o

f f
ix

ed
 r

at
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
re

su
lt

in
g 

fr
om

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
 (

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 a
n 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
is

 f
ix

ed
, 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
r t

he
 r

is
k)

. 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

do
 n

ot
 li

m
it

 th
e 

m
at

ur
it

ie
s 

o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
; h

ow
ev

er
, 

w
he

n 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t c
on

si
de

rs
 s

uc
h 

th
in

gs
 a

s 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

ca
sh

 f
lo

w
 n

ee
ds

. 

C
o

n
ce

n
tr

at
io

n
 R

is
k

-
T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 r

is
k 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h 

in
ve

st
in

g 
a 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t p

or
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (
co

ns
id

er
ed

 5
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

r 
m

or
e)

 i
n 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
 o

f a
 s

in
gl

e 
is

su
er

, 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

U
.S

. g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
tr

ea
su

ri
es

),
 i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
oo

ls
, a

nd
 m

ut
ua

l f
un

ds
. 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
do

 n
ot

 a
dd

re
ss

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
ti

on
 r

is
k.

 A
t. 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5,
 5

.2
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
or

tf
ol

io
 

w
as

 in
 U

.S
. a

ge
nc

y 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 i
ss

ue
d 

by
 th

e 
F

ed
er

al
 H

om
e 

L
oa

n 
B

an
k.

 

N
O

T
E

 3
-

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
5 

is
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

B
al

an
ce

-
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
o

f Y
ea

r 
A

dd
iti

on
s 

D
el

et
io

ns
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 

C
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s, 
no

t d
ep

re
ci

at
ed

 
L

an
d 

$ 
3,

29
8,

98
6 

$ 
$ 

$ 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

2,
44

5,
41

9 
9,

80
8,

19
1 

~9
,8
16
,6
72
l 

T
ot

al
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s, 

no
t d

ep
re

ci
at

ed
 

5,
74

4,
40

5 
9,

80
8,

19
1 

(9
,8

16
,6

72
) 

C
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s, 
de

pr
ec

ia
te

d 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
97

,5
58

,9
34

 
6,

04
0 

9,
81

6,
67

2 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
8,

94
9,

60
1 

59
0,

14
1 

Pu
pi

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
6,

95
0,

51
9 

1,
04

9,
23

5 
~1

85
,8

59
l 

T
ot

al
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s, 

de
pr

ec
ia

te
d 

I 1
3,

45
9,

05
4 

1,
64

5,
41

6 
(1

85
,8

59
) 

9,
81

6,
67

2 

L
es

s 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

fo
r 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

(3
7,

02
3,

04
7)

 
(2

,7
63

,6
36

) 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
(6

,0
98

,9
89

) 
(6

00
,6

43
) 

Pu
pi

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
~4

,3
92

,1
60

l 
~6

75
,0

11
l 

17
3,

82
3 

T
ot

al
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

~4
7,

51
4,

19
6l

 
!4

.0
39

,2
90

l 
17

3,
82

3 

N
et

 c
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s,
 d

ep
re

ci
at

ed
 

65
,9

44
,8

58
 

~2
,3

93
,8

74
l 

!1
2,

03
6l

 
9,

81
6,

67
2 

T
ot

al
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s, 

ne
t 

$ 
71

,6
89

,2
63

 
$ 

7,
41

4,
31

7 
$ 

(1
2,

03
6)

 
$ 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

as
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
fu

nc
tio

ns
: 

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nd

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 r

eg
ul

ar
 in

st
ru

ct
io

n 
V

oc
at

io
na

l e
du

ca
tio

n 
in

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
tio

n 
in

st
tu

ct
io

n 
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

Pu
pi

l s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
Si

te
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
C

on
un

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 

T
ot

al
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

Ba
la

nc
e.:

....
 

E
n

d
of

Y
ea

r 

$ 
3,

29
8,

98
6 

2,
43

6,
93

8 
5,

73
5,

92
4 

10
7,

38
1,

64
6 

9,
53

9,
74

2 
7,

81
3,

89
5 

12
4,

73
5,

28
3 

(3
9,

78
6,

68
3)

 
(6

,6
99

,6
32

) 

~ 4
,8

93
,3

48
l 

!5
1,

37
9,

66
3l

 

73
,3

55
,6

20
 

$ 
79

,0
91

,5
44

 

1,
82

1 
12

3,
22

7 
22

1,
51

6 
5,

05
8 

8,
94

4 
50

,4
49

 
72

7,
69

0 
1,

07
9,

52
0 

12
,6

98
 

1,
80

8,
36

7 

~
 

IV-19



N
O

T
E

 4
-

L
O

N
G

-T
E

R
M

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 

A
. 

G
en

er
al

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 th

e 
fo

ll
ow

in
g 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
 b

on
ds

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

: 

F
ac

e/
P

ar
 

F
in

al
 

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 

Is
su

e 
Is

su
e 

D
at

e 
In

te
re

st
 R

at
e 

V
al

ue
 

M
at

ur
i!

l:
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
!!

5
 

20
05

B
 S

ch
oo

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
B

on
ds

 
02

/1
7/

20
05

 
4.

49
-5

.2
2%

 
$ 

26
,9

35
,0

00
 

02
/0

1/
20

30
 

$ 
26

,9
35

,0
00

 

20
05

C
 R

ef
un

di
ng

 B
on

ds
 

02
/0

11
20

05
 

3.
0(

)-
5.

00
%

 
$ 

13
,4

35
,0

00
 

02
/0

11
20

18
 

5,
00

0,
00

0 

20
07

 A
 A

lt
er

na
ti

ve
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
B

on
ds

 
06

/1
5/

20
07

 
3.

88
-5

.2
5%

 
$ 

7,
58

5,
00

0 
02

/0
11

20
23

 
4,

57
0,

00
0 

2
0

 I O
A

 C
ap

it
al

 F
ac

il
it

ie
s 

B
on

ds
 

10
/2

1/
20

10
 

2.
0(

)-
3.

00
%

 
$ 

66
5,

00
0 

02
/0

11
20

21
 

41
0,

00
0 

20
12

A
 S

ch
oo

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

ef
un

di
ng

 B
on

ds
 

08
/0

11
20

12
 

3.
00

%
 

$ 
26

,0
00

,0
00

 
02

/0
1/

20
30

 
26

,0
00

,0
00

 
20

13
A

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

F
ac

ili
tie

s 
B

on
ds

 
12

/1
9/

20
13

 
2.

0(
)-

3.
50

"/
o 

$ 
2,

94
0,

00
0 

02
/0

11
20

34
 

2,
69

0,
00

0 
20

14
A

 S
ch

oo
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

B
on

ds
 

03
/2

5/
20

14
 

2.
35

-3
.0

0%
 

$ 
9,

56
5,

00
0 

02
/0

11
20

24
 

9,
47

5,
00

0 

T
ot

al
 g

en
er

al
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
bo

nd
s 

$ 
75

,0
80

,0
00

 

T
he

se
 b

on
ds

 w
er

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 f

m
an

ce
 a

cq
ui

si
ti

on
 a

nd
/o

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

f c
ap

it
al

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t,
 o

r t
o 

fi
na

nc
e 

(r
ef

un
d)

 p
ri

or
 b

o
n

d
 i

ss
ue

s.
 A

ss
et

s 
o

f 
th

e 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
it

h 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fu
tu

re
 a

d 
va

lo
re

m
 t

ax
 l

ev
ie

s,
 a

re
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 r
et

ir
em

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
. 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l 

fu
tu

re
 d

eb
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
vi

es
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
ar

e 
eq

ua
l 

to
 I

 0
5 

pe
rc

en
t 
o

f t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

nd
 in

te
re

st
 d

ue
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

. 
T

he
se

 l
ev

ie
s 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

du
ct

io
n 

if
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

ex
ce

ed
 li

m
it

at
io

ns
 i

m
po

se
d 

by
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 la
w

. 

W
it

h 
th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

o
f t

he
 S

er
ie

s 
20

05
B

 b
on

ds
, 

al
l 

ge
ne

ra
l o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
bo

nd
s 

ar
e 

se
ri

al
 b

on
ds

 w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
 

se
m

ia
nn

ua
l 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
f 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
an

d/
or

 i
nt

er
es

t 
fr

om
 t

he
 d

at
e 

th
e 

bo
nd

s 
ar

e 
is

su
ed

. 
T

he
 S

er
ie

s 
20

05
B

 
S

ch
oo

l 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

B
on

ds
 a

re
 c

ap
it

al
 a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

bo
nd

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 i
ss

ue
d 

at
 a

 d
is

co
un

t 
an

d 
ac

cr
et

e 
to

 t
he

ir
 

fa
ce

 v
al

ue
 a

t m
at

ur
it

y.
 I

nt
er

es
t 

ex
pe

ns
e 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 a
m

or
ti

za
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 d
is

co
un

t. 
A

ll
 

de
bt

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
pr

in
ci

pa
l p

ay
m

en
ts

. 

In
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2,
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
su

ed
 $

26
,0

00
,0

00
 o

f 
S

ch
oo

l 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
ef

un
di

ng
 B

on
ds

, 
S

er
ie

s 
20

12
A

. 
T

he
 

pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f t

hi
s 

is
su

e 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 e

ar
ne

d 
th

er
eo

n 
w

er
e 

us
ed

 to
 re

fu
nd

, i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

o
f t

he
ir

 s
ta

te
d 

m
at

ur
it

ie
s,

 
th

e 
20

16
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

30
 m

at
ur

it
ie

s 
o

f t
he

 2
00

5A
 S

ch
oo

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
B

on
ds

 o
n 

th
ei

r 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
5 

ca
ll

 d
at

e.
 

T
hi

s 
"c

ro
ss

ov
er

 r
ef

un
di

ng
" 

re
du

ce
d 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 t

ot
al

 f
ut

ur
e 

de
bt

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 b

y
 $

2,
49

3,
30

1 
an

d 
re

su
lt

ed
 i

n 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 s

av
in

gs
 o

f$
1,

98
6,

01
8.

 

B
. C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
s 

o
f P

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
on

 

Is
su

e 
~
 

In
te

re
st

 R
at

e 

20
14

B
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
s 

of
P

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
on

 
08

/0
7/

20
14

 
1.

15
-4

.8
5%

 

F
ac

e/
P

ar
 

V
al

ue
 

F
in

al
 

M
at

ur
io

/ 

P
ti

uc
ip

al
 

~
 

2,
74

0,
00

0 
02

/0
11

20
30

 
$ 

2,
74

0,
00

0 

In
 A

ug
us

t 
20

14
, 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
so

ld
 $

2,
74

0,
00

0 
o

f 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

es
 o

f 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

un
de

r 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

 
§ 

12
38

.5
1 

to
 f

in
an

ce
 c

la
ss

ro
om

 a
dd

it
io

ns
 to

 tw
o 

o
f t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 fa
ci

li
ti

es
. 

S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 fu

tu
re

 
ad

 v
al

or
em

 l
ea

se
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
ta

x 
le

vi
es

 w
il

l 
be

 m
ad

e 
to

 f
in

an
ce

 t
he

 r
et

ir
em

en
t 

o
f 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
es

. 
T

he
se

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f p
ar

ti
ci

pa
ti

on
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
ai

d 
by

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 

C
. 

C
ap

it
al

 L
ea

se
 

In
 J

ul
y 

20
12

, t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a

 c
ap

it
al

 l
ea

se
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f e
qu

ip
m

en
t (

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 

fu
rr

ii
tu

re
 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t)
 w

it
h 

a 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

$6
7,

49
4.

 
T

he
 l

ea
se

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
an

nu
al

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

es
t 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
f 

$2
3,

47
0 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4,
 h

ad
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

o
f 

4.
30

 p
er

ce
nt

, 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

n 
op

ti
on

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 th
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 $
1 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
o

f t
he

 le
as

e 
te

rm
. T

he
 le

as
e 

w
as

 r
ep

ai
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 

N
O

T
E

 4
-

L
O

N
G

-T
E

R
M

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 
(C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

D
. 

O
th

er
 L

on
g-

T
er

m
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

fe
rs

 a
 n

um
be

r 
o

f 
be

ne
fi

ts
 t

o 
it

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 a

bs
en

ce
s,

 p
en

si
on

s,
 

se
ve

ra
nc

e 
be

ne
fi

ts
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
po

st
-e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t b

en
ef

it
s 

(O
P

E
B

).
 T

he
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

se
 v

ar
io

us
 b

en
ef

it
s 

ar
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
el

se
w

he
re

 i
n

 th
es

e 
no

te
s.

 S
uc

h 
be

ne
fi

ts
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 p
ai

d 
fr

om
 t

he
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

an
d 

sp
ec

ia
l 

re
ve

nu
e 

fu
nd

s.
 

E
. 

M
in

im
um

 D
eb

t P
ay

m
en

ts
 

M
in

im
um

 a
nn

ua
l p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 m
at

ur
it

y 
fo

r 
ge

ne
ra

l 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

 b
on

ds
 a

nd
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te
s 

o
f p

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
on

 a
re

 a
s 

fo
ll

ow
s:

 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
in

g 
G

en
er

al
 O

bl
il!

!!
tio

n 
B

on
ds

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

fP
ar

tic
iE

at
io

n 
Ju

ne
30

_,
 _ 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
In

te
re

st
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
In

te
re

st
 

-
20

16
 

$ 
4,

96
5,

00
0 

$ 
1,

62
2,

05
1 

$ 
10

5,
00

0 
$ 

14
7,

61
4 

20
17

 
5,

17
0,

00
0 

1,
43

1,
ll

4 
15

5,
00

0 
98

,3
08

 
20

18
 

5,
38

0,
00

0 
1,

23
1,

47
6 

15
5,

00
0 

95
,6

73
 

20
19

 
4,

89
0,

00
0 

1,
02

8,
23

3 
16

0,
00

0 
92

,4
95

 
20

20
 

4,
98

5,
00

0 
94

2,
12

0 
16

5,
00

0 
88

,3
35

 
20

21
-2

02
5 

24
,3

05
,0

00
 

3,
36

0,
06

3 
90

0,
00

0 
35

8,
66

9 
20

26
-2

03
0 

22
,9

00
,0

00
 

1,
53

3,
73

8 
1,

10
0,

00
0 

15
9,

50
6 

20
31

-2
03

4 
2,

48
5,

00
0 

22
1,

02
5 

-
$ 

75
,0

80
,0

00
 

$ 
ll

,3
69

,8
20

 
$ 

2,
74

0,
00

0 
$ 

1,
04

0,
60

0 

F
. 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 L

on
g-

T
er

m
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 

C
hs

ng
e 

in
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

D
ue

 W
ith

in
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

20
14

 
Pr

in
ci

2t
e•

 
A

dd
iti

on
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
ts

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
20

15
 

O
ne

 Y
ea

r 

G
en

er
al

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

bo
nd

s 
$ 

I 0
4,

98
5,

00
0 

$ 
$ 

$ 
29

,9
05

,0
00

 
$ 

75
,0

80
,0

00
 

$ 
4,

96
5,

00
0 

C
er

tif
ic

at
es

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

2,
74

0,
00

0 
2,

74
0,

00
0 

10
5,

00
0 

Pl
us

 p
re

m
iu

m
 (d

is
co

un
t)

 
F

,8
88

,6
12

J 
44

3,
63

4 
(7

,4
45

,0
38

) 
T

ot
al

 b
on

ds
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ic
at

es
 

of
 pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

pa
ya

bl
e 

97
,0

96
,3

28
 

2,
74

0,
00

0 
30

,3
48

,6
34

 
70

,3
74

,9
62

 
5,

07
0,

00
0 

C
ap

ita
l l

ea
se

s 
pa

ya
bl

e 
23

,3
86

 
-

23
,3

86
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 a
bs

en
ce

s 
31

8,
37

5 
18

5,
41

6 
18

3,
86

8 
31

9,
92

3 
31

9,
92

3 
N

et
 p

en
si

on
 l

ia
b

il
it

y-
P

E
R

A
 

9,
53

8,
01

8 
60

7,
97

8 
1,

91
5,

97
8 

8,
23

0,
01

8 
N

et
 p

en
si

on
 l

ia
bi

lit
y-

T
R

A
 

28
,2

24
,1

90
 

1,
44

4,
23

5 
6,

39
8,

38
9 

23
,2

70
,0

36
 

Se
ve

ra
nc

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
49

8,
59

3 
12

2,
00

5 
16

5,
94

0 
45

4,
65

8 
10

0,
00

0 
N

et
 O

PE
B

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

14
6,

95
7 

27
7,

2I
I 

29
5,

35
5 

12
8,

81
3 

98
,0

83
,6

39
 

$ 
37

,7
62

,2
08

 
$ 

5,
37

6,
84

5 
$ 

39
,3

31
,5

50
 
~
4
1
0
 

$ 
5,

48
9,

92
3 

• A
dj

us
tm

en
t i

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

de
sc

ri
be

d 
ea

rl
ie

r 
in

 th
es

e 
no

te
s. 

IV-20



N
O

T
E

 5
-

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S 

A
. 

C
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 

T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

is
 a

 b
re

ak
do

w
n 

o
f e

qu
it

y 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
o

f g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l f
un

ds
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
ef

in
ed

 e
ar

li
er

 in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

. 
A

n
y 

su
ch

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
an

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 d
ef

ic
it

 a
t J

un
e 

30
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 u

na
ss

ig
ne

d 
fu

nd
 

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

ac
co

un
ti

ng
 p

ri
nc

ip
le

s 
ge

ne
ra

ll
y 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s 

o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, a
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 o

f t
he

se
 d

ef
ic

it
 b

al
an

ce
 r

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s 

is
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

he
re

in
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
au

th
or

it
y 

to
 

us
e 

fu
tu

re
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r 
su

ch
 d

ef
ic

it
s.

 
A

t 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 

20
15

, 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 a
re

 a
s 

fo
ll

ow
s:

 

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s-

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
eb

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
N

on
m

aj
or

 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

F
un

d 
F

un
d 

Fu
nd

s 
T

ot
al

 

N
on

sp
en

da
bl

e 
In

ve
nt

or
y 

$ 
66

,1
24

 
$ 

$ 
$ 

21
,5

93
 

$ 
87

,7
17

 
Pr

ep
ai

d 
ite

m
s 

12
7,

76
9 

12
7,

76
9 

T
ot

al
 n

on
sp

en
da

bl
e 

19
3,

89
3 

21
,5

93
 

21
5,

48
6 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

St
af

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
15

,5
45

 
15

,5
45

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
87

1,
01

5 
87

1,
01

5 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

ca
pi

ta
l 

72
9,

32
1 

72
9,

32
1 

L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
50

6,
58

6 
50

6,
58

6 
G

ift
ed

 a
nd

 t
al

en
te

d 
11

,7
77

 
11

,7
77

 
T

ea
ch

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
37

,7
65

 
37

,7
65

 
B

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 

1,
26

4,
18

4 
1,

26
4,

18
4 

Sa
fe

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
37

4,
09

2 
37

4,
09

2 
C

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
2,

79
5,

01
8 

2,
79

5,
01

8 
D

eb
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

94
4,

03
7 

94
4,

03
7 

F
oo

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
76

6,
13

7 
76

6,
13

7 
E

ar
ly

 c
hi

ld
ho

od
 f

am
ily

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

87
,2

99
 

87
,2

99
 

Sc
ho

ol
 r

ea
di

ne
ss

 
53

,3
85

 
53

,3
85

 
A

du
lt 

ba
si

c 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

10
,8

64
 

10
,8

64
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
 

17
8,

63
3 

17
8,

63
3 

T
ot

al
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
3,

81
0,

28
5 

2,
79

5,
01

8 
94

4,
03

7 
1,

09
6,

31
8 

8,
64

5,
65

8 

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
Se

pa
ra

tio
n/

re
tir

em
en

t 
be

ne
fit

s 
69

,7
20

 
69

,7
20

 
St

ud
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

29
2,

73
4 

29
2,

73
4 

Su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 y

ea
r'

s 
bu

dg
et

 
26

3,
00

0 
26

3,
00

0 
T

ot
al

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
62

5,
45

4 
62

5,
45

4 

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 
ac

co
un

t 
de

fic
it 

(8
49

,4
60

) 
(8

49
,4

60
) 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

 d
ef

ic
it 

(2
09

,5
36

) 
(2

09
,5

36
) 

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d 

6,
65

3,
71

7 
6,

65
3,

71
7 

T
ot

al
 u

na
ss

ig
ne

d 
5,

80
4,

25
7 

[2
09

,5
36

) 
5,

59
4,

72
1 

T
ot

al
 

$ 
10

,4
33

,8
89

 
$ 

2,
79

5,
01

8 
$ 

94
4,

03
7 

$ 
90

8,
37

5 
$ 

15
,0

81
,3

19
 

N
O

T
E

 5
-

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

B
. 

M
in

im
um

 U
na

ss
ig

ne
d 

F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 P

ol
ic

y 

T
he

 S
ch

oo
l 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 f

or
m

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
 f

un
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

po
li

cy
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 m
in

im
um

 u
na

ss
ig

ne
d 

fu
nd

 
ba

la
nc

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

th
at

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

il
l 

st
ri

ve
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
m

in
im

um
 

un
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

12
.5

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

nn
ua

l b
ud

ge
t.

 A
t 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5,
 t

he
 u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 a
cc

ou
nt

 d
ef

ic
it

s)
 w

as
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

13
.8

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

fi
sc

al
 2

01
5 

bu
dg

et
ed

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s.
 

N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
SI

O
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

ST
A

T
E

-W
ID

E
 

S
ub

st
an

ti
al

ly
 a

ll
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

e 
la

w
 

to
 b

el
on

g 
to

 
de

fi
ne

d 
be

ne
fi

t,
 

m
ul

ti
-e

m
pl

oy
er

, 
co

st
-s

ha
ri

ng
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 t
he

 T
ea

ch
er

s'
 R

et
ir

em
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 (

T
R

A
) 

or
 P

ub
li

c 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 (
P

E
R

A
),

 a
ll 

o
f w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
on

 a
 s

ta
te

-w
id

e 
ba

si
s.

 
D

is
cl

os
ur

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
se

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

ll
ow

s:
 

T
ea

ch
er

s'
 R

et
ir

em
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 (

T
R

A
) 

A
. 

P
la

n 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
s 

T
he

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
es

 
in

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
st

-s
ha

ri
ng

, 
m

ul
ti

pl
e-

em
pl

oy
er

 
de

fi
ne

d 
be

ne
fi

t 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
b

y
 t

he
 P

E
R

A
 a

nd
 t

he
 l

R
A

. 
T

he
 P

E
R

A
's

 a
nd

 t
he

 l
R

A
's

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s.

 T
he

 P
E

R
A

's
 a

nd
 th

e 
T

R
A

's
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it
 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ta

x 
qu

al
if

ie
d 

pl
an

s 
un

de
r 

S
ec

ti
on

 4
0

l(
a)

 o
f t

he
 I

nt
er

na
l 

R
ev

en
ue

 C
od

e.
 

1.
 

G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

F
un

d 
(G

E
R

F
) 

T
he

 
P

E
R

A
 's

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

ns
 

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s,
 C

ha
pt

er
s 

35
3 

an
d 

35
6.

 

A
ll 

fu
ll-

tim
e 

an
d 

ce
rt

ai
n 

pa
rt

-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 t
ea

ch
er

s 
ar

e 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 t
he

 
G

en
er

al
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t F
un

d 
(G

E
R

F)
. G

E
R

F 
m

em
be

rs
 b

el
on

g 
to

 e
ith

er
 th

e 
C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 P

la
n 

or
 th

e 
B

as
ic

 P
la

n.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

it
y 

an
d 

B
as

ic
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 n
ot

. 
T

he
 B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
w

as
 c

lo
se

d 
to

 n
ew

 m
em

be
rs

 i
n 

19
67

. 
A

ll
 n

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 m

us
t 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 t

he
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n.
 

2.
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 (

T
R

A
) 

T
he

 1
R

A
 a

dm
in

is
te

rs
 a

 B
as

ic
 P

la
n 

(w
ith

ou
t 

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

it
y 

co
ve

ra
ge

) 
an

d 
a 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 
(w

ith
 

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

it
y 

co
ve

ra
ge

) 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s,

 C
ha

pt
er

s 
35

4 
an

d 
35

6.
 T

he
 1

R
A

 is
 a

 
se

pa
ra

te
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 e
nt

ity
 a

nd
 a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 a

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
T

ru
st

ee
s.

 T
he

 B
oa

rd
 c

on
si

st
s 

o
f 

fo
ur

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, o
ne

 re
tir

ed
 m

em
be

r,
 a

nd
 th

re
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
of

fi
ci

al
s.

 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
em

pl
oy

ed
 in

 M
in

ne
so

ta
's

 p
ub

lic
 e

le
m

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

, c
ha

rt
er

 sc
ho

ol
s,

 a
nd

 c
er

ta
in

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l i
ns

tit
ut

io
ns

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
st

at
e 

(e
xc

ep
t t

ho
se

 te
ac

he
rs

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
D

ul
ut

h 
an

d 
St

. P
au

l, 
an

d 
by

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f M
in

ne
so

ta
 s

ys
te

m
) 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 to
 b

e 
1

R
A

 m
em

be
rs

. 
St

at
e 

un
iv

er
si

ty
, 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

co
lle

ge
, 

an
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
co

lle
ge

 te
ac

he
rs

 f
ir

st
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
te

 C
ol

le
ge

s 
an

d 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

ie
s 

(M
nS

C
U

) 
m

ay
 e

le
ct

 1
R

A
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

w
it

hi
n 

on
e 

ye
ar

 o
f e

li
gi

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

A
lt

er
na

ti
ve

ly
, 

th
es

e 
te

ac
he

rs
 m

ay
 e

le
ct

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
D

ef
in

ed
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

P
la

n 
(D

C
R

) 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

b
y

 M
nS

C
U

. 

IV-21



N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

B
. 

B
en

ef
it

s 
P

ro
vi

de
d 

T
he

 P
E

R
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

1R
A

 p
ro

vi
de

 r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

di
sa

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 d

ea
th

 b
en

ef
i1

s. 
B

en
ef

it 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 a
re

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 

st
at

e 
st

at
ut

es
 a

nd
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

be
 m

od
if

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tu
re

. 

• 
P

E
R

A
 -

B
en

ef
it 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 b
en

ef
it 

re
ci

pi
en

1s
 e

ac
h 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

 I
nc

re
as

es
 a

re
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 t
he

 
fu

nd
in

g 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n.
 M

em
be

rs
 in

 p
la

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 a

t l
ea

st
 9

0 
pe

rc
en

t f
un

de
d 

fo
r t

w
o 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
gi

ve
n 

2.
5 

pe
rc

en
t i

nc
re

as
es

. M
em

be
rs

 in
 p

la
ns

 th
at

 h
av

e 
no

t e
xc

ee
de

d 
90

 p
er

ce
nt

 fu
nd

ed
, o

r h
av

e 
fa

lle
n 

be
lo

w
 8

0 
pe

rc
en

t, 
ar

e 
gi

ve
n 

I 
pe

rc
en

t i
nc

re
as

es
. 

T
R

A
-

Po
st

-r
et

ir
em

en
t b

en
ef

it
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

el
ig

ib
le

 b
en

ef
it

 re
ci

pi
en

1s
 e

ac
h 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

 
T

he
 T

R
A

 i
nc

re
as

e 
is

 
2.

0 
pe

rc
en

t. 
A

ft
er

 t
he

 T
R

A
 f

un
de

d 
ra

tio
 e

xc
ee

ds
 9

0 
pe

rc
en

t 
fo

r 
tw

o 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
ye

ar
s,

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

os
t-

re
ti

re
m

en
t b

en
ef

it 
w

il
l i

nc
re

as
e 

to
 2

.5
 p

er
ce

nt
. 

T
he

 b
en

ef
it

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

st
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 o
f t

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
y 

to
 

ac
tiv

e 
pl

an
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

nt
s.

 V
es

te
d,

 t
er

m
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 e
nt

it
le

d 
to

 b
en

ef
its

 b
ut

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 

th
em

 y
et

 a
re

 b
ou

nd
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 in
 e

ff
ec

t a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

th
ey

 la
st

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 th

ei
r 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

1.
 

G
E

R
F

 B
en

ef
it

s 

B
en

ef
it

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 m
em

be
r'

s 
hi

gh
es

t 
av

er
ag

e 
sa

la
ry

 f
or

 a
ny

 f
iv

e 
su

cc
es

si
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 s
er

vi
ce

, 
ag

e,
 a

nd
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

cr
ed

it
 a

t 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e.
 T

w
o 

m
et

ho
ds

 a
re

 u
se

d 
to

 
co

m
pu

te
 b

en
ef

it
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

P
E

R
A

's
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
. 

T
he

 r
et

ir
in

g 
m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

es
 t

he
 h

ig
he

r 
o

f 
a 

st
ep

-r
at

e 
be

ne
fi

t 
ac

cr
ua

l 
fo

rm
ul

a 
(M

et
ho

d 
I)

 o
r 

a 
le

ve
l 

ac
cr

ua
l 

fo
rm

ul
a 

(M
et

ho
d 

2)
. 

U
nd

er
 M

et
ho

d 
I,

 th
e 

an
nu

ity
 a

cc
ru

al
 r

at
e 

fo
r 

a 
B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

r 
is

 2
.2

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

av
er

ag
e 

sa
la

ry
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

o
f t

he
 f

ir
st

 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 2
.7

 p
er

ce
nt

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 y

ea
r. 

T
he

 
an

nu
ity

 a
cc

ru
al

 r
at

e 
fo

r 
a 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

r i
s 

1.
2 

pe
rc

en
t o

f a
ve

ra
ge

 s
al

ar
y 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 

fi
rs

t 
10

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 1

.7
 p

er
ce

nt
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 y
ea

r.
 U

nd
er

 M
et

ho
d 

2,
 t

he
 a

nn
ui

ty
 a

cc
ru

al
 r

at
e 

is
 

2.
 7

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

av
er

ag
e 

sa
la

ry
 f

or
 B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 1

. 7
 p

er
ce

nt
 f

or
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 f
or

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e.
 F

or
 m

em
be

rs
 h

ir
ed

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
Ju

ly
 I

, 
19

89
, 

a 
fu

ll 
an

nu
it

y 
is

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

w
he

n 
ag

e 
pl

us
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 e

qu
al

90
 a

nd
 n

or
m

al
 r

et
ir

em
en

t a
ge

 is
 6

5.
 F

or
 m

em
be

rs
 

hi
re

d 
on

 o
r 

af
te

r 
Ju

ly
 I

, 
19

89
, 

no
rm

al
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
ag

e 
is

 t
he

 a
ge

 f
or

 u
nr

ed
uc

ed
 S

oc
ia

l 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

be
ne

fi
ts

 c
ap

pe
d 

at
 6

6.
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

, 
an

d 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 
ye

ar
s 

o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 h

ig
h-

fi
ve

 s
al

ar
y.

 

2.
 

T
R

A
 B

en
ef

it
s 

T
he

 T
R

A
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

re
ti

re
m

en
t b

en
ef

it
s 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 d

is
ab

il
it

y 
be

ne
fi

ts
 t

o 
m

em
be

rs
, 

an
d 

be
ne

fi
ts

 to
 

su
rv

iv
or

s 
up

on
 d

ea
th

 o
f e

li
gi

bl
e 

m
em

be
rs

. B
en

ef
its

 a
re

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s 
an

d 
ve

st
 

af
te

r t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

t. 
T

he
 d

ef
in

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t b

en
ef

its
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

a 
m

em
be

r's
 h

ig
he

st
 

av
er

ag
e 

sa
la

ry
 f

or
 a

ny
 f

iv
e 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
o

f 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 s
er

vi
ce

, 
ag

e,
 a

nd
 a

 f
or

m
ul

a 
m

ul
tip

lie
r 

ba
se

d 
on

 y
ea

rs
 o

f c
re

di
t a

t t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

: 

T
w

o 
m

et
ho

ds
 a

re
 u

se
d 

to
 c

om
pu

te
 b

en
ef

it
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

T
R

A
's

 C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 B
as

ic
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

. 
M

em
be

rs
 f

ir
st

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
Ju

ly
 I

, 
19

89
, r

ec
ei

ve
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
o

f t
he

 T
ie

r 
I o

r T
ie

r I
I b

en
ef

its
 a

s 
de

sc
ri

be
d.

 

N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
ie

r 
I 

B
en

ef
it

s 

B
as

ic
 P

la
n F
ir

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

A
ll

 y
ea

rs
 a

ft
er

 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 

St
ep

 R
at

e 
Fo

rm
ul

a 

F
ir

st
 I

 0 
ye

ar
s 

if
 se

rv
ic

e 
ye

ar
s 

ar
e 

pr
io

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 I
, 

20
06

 
F

ir
st

 I
 0 

ye
ar

s 
if

 se
rv

ic
e 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
Ju

ly
 I

, 2
00

6 
or

 a
ft

er
 

A
ll 

ot
he

r y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 i
f s

er
vi

ce
 y

ea
rs

 a
re

 p
ri

or
 to

 J
ul

y 
I,

 2
00

6 
A

ll
 o

th
er

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 i
f s

er
vi

ce
 y

ea
rs

 a
re

 J
ul

y 
I,

 2
00

6 
or

 a
ft

er
 

W
ith

 th
es

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

: 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

p
er

 Y
ea

r 

2.
2 

pe
rc

en
t 

2.
7 

pe
rc

en
t 

1.
2 

pe
rc

en
t 

1.
4 

pe
rc

en
t 

1.
7 

pe
rc

en
t 

1.
9 

pe
rc

en
t 

(a
) 

N
or

m
al

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

 is
 6

5 
w

ith
 le

ss
 th

an
 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
al

lo
w

ab
le

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 a
ge

 6
2 

w
ith

 3
0 

or
 m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
o

f a
llo

w
ab

le
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

(b
) 

T
hr

ee
 p

er
ce

nt
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

ea
rl

y 
re

ti
re

m
en

t 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fa
ct

or
 f

or
 a

ll
 y

ea
rs

 u
nd

er
 n

or
m

al
 

re
ti

re
m

en
t a

ge
. 

(c
) 

U
nr

ed
uc

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 fo

r e
ar

ly
 re

tir
em

en
t u

nd
er

 a
 R

ul
e-

of
-9

0 
(a

ge
 p

lu
s 

al
lo

w
ab

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

qu
al

s 
90

 o
r m

or
e)

. 

T
ie

r 
II

 B
en

ef
it

s 

Fo
r y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

ri
or

 to
 J

ul
y 

I,
 2

00
6,

 a
 le

ve
l f

or
m

ul
a 

o
f 

I. 
7 

pe
rc

en
t p

er
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 2

.7
 p

er
ce

nt
 p

e
r y

ea
r f

or
 B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
. F

or
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 J

ul
y 

I,
 2

00
6 

an
d 

af
te

r,
 a

 
le

ve
l f

or
m

ul
a 

o
f 1

.9
 p

er
ce

nt
 p

er
 y

ea
r f

or
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 2
. 7

 p
er

ce
nt

 f
or

 B
as

ic
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
pp

li
es

. 
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 J
ul

y 
I,

 2
01

5,
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 r
et

ir
em

en
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

fa
ct

or
s 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 ra
te

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
un

de
r 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s.

 S
m

al
le

r 
re

du
ct

io
ns

, 
m

or
e 

fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 m
em

be
r, 

w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ho
 r

ea
ch

 a
ge

 6
2 

an
d 

ha
ve

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
or

 m
or

e 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t. 

M
em

be
rs

 fi
rs

t e
m

pl
oy

ed
 a

ft
er

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 1
98

9,
 re

ce
iv

e 
on

ly
 th

e 
T

ie
r I

I c
al

cu
la

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
 n

on
na

l r
et

ire
m

en
t 

ag
e 

th
at

 is
 th

ei
r r

et
ir

em
en

t a
ge

 f
or

 f
ul

l 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

 re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
its

, b
ut

 n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
ag

e 
66

. 

Si
x 

di
ff

er
en

t t
yp

es
 o

f a
nn

ui
tie

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

em
be

rs
 u

po
n 

re
tir

em
en

t. 
T

he
 N

o 
R

ef
un

d 
L

ife
 P

la
n 

is
 a

 
lif

et
im

e 
an

nu
ity

 t
ha

t 
ce

as
es

 u
po

n 
th

e 
de

at
h 

o
f 

th
e 

re
tir

ee
--

no
 s

ur
vi

vo
r 

an
nu

ity
 i

s 
pa

ya
bl

e.
 A

 r
et

iri
ng

 
m

em
be

r m
ay

 a
ls

o 
ch

oo
se

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ur
vi

vo
r b

en
ef

i1
s t

o 
a 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
(ie

s)
 b

y 
se

le
ct

in
g 

on
e 

o
f 

th
e 

fiv
e 

pl
an

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

su
rv

iv
or

sh
ip

 f
ea

tu
re

s. 
V

es
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 m

a
y 

al
so

 le
av

e 
th

ei
r 

co
nt

nb
ut

io
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

1R
A

 F
un

d 
up

on
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 q

ua
lif

Y
 f

or
 a

 d
ef

er
re

d 
an

nu
ity

 a
t r

et
ir

em
en

t a
ge

. A
ny

 
m

em
be

r t
er

m
in

at
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 e
lig

J.b
le

 f
or

 a
 re

fu
nd

 o
f t

he
ir

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 p
lu

s 
in

te
re

st
. 

IV-22



N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

C
. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s 

se
t t

he
 ra

te
s 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

ca
n 

on
ly

 b
e 

m
od

if
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

St
at

e 
L

eg
is

la
tu

re
. 

1.
 

G
E

R
F

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 S

ta
tu

te
s,

 C
ha

pt
er

 3
53

 s
et

s 
th

e 
ra

te
s 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tn

bu
tio

ns
. 

B
as

ic
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
 w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

on
tn

bu
te

 9
 .I

 p
er

ce
nt

 a
nd

 6
.5

 p
er

ce
nt

, 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y,
 

o
f 

th
ei

r 
an

nu
al

 
co

ve
re

d 
sa

la
ry

 i
n 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r 
20

14
. 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 
Pl

an
 

m
em

be
rs

 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

d 
6.

5 
pe

rc
en

t 
o

f p
ay

 in
 2

01
5.

 I
n 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r 
20

14
, 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 w
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
on

tn
bu

te
 

11
.7

8 
pe

rc
en

t o
f p

ay
 fo

r 
B

as
ic

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 7

.2
5 

pe
rc

en
t f

or
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 P

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

. I
n 

20
15

, 
em

pl
oy

er
 r

at
es

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 t

o 
7.

5 
pe

rc
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 c
on

tn
bu

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

G
E

R
F 

fo
r t

he
 p

la
n'

s 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

,2
01

5,
 w

er
e 

$7
57

,0
66

. T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
er

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 f
or

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

s 
se

t b
y 

st
at

e 
st

at
ut

es
. 

2.
 

T
R

A
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 

Pe
r M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

tu
te

s,
 C

ha
pt

er
 3

54
 s

et
s 

th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
er

s.
 R

at
es

 f
or

 
ea

ch
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 w

er
e:

 

B
as

ic
 P

ia
n 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 P
la

n 

Y
ea

r E
nd

ed
 Ju

ne
 3

0,
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

I 0
.5

%
 

I 1
.(

)0 /
o 

11
.0

0/
o 

11
.5

%
 

7.
00

/o
 

7.
00

/o
 

7.
5%

 
7.

5%
 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
T

R
A

 fo
r t

he
 p

la
n'

s 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

5,
 w

er
e 

$1
,8

49
,9

08
. 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

on
tn

bu
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 c
on

tn
bu

tio
ns

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 a
s 

se
t b

y 
st

at
e 

st
at

ut
es

. 

N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-S

T
A

T
E

-W
ID

E
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

D
. 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
os

1s
 

1.
 

G
E

R
F

 P
en

si
on

 C
os

1s
 

A
t J

un
e 

30
,2

01
5,

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 re
po

rte
d 

a 
lia

bi
lit

y 
of

$8
,2

30
,0

18
 f

or
 it

s p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

o
f t

he
 G

E
R

F'
s 

ne
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y.

 T
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 w
as

 m
ea

su
re

d 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
4,

 a
nd

 th
e 

to
ta

l p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
us

ed
 to

 c
al

cu
la

re
 t

he
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 l

ia
bi

lit
y 

w
as

 d
et

et
m

in
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

ct
ua

ria
l 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 o
f t

ha
t 

da
te

. 
T

he
 

D
is

tri
ct

's 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

t 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

y 
w

as
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

's 
co

nt
nb

ut
io

ns
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 

PE
R

A
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
ro

ll 
pa

id
 d

at
es

 f
ro

m
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
3,

 th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 
20

14
, r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 th

e 
to

ta
l e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tn
bu

tio
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 a
ll 

o
f t

he
 P

E
R

A
 's

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
s. 

A
t 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

20
14

, t
he

 D
is

tri
ct

's 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

w
as

 0
.1

75
2 

pe
rc

en
t. 

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5,
 th

e D
is

tri
ct

 re
co

gn
i2

rd
 p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 o

f$
60

7,
97

8 
fu

r i
ts 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
o

f t
he

 G
E

R
F

's
 p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
. 

A
t J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
5,

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 re
po

rte
d 

its
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
o

f t
he

 G
E

R
F'

s 
de

fe
rre

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 

an
d 

de
fe

rre
d 

in
flo

w
s 

o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s, 
an

d 
its

 c
on

tn
bu

tio
ns

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

to
 t

he
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

da
te

, 
fr

om
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s:
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

co
no

m
ic

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ri
al

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
D

if
fe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
G

E
R

F 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 to
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

T
ot

al
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

fl
ow

s 
In

fl
ow

s 
o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 

$ 
12

6,
30

5 
$ 

84
8,

18
5 

2,
22

3,
74

4 

7
5
7
~
-

1,
73

1,
55

6 
$ 

2.
22

3,
74

4 

A
 to

ta
l 

o
f $

75
7,

06
6 

re
po

rte
d 

as
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

pe
ns

io
ns

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 d

is
tri

ct
 

co
nt

nb
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
G

E
R

F 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 to
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

y 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
,2

01
6.

 O
th

er
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

re
po

rte
d 

as
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s 

an
d 

in
flo

w
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
G

ER
F 

pe
ns

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

P
en

si
on

 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 
E

xp
en

se
 

Ju
ne

 3
0

,_
_

 
~
o
u
n
t
 

20
16

 
$ 

(2
31

,1
06

) 
20

17
 

$ 
(2

31
,1

06
) 

20
18

 
$ 

(2
31

,1
06

) 
20

19
 

$ 
(5

55
,9

36
) 

IV-23



N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

2.
 

T
R

A
 P

en
si

on
 C

os
ts

 

A
t J

un
e 

30
,2

01
5,

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t r
ep

or
te

d 
a 

lia
bi

lit
y 

of
$2

3,
27

0,
03

6 
fo

r 
its

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 s

ha
re

 o
f t

he
 

T
R

A
's

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y.
 T

he
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 l

ia
bi

lit
y 

w
as

 m
ea

su
re

d 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
, 

20
14

, 
an

d 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

us
ed

 t
o 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
th

e 
ne

t 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

y 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 o
f 

th
at

 d
at

e.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

o
f 

th
e 

ne
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

w
as

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
T

R
A

 i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 t

ot
al

 s
ys

te
m

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 d
ir

ec
t 

ai
d 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ta

te
 o

f M
in

ne
so

ta
, C

ity
 o

f M
in

ne
ap

ol
is

, a
nd

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ch

oo
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t N
o.

1,
 M

in
ne

ap
ol

is
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Sc
ho

ol
s.

 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 s

ha
re

 w
as

 
0.

50
50

 p
er

ce
nt

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

o
f 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

an
d 

0.
49

20
 p

er
ce

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

o
f t

he
 p

er
io

d.
 

T
he

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
am

ou
nt

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
du

e 
to

 d
ir

ec
t 

ai
d 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

T
R

A
. 

T
he

 
am

ou
nt

 r
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t a

s 
its

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 s

ha
re

 o
f t

he
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
, t

he
 d

ir
ec

t 
ai

d,
 a

nd
 t

ot
al

 p
or

tio
n 

o
f 

th
e 

ne
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

th
at

 w
as

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

er
e 

as
 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
St

at
e'

s 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 s

ha
re

 o
ft

be
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

itb
 tb

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

$ 
23

,2
70

,0
36

 

$ 
1,

63
6,

93
7 

A
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 b
en

ef
it 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 th

at
 a

ff
ec

te
d 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

he
 to

ta
l p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

da
te

 w
as

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
bo

th
 t

he
 m

em
be

r 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

er
. 

F
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
, 

20
15

, t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t r
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

of
$1

,3
72

,8
27

. 
It

 a
ls

o 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 $
71

,4
08

 a
s 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 d

ir
ec

t a
id

. 

A
t 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5,
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t r

ep
or

te
d 

its
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 T
R

A
's

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tf
lo

w
s 

o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
de

fe
rr

ed
 i

nf
lo

w
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
an

d 
its

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
da

te
, r

el
at

ed
 to

 p
en

si
on

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s:
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

co
no

m
ic

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ea
rn

in
gs

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

di
ff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
m

ad
e 

an
d

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 t

he
 T

R
A

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t t

o
 t

he
 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e 

T
ot

al
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

fl
ow

s 
In

fl
ow

s 
o
f
R
e
~
 

o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 

1,
98

5,
56

4 
7,

31
5,

86
4 

61
6,

95
9 

1,
84

9,
90

8 
-
-
-

4.
45

2.
43

1 
$ 

7.
31

5,
86

4 

N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

A
 to

ta
l 

of
 $1

 ,8
49

,9
08

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s 
o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 p
en

si
on

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 d

is
tri

ct
 

co
nt

nb
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
T

R
A

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t t

o 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6.
 O

th
er

 a
m

ou
nt

s r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s a
nd

 in
flo

w
s 

o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
T

R
A

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Y
ea

r 
En

de
d 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Ju
ne

30
_,

 _
_

 
A

m
ou

nt
 

20
16

 
$ 

(1
,2

85
,6

42
) 

20
17

 
$ 

(I
 ,2

85
,6

42
) 

20
18

 
$ 

(1
,2

85
,6

42
) 

20
19

 
$ 

(I
 ,2

85
,6

42
) 

20
20

 
$ 

42
9,

22
7 

E
. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

T
he

 to
ta

l 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

y 
in

 th
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4,
 a

ct
ua

ria
l 

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 u

si
ng

 tb
e 

en
try

 a
ge

 n
on

na
l 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l c
os

t m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

A
ss

um
ot

io
ns

 

In
fla

tio
n 

A
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
r p

ay
ro

ll 
gr

ow
th

 
In

ve
sb

ne
nt

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 

G
E

R
F 

2.
75

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

3.
50

"/o
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

7.
90

%
 

T
R

A
 

3.
0"

/o
 

3.
75

%
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 se
rv

ic
e 

8.
25

%
 

Sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 se
rv

ic
e-

re
la

te
d 

ta
bl

e.
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s 
fo

r a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, r
et

ire
es

, s
ur

vi
vo

rs
, a

nd
 

di
sa

bi
lit

an
ts

 w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 R

P-
20

00
 ta

bl
es

 f
or

 m
al

es
 o

r 
fe

m
al

es
, 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, w

ith
 s

lig
ht

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

. 

A
ct

ua
ria

l 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 t

he
 J

un
e 

30
, 

20
14

, 
va

lu
at

io
n 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f a
ct

ua
ria

l 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

s1
ud

ie
s. 

T
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4,
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
st

ud
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

04
, 

to
 J

un
e 

30
, 

20
08

, 
an

d 
a 

lim
ite

d 
sc

op
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
st

ud
y 

da
te

d 
A

ug
ns

t 2
9,

 2
01

4.
 T

he
 li

m
ite

d 
sc

op
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
st

ud
y 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
on

ly
 in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
lo

ng
-te

nn
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

fo
r t

he
 

G
A

SB
 S

ta
te

m
en

t N
o.

 6
7 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 G
E

R
F 

oc
cu

rre
d 

in
 2

01
4:

 a
s 

of
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
3,

 t
he

 
po

st
-r

et
ire

m
en

t b
en

ef
it 

in
cr

ea
se

 ra
te

 w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 1

.0
 p

er
ce

nt
 to

 2
.5

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
n 

Ja
nu

at
y 

1,
 2

04
6.

 
A

s 
o

f 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

14
, 

th
e 

po
st

-r
et

ire
m

en
t 

be
ne

fit
 i

nc
re

as
e 

ra
te

 w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 f
ro

m
 1

.0
 p

er
ce

nt
 t

o 
2.

5 
pe

rc
en

t o
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

I, 
20

31
. 

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
m

np
tio

ns
 th

at
 a

ff
ec

te
d 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

he
 to

ta
l l

ia
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

he
 T

R
A

 s
in

ce
 

th
e 

pr
io

r 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

da
te

. 
Po

st
-r

et
ire

m
en

t b
en

ef
it 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ow

 a
ss

um
ed

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 f
ro

m
 2

.0
 p

er
ce

nt
 

an
nu

al
ly

 to
 2

.5
 p

er
ce

nt
 a

nn
ua

lly
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

le
ga

lly
 s

pe
ci

fi
ed

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
ar

e 
m

et
. T

hi
s 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 to
 o

cc
ur

 J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

34
. 

T
he

 lo
ng

-te
nn

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

on
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

in
ve

sb
ne

nt
s 

is
 7

.9
 p

er
ce

nt
 fo

r t
he

 G
ER

F 
an

d 
8.

25
 p

er
ce

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
TR

A
. T

he
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 S
ta

te
 B

oa
rd

 o
f I

nv
es

tm
en

t, 
w

hi
ch

 m
an

ag
es

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 P

E
R

A
 a

nd
 th

e 
TR

A
, 

pr
ep

ar
es

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 r

ea
so

na
bl

en
es

s 
o

f t
he

 l
on

g-
te

nn
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 a
 r

eg
ul

ar
 b

as
is

 u
si

ng
 a

 
bu

ild
in

g-
bl

oc
k 

m
et

ho
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 b
es

t-e
st

im
at

e 
ra

ng
es

 o
f e

xp
ec

te
d 

fu
tu

re
 r

at
es

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 
m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

. 
T

he
se

 r
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 lo
ng

-te
nn

 r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

tin
g 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 fu
tu

re
 ra

te
s 

o
f r

et
ur

n 
by

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

ss
et

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s.
 

IV-24



N
O

T
E

 6
-

D
E

F
IN

E
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
-

S
T

A
T

E
-W

ID
E

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
he

 ta
rg

et
 a

ll
oc

at
io

n 
an

d 
be

st
 e

st
im

at
es

 o
f a

ri
th

m
et

ic
 re

al
 ra

te
s 

o
f r

et
ur

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

 a
re

 s
um

m
ar

iz
ed

 
in

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
ta

bl
e:

 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 

D
om

es
tic

 .s
to

ck
s 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l s
to

ck
s 

B
on

ds
 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

as
se

ts
 

C
as

h T
ot

al
 

F
. 

D
is

co
u

n
t 
R

at
e 

T
ar

ge
t 

A
ll

oc
at

io
n 

45
%

 
15

%
 

18
%

 
20

%
 

2%
 

10
0%

 

L
on

g-
T

er
m

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
R

at
e 

o
f R

et
or

n 

5.
50

%
 

6.
00

%
 

1.
45

%
 

6.
40

%
 

0.
50

%
 

T
he

 d
is

co
un

t m
te

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

to
ta

l p
en

si
on

 li
ab

il
it

y 
w

as
 7

.9
 p

er
ce

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
G

E
R

F
 a

nd
 8

.2
5 

pe
rc

en
t f

or
 th

e 
lR

A
. 

T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

o
f 

ca
sh

 f
lo

w
s 

us
ed

 t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 r

at
e 

as
su

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
em

pl
oy

ee
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

w
il

l 
b

e 
m

ad
e 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s 

sp
ec

if
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

st
at

ot
e.

 B
as

ed
 o

n
 th

os
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 
pl

an
's

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
it

io
ns

 w
er

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

al
l 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
fu

tu
re

 b
en

ef
it

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
ac

ti
ve

 a
nd

 i
na

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, 

th
e 

lo
ng

-t
en

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 m

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

as
 a

pp
li

ed
 to

 a
ll

 p
er

io
ds

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 t

o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

pe
ns

io
n 

li
ab

il
it

y.
 

G
. 

P
en

si
o

n
 L

ia
b

il
it

y
 S

en
si

ti
v

it
y

 

T
he

 fo
ll

ow
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

il
it

y 
fo

r a
ll

 p
la

ns
 it

 p
ar

ti
ci

pa
te

s 
in

, 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 u
si

ng
 t

he
 d

is
co

un
t 

m
te

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 w

ha
t 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 

pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

o
f t

he
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
il

it
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
if

 it
 w

er
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 d

is
co

un
t r

at
e 

1 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
p

o
in

t 
lo

w
er

 o
r 

I 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t d

is
co

un
t 

m
te

: 

I%
 D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 

D
is

co
m

tt 
I%

 In
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

D
is

co
m

tt 
R

at
e 

R
at

e 
D

is
co

m
tt 

R
at

e 

G
E

R
F 

di
sc

om
tt 

ra
te

 
6.

90
%

 
7.

90
%

 
8.

90
%

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f 
th

e 
G

E
R

F 
ne

t p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
$ 

13
,2

67
,1

22
 

$ 
8,

23
0,

01
8 

$ 
4,

08
5,

66
8 

T
R

A
 d

is
co

m
tt 

ra
te

 
7.

25
%

 
8.

25
%

 
9.

25
%

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f 
th

e 
T

R
A

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
$ 

38
,4

57
,4

01
 

$ 
23

,2
70

,0
36

 
$ 

10
,6

09
,0

25
 

H
. 

P
en

si
o

n
 P

la
n

 F
id

u
ci

ar
y

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

 

D
et

ai
le

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 G

E
R

F
's

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
it

io
n 

is
 a

va
il

ab
le

 i
n

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y-
is

su
ed

 P
E

R
A

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
re

po
rt.

 T
ha

t r
ep

or
t m

ay
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
P

E
R

A
 w

eb
si

te
 a

t w
w

w
.n

m
pe

ra
.o

rg
; b

y
 w

rit
in

g 
to

 th
e 

P
E

R
A

 a
t 6

0 
E

m
pi

re
 

D
ri

ve
, S

ni
te

 2
00

, 
S

t.
 P

au
l,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

51
 0

3-
20

88
; 

o
r 

b
y

 c
al

li
ng

 (
65

1)
 2

96
-7

46
0 

o
r 

(8
00

) 
65

2-
90

26
. 

D
et

ai
le

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

lR
A

's
 f

id
uc

ia
ry

 n
et

 p
os

it
io

n 
is

 a
va

il
ab

le
 i

n 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
-i

ss
ue

d 
T

R
A

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

re
po

rt.
 T

ha
t r

ep
or

t 
ca

n 
b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
T

R
A

 w
eb

si
te

 a
t 

w
w

w
.M

in
ne

so
ta

T
R

A
.o

rg
; 

b
y

 w
rit

in
g 

to
 th

e 
T

R
A

 a
t 

60
 E

m
pi

re
 

D
ri

ve
, 

S
ui

te
 

40
0,

 
St

. 
P

au
l, 

M
in

n
es

o
ta

 
55

10
3-

20
88

; 
o

r 
b

y
 

ca
ll

in
g 

(6
51

) 
29

6-
24

09
 

o
r 

(8
00

) 
65

7-
36

69
. 

N
O

T
E

 7
-

F
L

E
X

IB
L

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
 P

L
A

N
 

T
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

ha
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

th
e 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

S
ch

oo
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

o
. 

91
1 

F
le

xi
bl

e 
S

pe
nd

in
g 

P
la

n 
(t

he
 P

la
n)

. 
T

h
e 

P
la

n
 i

s 
a 

"c
af

et
er

ia
 p

la
n

" 
un

de
r 

§ 
12

5 
o

f 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e.

 A
ll

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 g

ro
up

s 
o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 i
f 

an
d

 w
h

en
 t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
ba

rg
ai

ni
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

o
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
it

h 
th

ei
r 

gr
ou

p 
al

lo
w

s 
el

ig
ib

il
it

y.
 E

li
gi

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
ca

n
 e

le
ct

 to
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

te
 b

y
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

pr
e-

ta
x 

do
ll

ar
s 

w
it

hh
el

d 
fr

om
 p

ay
ro

ll
 

ch
ec

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
P

la
n

 f
or

 h
ea

lt
h 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 h

ea
lt

hc
ar

e,
 a

n
d

 d
ep

en
da

nt
 c

ar
e 

be
ne

fi
ts

. 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
fr

om
 

th
e 

P
la

n 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

pa
ti

ng
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
u

p
o

n
 s

ub
m

it
ti

ng
 a

 r
eq

ue
st

 f
or

 r
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t 

o
f 

el
ig

ib
le

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ac

tu
al

ly
 in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

t.
 

B
ef

o
re

 th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
ye

ar
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 f
ro

m
 J

an
ua

ry
 I 

to
 D

ec
em

b
er

 3
1,

 e
ac

h
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

nt
 d

es
ig

na
te

s 
a 

to
ta

l 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

pr
e-

ta
x 

do
ll

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

d 
to

 t
he

 P
la

n 
du

ri
ng

 t
h

e 
ye

ar
. 

A
t 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 
co

nt
in

ge
nt

ly
 l

ia
bl

e 
fo

r 
cl

ai
m

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

am
ou

nt
 o

f p
ar

ti
ci

pa
nt

s'
 a

nn
ua

l 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

to
 t

he
 m

ed
ic

al
 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t p
or

ti
on

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n,

 w
h

et
h

er
 o

r 
n

o
t s

uc
h 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 m

ad
e.

 

T
h

e 
P

la
n 

is
 s

et
 u

p
 t

hr
ou

gh
 E

du
ca

to
rs

 B
en

ef
it

 C
on

su
lt

an
ts

, 
L

L
C

 a
nd

 i
s 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
b

y
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 P

la
n 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

u
p

o
n

 s
ub

m
it

ti
ng

 a
 r

eq
ue

st
 f

or
 r

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t 
o

f e
li

gi
bl

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

ct
ua

ll
y 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t.

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 o

f 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
em

iu
m

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

b
y

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pa

ni
es

. 
T

h
e 

P
la

n 
is

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 

A
ll

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
o

f t
he

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 in
co

m
e 

at
tr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 th

at
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 s

ol
el

y 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t,
 s

ub
je

ct
 

to
 t

he
 c

la
im

s 
o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t'

s 
ge

ne
ra

l 
cr

ed
it

or
s.

 P
ar

ti
ci

pa
nt

s'
 r

ig
ht

s 
u

n
d

er
 t

he
 P

la
n

 a
re

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
th

os
e 

o
f 

ge
ne

ra
l 

cr
ed

it
or

s 
o

f t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
in

 a
n

 a
m

ou
nt

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
th

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 h

ea
lt

hc
ar

e 
an

d
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 c
ar

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

. T
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t b

el
ie

ve
s 

th
at

 i
t i

s 
un

li
ke

ly
 t

h
at

 i
t 

w
il

l 
u

se
 t

he
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 s
at

is
fy

 t
he

 
cl

ai
m

s 
o

f g
en

er
al

 c
re

di
to

rs
 i

n
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

N
O

T
E

 8
-

O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
 -E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 (
O

P
E

B
) 

P
L

A
N

 

A
. 

P
la

n
 D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 

T
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

po
st

-e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t b
en

ef
it

s 
to

 c
er

ta
in

 e
li

gi
bl

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t'
s 

O
P

E
B

 
P

la
n,

 a
 s

in
gl

e-
em

pl
oy

er
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it
 p

la
n

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
b

y
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

 A
ll

 p
os

t-
em

pl
oy

m
en

t b
en

ef
it

s 
ar

e 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
it

h 
em

pl
oy

ee
 g

ro
up

s.
 A

s 
o

f 
Ju

ly
 I

, 
20

13
, 

th
e 

p
la

n
 h

ad
 5

55
 a

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 a

n
d

 5
3 

re
ti

re
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

. 
E

li
gi

bi
li

ty
 f

or
 t

he
se

 b
en

ef
it

s 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d/

or
 

m
in

im
u

m
 a

ge
 r

eq
ni

re
m

en
ts

. 
T

he
se

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

y
 s

pe
ci

fi
c 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

 o
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

re
qn

ir
em

en
ts

. 
T

h
e 

p
la

n
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
is

su
e 

a 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

va
il

ab
le

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.
 T

he
se

 b
en

ef
it

s 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
iz

ed
 a

s 
fo

ll
ow

s:
 

P
o

st
-E

m
p

lo
y

m
en

t 
In

su
ra

n
ce

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
-

A
ll

 r
et

ir
ee

s 
o

f t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t h

av
e 

th
e 

op
ti

on
 u

nd
er

 s
ta

te
 la

w
 to

 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

he
ir

 m
ed

ic
al

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
fr

om
 t

he
 t

im
e 

o
f 

re
ti

re
m

en
t 

un
ti

l 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 r

ea
ch

es
 t

h
e 

ag
e 

o
f 

el
ig

ib
il

it
y 

fo
r 

M
ed

ic
ar

e.
 F

o
r 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

el
ig

ib
le

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 g

ro
up

s,
 t

he
 

D
is

tr
ic

t p
ay

s 
fo

r 
al

l o
r 

pa
rt

 o
f t

h
e 

re
ti

re
es

' p
re

m
iu

m
s 

fo
r 

m
ed

ic
al

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 t
im

e 
o

f r
et

ir
em

en
t 

un
ti

l t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 r

ea
ch

es
 th

e 
ag

e 
o

fM
ed

ic
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

il
it

y.
 T

h
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t c
ov

er
s 

fr
om

 8
0 

to
 1

00
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
an

 e
li

gi
bl

e 
re

ti
re

e'
s 

si
ng

le
 p

re
m

iu
m

 c
os

t,
 a

s 
sp

ec
if

ie
d 

b
y

 t
he

ir
 c

on
tr

ac
t.

 F
o

r 
te

ac
he

rs
, 

o
n

ly
 e

li
gi

bl
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

re
ti

ri
ng

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

11
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
m

ed
ic

al
 i

ns
ur

an
ce

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n,
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
fr

oz
en

 a
t 

8
0

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

he
 m

on
th

ly
 s

in
gl

e 
p

re
m

iu
m

 c
o

st
 in

 th
ei

r 
fi

rs
t y

ea
r 
o

f r
et

ir
em

en
t.

 T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t'
s 

to
ta

l 
m

ed
ic

al
 i

ns
ur

an
ce

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 
re

ti
re

d 
te

ac
he

rs
 i

s 
ca

p
p

ed
 a

t 
$6

5,
00

0 
an

nu
al

ly
. 
If

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
di

st
ri

ct
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

re
ti

re
d 

te
ac

he
rs

, 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it
 a

m
ou

nt
, 

ex
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

$6
5,

00
0 

an
nu

a1
1i

m
it

at
io

n 
in

 a
 g

iv
en

 y
ea

r,
 e

ac
h 

re
ti

re
e 

re
ce

iv
es

 a
 p

ro
ra

te
d 

be
ne

fi
t.

 R
et

ir
ee

s 
n

o
t 

el
ig

ib
le

 f
or

 d
is

tr
ic

t-
pa

id
 p

re
m

iu
m

 b
en

ef
it

s 
m

u
st

 p
ay

 th
e 

fu
ll

 d
is

tr
ic

t p
re

m
iu

m
 r

at
e 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
co

ve
ra

ge
. 

IV-25



N
O

T
E

 8
-

O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
 -E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 (
O

P
E

D
) 

P
L

A
N

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t i
s 

le
ga

ll
y 

re
qu

ir
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

ti
re

es
 f

or
 w

ho
m

 it
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

he
al

th
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

ol
 a

s 
it

s 
ac

ti
ve

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 w
he

th
er

 t
he

 p
re

m
iu

m
s 

ar
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
or

 t
he

 
re

ti
re

e.
 C

on
se

qu
en

tl
y,

 p
ar

ti
ci

pa
ti

ng
 r

et
ir

ee
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 b
en

ef
it

 k
no

w
n 

as
 a

n 
"i

m
pl

ic
it

 r
at

e 
su

bs
id

y.
" 

T
hi

s 
be

ne
fi

t 
re

la
te

s 
to

 t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

 r
et

ir
ee

 i
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

pr
em

iu
m

 r
at

e 
th

an
 w

ou
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 a

va
il

ab
le

 i
f 

pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 t

he
ir

 o
w

n 
in

su
ra

nc
e,

 d
ue

 t
o 

be
in

g 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

po
ol

 w
it

h 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 y
ou

ng
er

 a
nd

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
al

ly
 h

ea
lt

hi
er

 a
ct

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s.
 

B
. 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
ol

ic
y 

T
he

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
 i

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 p
ay

-a
s-

yo
u-

go
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, 

w
it

h 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 
am

ou
nt

s 
to

 p
re

-f
un

d 
be

ne
fi

ts
 a

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
nn

ua
ll

y 
by

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t. 
T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

in
ve

st
ed

 p
la

n 
as

se
ts

 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 f

or
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

be
ne

fi
ts

. 

C
. 

A
n

n
u

al
 O

P
E

D
 C

os
t a

n
d

 N
et

 O
P

E
D

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 a

nn
ua

l 
O

P
E

B
 c

os
t (

ex
pe

ns
e)

 i
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
nu

al
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
(A

R
C

) 
o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t, 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 o

n 
an

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
ly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
as

is
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
o

f 
G

A
S

B
 S

ta
te

m
en

t N
o.

 4
5.

 T
he

 A
R

C
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
a 

le
ve

l f
un

di
ng

 th
at

, i
f p

ai
d 

on
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
ba

si
s,

 is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
to

 c
ov

er
 n

or
m

al
 c

os
ts

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 a

m
or

ti
ze

 a
ny

 u
nf

un
de

d 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

li
ab

il
it

ie
s 

(o
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

ex
ce

ss
) 

ov
er

 a
 

pe
ri

od
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

30
 y

ea
rs

. 

T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

o
f 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 a

nn
ua

l 
O

P
E

B
 c

os
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

, 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 
ac

tu
al

ly
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 t
he

 p
la

n,
 a

nd
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

et
 O

PE
B

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
: 

A
R

C
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

ne
t O

PE
B

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

A
dj

us
tm

en
t t

o 
A

R
C

 
A

nn
ua

l O
PE

B
 c

os
t (

ex
pe

ns
e)

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

In
cr

ea
se

 (
de

cr
ea

se
) 

in
 n

et
 O

PE
B

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

N
et

 O
PE

B
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n-
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 ye

ar
 

N
et

 O
PE

B
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n-
en

d 
of

 ye
ar

 

$ 
28

0,
50

9 
6,

61
3 

(9
,9

11
) 

27
7,

21
1 

(2
95

,3
55

) 
(1

8,
14

4)
 

14
6,

95
7 

$ 
12

8,
81

3 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 a

nn
ua

l 
O

P
E

B
 c

os
t, 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
nn

ua
l 

O
P

E
B

 c
os

t c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
pl

an
, a

nd
 th

e 
ne

t 
O

P
E

B
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
as

 f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
Fi

sc
al

 
A

nn
ua

l 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 
A

nn
ua

!O
PE

B
 

N
et

O
PE

B
 

Y
ea

r E
nd

ed
 

O
PE

B
C

os
t 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

C
os

t C
on

tri
bu

te
d 
~
t
i
o
n
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

3 
$ 

27
2,

11
4 

$ 
29

2,
29

7 
10

7.
4%

 
$ 

17
8,

97
4 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4 
$ 

27
0,

37
1 

$ 
30

2,
38

8 
11

1.
8%

 
$ 

14
6,

95
7 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

20
15

 
$ 

27
7,

21
1 

$ 
29

5,
35

5 
10

6.
5%

 
$ 

12
8,

81
3 

D
. 

F
u

n
d

ed
 S

ta
tu

s 
an

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

A
s 

o
f J

ul
y 

I,
 2

01
3,

 t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

, t
he

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
 a

cc
ru

ed
 li

ab
il

it
y 

fo
r 

be
ne

fi
ts

 a
nd

 
th

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 a

ct
ua

ri
al

 a
cc

ru
ed

 l
ia

bi
li

ty
 (

U
A

A
L

) 
w

er
e 

bo
th

 $
2,

36
0,

49
8,

 a
s 

th
e 

pl
an

 i
s 

no
t 

fu
nd

ed
. 

T
he

 
co

ve
re

d 
pa

yr
ol

l (
an

nu
al

 p
ay

ro
ll

 o
f a

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

e 
pl

an
) 

w
as

 $
26

,3
87

,9
76

, a
nd

 th
e 

ra
ti

o 
o

f 
th

e 
U

A
A

L
 to

 th
e 

co
ve

re
d 

pa
yr

ol
l w

as
 8

.9
 p

er
ce

nt
. 

N
O

T
E

 8
-

O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
-E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 (
O

P
E

D
) 

P
L

A
N

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 v

al
ua

ti
on

s 
o

f a
n 

on
go

in
g 

pl
an

 in
vo

lv
e 

es
ti

m
at

es
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f r
ep

or
te

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

ba
bi

li
ty

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

o
f e

ve
nt

s 
fa

r 
in

to
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 i
nc

lu
de

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 f

ut
ur

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
m

or
ta

li
ty

, 
an

d 
th

e 
he

al
th

ca
re

 c
os

t 
tr

en
d.

 A
m

ou
nt

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 f

un
de

d 
st

at
us

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

A
R

C
 o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
on

ti
nu

al
 r

ev
is

io
n 

as
 a

ct
ua

l r
es

ul
ts

 a
re

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

it
h 

pa
st

 e
xp

ec
ta

ti
on

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 e

st
im

at
es

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

T
he

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
o

f 
F

un
di

ng
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

no
te

s 
to

 b
as

ic
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

s 
m

ul
ti

-y
ea

r 
tr

en
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
 a

ct
ua

ri
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
pl

an
 a

ss
et

s 
is

 i
nc

f!
la

si
ng

 o
r 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 o

ve
r 

tim
e 

re
la

ti
ve

 t
o 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
ac

cr
ue

d 
li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
be

ne
fi

ts
. 

E
. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

n
d

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 

P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

be
ne

fi
ts

 f
or

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

ti
ng

 p
ur

po
se

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 s

ub
st

an
ti

ve
 p

la
n 

(t
he

 p
la

n 
as

 
un

de
rs

to
od

 b
y 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

pl
an

 m
em

be
rs

) 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
be

ne
fi

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
o

f 
ea

ch
 v

al
ua

ti
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f s
ha

ri
ng

 o
fb

en
ef

it
 c

os
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 
to

 t
ha

t p
oi

nt
. 

T
he

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
 m

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
o

f s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
il

it
y 

in
 a

ct
ua

ri
al

 a
cc

ru
ed

 li
ab

il
it

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
 o

f a
ss

et
s,

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

 o
f t

he
 c

al
cu

la
ti

on
s.

 

In
 t

he
 J

ul
y 

I,
 2

01
3 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 u

ni
t 

cr
ed

it
 a

ct
ua

ri
al

 c
os

t 
m

et
ho

d 
w

as
 u

se
d.

 T
he

 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 i
nc

lu
de

d:
 a

 4
.5

 p
er

ce
nt

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

re
tu

rn
 (

ne
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

) 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 o
w

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
; 

an
d 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
he

al
th

ca
re

 c
os

t 
tr

en
d 

ra
te

 o
f7

.5
 p

er
ce

nt
 i

ni
ti

al
ly

, 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 d
ec

re
m

en
ts

 t
o 

an
 u

lt
im

at
e 

ra
te

 o
f 

5.
0 

pe
rc

en
t. 

A
ll

 r
at

es
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

a 
2.

5 
pe

rc
en

t 
in

fl
at

io
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n.

 T
he

 U
A

A
L

 i
s 

be
in

g 
am

or
ti

ze
d 

on
 a

 l
ev

el
 d

ol
la

r 
ba

si
s 

ov
er

 a
 c

lo
se

d 
pe

ri
od

. 
T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 
am

or
ti

za
ti

on
 p

er
io

d 
at

 J
ul

y 
I,

 2
01

3 
fo

r 
th

e 
va

ri
ou

s 
am

or
ti

za
ti

on
 la

ye
rs

 r
an

ge
d 

fr
om

 2
4 

to
 3

0 
ye

ar
s.

 

N
O

T
E

 9
-

JO
IN

T
L

Y
 G

O
V

E
R

N
E

D
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
S

 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 a
 m

em
be

r 
o

f 
se

ve
ra

l 
co

op
er

at
iv

e 
en

ti
ti

es
 o

rg
an

iz
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

va
ri

ou
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

th
ei

r 
m

em
be

r 
di

st
ri

ct
s.

 T
he

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 b

od
y 

o
f e

ac
h 

o
f t

he
se

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 i

s 
co

m
pr

is
ed

 o
f a

n 
eq

ua
l 

nu
m

be
r 

o
f 

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

ve
s 

fr
om

 e
ac

h 
o

f t
he

ir
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

r 
di

st
ri

ct
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, 

no
ne

 o
f t

he
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
m

em
be

r 
di

st
ri

ct
s 

ap
po

in
t 

a 
vo

ti
ng

 m
aj

or
it

y 
to

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
es

e 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
s'

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 b

od
ie

s.
 F

ur
th

er
, 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

di
st

ri
ct

s 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

 f
or

, 
or

 re
si

du
al

 i
nt

er
es

t i
n,

 t
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

s.
 

A
. 

C
en

tr
al

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 E

du
ca

ti
on

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
ou

nc
il

 (
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
) 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il

 i
s 

a 
co

ns
or

ti
um

 o
f 

M
in

ne
so

ta
 s

ch
oo

l 
di

st
ri

ct
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
da

ta
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 i

ts
 m

em
be

r 
di

st
ri

ct
s.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
15

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

, 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

pa
id

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il

 $
19

,1
34

 f
or

 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 

B
. 

E
as

t C
en

tr
al

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 E

du
ca

ti
on

al
 C

ab
le

 C
oo

pe
ra

ti
ve

 (
E

C
M

E
C

C
) 

E
C

M
E

C
C

 is
 a

 c
oo

pe
ra

ti
ve

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ca

bl
e 

te
le

vi
si

on
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r e
du

ca
ti

on
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
to

 1
2 

m
em

be
r 

sc
ho

ol
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 a
nd

 I
 t

ec
hn

ic
al

 c
ol

le
ge

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
15

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r,

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t p
ai

d 
$4

0,
60

1 
fo

r i
ts

 s
ha

re
 o

f 
E

C
M

E
C

C
's

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t s

er
ve

s 
as

 f
is

ca
l 

ag
en

t 
fo

r 
E

C
M

E
C

C
, 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 it

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
$4

1,
36

3 
du

ri
ng

 2
01

5.
 

IV-26



N
O

T
E

 9
-

JO
IN

T
L

Y
 G

O
V

E
R

N
E

D
 O

R
G

A
N

IZ
A

T
IO

N
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

C
. 

R
u

m
 R

iv
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
du

ca
ti

on
 C

oo
pe

ra
ti

ve
 (

R
um

 R
iv

er
) 

R
u

m
 R

iv
er

 i
s 

a 
co

op
er

at
iv

e 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

lo
w

 i
nc

id
en

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

fr
om

 i
ts

 
se

ve
n 

m
em

be
r 

di
st

ri
ct

s.
 E

ac
h 

m
em

be
r 

di
st

ri
ct

 p
as

se
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

st
at

e 
ai

d 
du

e 
to

 R
um

 R
iv

er
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

st
at

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

rm
ul

as
 f

or
 s

ta
ff

 h
ir

ed
 b

y
 R

um
 R

iv
er

. 
In

 a
dd

it
io

n,
 e

ac
h 

m
em

be
r 

di
st

ri
ct

 p
ay

s 
a 

sh
ar

e 
o

f 
R

um
 

R
iv

er
's

 e
xc

es
s 

op
er

at
in

g 
co

st
s 

pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
to

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 s

ha
re

 o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 o
f 

st
ud

en
ts

 i
n 

R
um

 R
iv

er
's

 a
tt

en
da

nc
e 

ar
ea

. 
D

ur
in

g 
20

15
, 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
pa

id
 $

47
9,

46
7 

fo
r 

it
s 

sh
ar

e 
o

f 
su

ch
 c

os
ts

. 
T

he
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
se

rv
es

 a
s 

fi
sc

al
 a

ge
nt

 f
or

 R
um

 R
iv

er
, 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 it

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
$3

04
,7

77
 d

ur
in

g 
fi

sc
al

20
15

. 

D
. 

O
ak

 L
an

d
 V

oc
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

ti
ve

 (
O

ak
 L

an
d)

 

O
ak

 L
an

d 
is

 a
 c

oo
pe

ra
ti

ve
 t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

vo
ca

ti
on

al
 i

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 t

o 
st

ud
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 t
hr

ee
 m

em
be

r 
di

st
ri

ct
s.

 
F

un
di

ng
 f

or
 O

ak
 L

an
d 

w
or

ks
 s

im
il

ar
ly

 t
o 

R
um

 R
iv

er
 (

as
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
bo

ve
).

 D
ur

in
g 

20
15

, 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t p

ai
d 

$5
1,

21
0 

fo
r 

it
s 

sh
ar

e 
o

f 
O

ak
 L

an
d'

s 
ex

ce
ss

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

se
rv

es
 a

s 
fi

sc
al

 a
ge

nt
 f

or
 O

ak
 L

an
d,

 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 it
 re

ce
iv

ed
 $

54
,5

57
 d

ur
in

g 
20

15
. O

ak
 L

an
d'

s 
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 p

as
se

d 
a 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 c

al
li

ng
 fo

r 
th

e 
di

ss
ol

ut
io

n 
o

f t
he

 c
oo

pe
ra

ti
ve

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 2
01

5-
20

16
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
. 

N
O

T
E

 1
0

-
C

O
M

M
IT

M
E

N
T

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
IE

S
 

A
. 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t C

om
m

it
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 c
om

m
it

te
d 

to
 a

 n
um

be
r 

o
f 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
aw

ar
de

d 
fo

r 
va

ri
ou

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 c
om

m
it

m
en

t 
fo

r 
un

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

or
k 

on
 t

he
se

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

t 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
5 

w
as

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

$1
.7

 m
il

li
on

. 

B
. 

F
ed

er
al

 a
n

d
 S

ta
te

 R
ev

en
ue

s 

A
m

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

r 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

 f
ro

m
 f

ed
er

al
 a

nd
 s

ta
te

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ag
en

cy
 a

ud
it

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t.

 
A

n
y

 d
is

al
lo

w
ed

 c
la

im
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

al
re

ad
y 

co
ll

ec
te

d,
 m

ay
 c

on
st

it
ut

e 
a 

li
ab

il
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
fu

nd
s.

 T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

, 
if

 a
ny

, o
f f

un
ds

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

sa
ll

ow
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 c
an

no
t b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
t t

hi
s 

ti
m

e 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

ex
pe

ct
s 

su
ch

 a
m

ou
nt

s,
 i

f a
ny

, 
to

 b
e 

im
m

at
er

ia
l.

 

C
. 

L
eg

al
 C

la
im

s 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 th
e 

us
ua

l a
nd

 c
us

to
m

ar
y 

ty
pe

s 
o

fl
eg

al
 c

la
im

s 
pe

nd
in

g 
at

 y
ea

r-
en

d,
 m

os
tl

y 
o

f a
 m

in
or

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

us
ua

ll
y 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 i

ns
ur

an
ce

 c
ar

ri
ed

 f
or

 t
ha

t 
pu

rp
os

e.
 T

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

be
li

ev
es

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t w

il
l n

ot
 i

nc
ur

 a
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l 
li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
to

 t
he

se
 c

la
im

s,
 a

nd
 n

on
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ac

cr
ue

d 
at

 y
ea

r-
en

d.
 

IN
D

E
PE

N
D

E
N

T
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 N

O
. 

91
1 

D
ef

in
ed

 B
en

ef
it 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Pl
an

s 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f D
is

tr
ic

t's
 a

nd
 N

on
-E

m
pl

oy
er

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

 o
fN

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

G
E

R
F/

T
R

A
 R

et
ir

em
en

t F
un

ds
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5 

P
ub

li
c 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
(a

ss
et

) 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
(a

ss
et

) 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

ov
er

ed
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
(a

ss
et

) 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
o

f 
its

 c
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll 

Pl
an

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 t
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 (
as

se
t)

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 (
as

se
t)

 (
a)

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 s
ta

te
 o

f M
in

ne
so

ta
's

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 

sh
ar

e 
o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 (
b)

 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 
st

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

's
 s

ha
re

 o
f t

he
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 (

a+
 b

) 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

ov
er

ed
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 (
as

se
t)

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

its
 c

ov
er

ed
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll 

Pl
an

 f
id

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 t
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 

20
14

 

0.
17

52
%

 

$ 
8,

23
0,

01
8 

9,
20

5,
01

6 

89
.4

1%
 

=
 

78
.7

0%
 

0.
50

50
%

 

$ 
23

,2
70

,0
36

 

1,
63

6,
93

7 

24
,9

06
,9

73
 

$ 
23

,0
52

,0
03

 

10
0.

95
%

 
=

 81
.5

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 

T
he

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

G
A

SB
 

St
at

em
en

t 
N

o.
 

68
 

in
 

fi
sc

al
 

20
15

 
(u

si
ng

 
a 

Ju
ne

 
30

, 
20

14
 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e)
. T

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

pr
ev

io
us

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

s.
 

IV-27



IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 N
O

. 
91

1 

D
ef

in
ed

 B
en

ef
it

 P
en

si
on

 P
la

ns
 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
o

f D
is

tr
ic

t C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

G
E

R
F

ff
R

A
 R

et
ir

em
en

t F
un

ds
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5 

P
ub

lic
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

S
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

il
y 

re
qu

ir
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
de

fi
ci

en
cy

 (
ex

ce
ss

) 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

ov
er

ed
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
R

et
ir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

S
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

il
y 

re
qu

ir
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
de

fi
ci

en
cy

 (
ex

ce
ss

) 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 c

ov
er

ed
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
 

20
15

 

$ 
75

7,
06

6 

75
7,

06
6 

$ =
 $ 
1
0
~
 

7.
39

%
 

$ 
1,

84
9,

90
8 

1,
84

9,
90

8 

$ $ 
24

,4
56

,9
18

 -

7.
56

%
 

N
ot

e:
 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
G

A
S

B
 S

ta
te

m
en

t N
o.

 6
8 

io
 f

is
ca

l2
01

5.
 T

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 a

va
il

ab
le

 
fo

r 
pr

ev
io

us
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
s.

 

A
ct

oa
ri

al
 

A
ct

oa
ri

al
 

V
al

ua
ti

on
 

A
cc

ru
ed

 
D

at
e 

L
ia

bi
li

ty
 

Ju
ly

 I
, 2

00
9 

$ 
3,

48
3,

52
6 

Ju
ly

 I
, 2

01
1 

$ 
2,

59
2,

61
8 

Ju
ly

 I
, 2

01
3 

$ 
2,

36
0,

49
8 

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 N
O

. 
91

1 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

0 
I 5

 

O
th

er
 P

os
t-

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t B
en

ef
its

 P
la

n 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f F
un

di
ng

 P
ro

gr
es

s 

U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
oa

ri
al

 
A

ct
ua

ri
al

 
V

al
ue

 o
f 

A
cc

ru
ed

 
F

un
de

d 
P

la
n 

A
ss

et
s 

Li
ab
il
i~
 

R
at

io
 

$ 
-

$ 
3,

48
3,

52
6 

-
%

 
$ 

$ 
2,

59
2,

61
8 

-
%

 
$ 

$ 
2,

36
0,

49
8 

-
%

 

U
nf

un
de

d 
L

ia
bi

li
ty

 a
s 

a 
C

ov
er

ed
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

o
f 

P
a
~
l
l
 
~
I
I
 

$ 
23

,1
66

,2
48

 
15

.0
 

%
 

$ 
22

,8
56

,7
22

 
11

.3
 

%
 

$ 
26

,3
87

,9
76

 
8.

9 
%

 

IV-28


	Final Official Statement
	Table of Contents
	Introductory Statement
	Continuing Disclosure
	The Bonds
	The Series 2016A Bonds
	The Series 2016C Bonds
	Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program
	Future Financing
	Litigation
	Legality
	Tax Exemption
	Not Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations
	Ratings
	Municipal Advisor
	Certification
	Underwriting
	District Property Values
	District Indebtedness
	District Tax Rates, Levies and Collections
	Funds on Hand
	Investments
	General Information Concerning the District
	Area Economy
	Proposed Forms of Legal Opinions
	Continuing Disclosure Certificates
	Summary of Tax Levies, Payment Provisions, and Minnesota Real Property Valuation
	Excerpt of 2015 Annual Financial Statements




